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DETERMINATION

DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS,

(5

For Warnaco, 2004 was a year of solid accomplishment. We expandedioitg gifeps€ brand portfolio

through organic growth, the addition of new licenses and the strategic acquisition cean Pacific Apparel
Corp. We successfully executed our global expansion initiatives for Calvin Klein® underwear. We enhanced
brand awareness by increasing our marketing expenditures and capitalizing on events such as the 2004
Summer Olympics in Athens. We strengthened our senior management team by recruiting several world-
class professionals. At the same time, we delivered productivity and profitability improvements by making
prudent investments in our infrastructure.

As a result of these strategic initiatives, we recorded improved performance in our operating groups.
This performance enabled us to report net revenues of $1.42 billion; to achieve improvements in gross
margin and operating margin in excess of our targets; and to achieve net income of $42.5 million, or
$0.93 per diluted share, compared with a loss in the prior year. The markert recognized our progress and
our strong momentum with a 34 percent increase in our share price, building on last year’s 39 percent
share price appreciation.

Credit for our 2004 accomplishments belongs to the more than 10,000 Warnaco associates around the
world. Over the past year, this team has worked tirelessly to improve our business, meet market challenges
and execute our strategies for growth. Their success in these efforts has advanced our goal of transforming

Warnaco into a world-class operation that can deliver sustained growth in sales and profits.

Fueling Organic Growth

Driving organic growth is central to Warnaco’s formula for success. [n 2003, we identified several organic
growth opportunities and in 2004 we capitalized on them, strengthening our Company in the process.

We successfully expanded the Chaps® brand, adding a full collection of denim to the product line. We
also introduced Chaps sportswear and denim products to an expanded channel of distribution, while
maintaining our existing distribution channels of department stores and independent retailers. In 2005,
we are focused on increasing our penetration in these distribution channels by expanding key classification
businesses, including swimwear, outerwear and casual trousers. We continue to believe Chaps represents

one of our largest revenue growth opportunities.
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We also built on the exceptional momentum of Calvin Klein underwear by continuing to execute a
three-pronged growth strategy—namely, product extension, geographic expansion and a retail initiative.
Our efforts included launching exciting new products, aggressively entering new markets in Asia and
Europe, and continuing to drive our profitable wholesale and retail global expansion. At the end of 2004,
there were 75 Calvin Klein underwear retail stores worldwide. We expect to add 50 new stores during
2005. Our ownership of Calvin Klein underwear provides us with a powerful global growth platform, and
we believe that the brand also has the potential to generate incremental revenue and profit.

We continued to excel in the swimwear segment, taking measures to ensure that we continue to be
the leading swimwear marketer in the U.S. We capitalized on the exposure our Speedo® brand received at
the 2004 Summer Olympics by extending the Speedo product line from the water, to the beach and onto
the land, with the introduction of two new brands engineered by Speedo, Axcelerate activewear and
Axcelerate underwear, both of which will ship to our retail partners in 2005. We further expanded our
swim business by adding Michael Kors® and Calvin Klein swimwear licenses to our Designer swimwear
portfolio. Additionally, in August, we acquired Ocean Pacific Apparel Corp. Op, a global California
beach/surf lifestyle brand, provides us with significant long-term growth opportunities. We believe there is
tremendous potential to transform Op® from a pure licensing model, to a model that enables us to vertically
integrate and directly operate certain apparel categories within our core competencies while also licensing

non-core categories.

A NOTE FROM NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN CHARLES R. PERRIN

Your Board is a proud part of the Warnaco team—one that is focused on building shareholder value and
upholding our cbligation to represent the interests of all Warnaco stakeholders in a prudent and responsible
manner. We view our corporate governance, management recruitment and development, and strategic plonning
duties as vital to the long-term success of the Company. In 2004, we continued to demonstrate this, with the Board
meeting 11 times, and our committees meeting a total of 28 times. Among other initiatives, we administered the
annual incentive compensation plan for management, extended our CEQ'’s employment contract, and completed
extensive performance evaluations of the Board and individual committees. In 2005, we will continue to conduct

Board and committee evaluations, and we will also assess our individual directors.
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Driving Improved Profirability
In 2004, we focused our efforts on two businesses that presented opportunities for margin improvement,
namely Calvin Klein jeans and intimate apparel.
~ In our Calvin Klein jeans division, we created new trend-right products, and we realized critical
operational efficiencies. As a result, the division delivered double-digit operating margins along with a
significant improvement in profitability, well ahead of our three-year targets. We believe we are now poised
to resume revenue growth, and we have identified several key areas for continued development. With

this in mind, we have launched several exciting new products, including CK 39™

, a premium denim
collection, and Choice Calvin Klein®, a young contemporary offering.

In our core intimate apparel business, which is comprised of our Warner’s®, Olga®, and Body Nancy
Ganz™ brands, we addressed several challenges. We recruited new leadership, narrowed and improved our
product offerings, and “right sized” our infrastructure. We also shifted to a fully outsourced operating

mode! in North America. We are encouraged by the early results of these initiatives and optimistic about

our prospects for the future.

Enhancing Our Leadership
We strengthened our management team in 2004, recruiting several world-class professionals to our

organization. Among others, Frank Tworecke, President of Sportswear, and Helen McCluskey, President

We also strengthened our ranks in 2004, with the addition of Cheryl Nido
Turpin. The former President of The Limited stores, Cheryl brings valuable in-depth
experience in both retail and apparel to our Board. We are committed to continuing
to build our Board, and in 2005, we will evaluate qualified candidates who can

further improve our ability to govern your Company effectively.

Charles R. Perrin
Non-Executive Chairman
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Joseph R. Gromek
President and Chief Executive Officer

of Intimate Apparel, joined Warnaco during the year. These highly skilled and experienced individuals
have both already had a significant impact on their respective businesses. We believe that we now have the

management structure and team in place to support our initiatives and plans for the future.

Moving Forward

We zre proud of our accomplishments in 2004 and pleased with the strong momentum they
have generated for our Company. We have a compelling portfolio of brands, a sound operating model, a
solid infrastructure, and a disciplined and professional leadership team that is committed to driving
further improvements in revenue and profit.

As we move forward I would like to thank our many constituents for their suppore. This includes
the hard work of our associates, the endorsement of our customers, the counsel of the members of our
Board, and the loyalty of our many valued shareholders. We are confident that che best is yet to come for

Warnaco, and we look forward to sharing our continued success with you in the months and years ahead.

Shte b

Joseph R. Gromek
President and Chief Executive Officer
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“In 2004, our strong cash flow from operations afforded us the flexibility

to acguire Ocean Pacific with funds on hand, improve the terms of our
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Corporate governance and social re§pt31nsibi1ity are focal points

. . . .
in all aspects of Warnaco's operations, We continuously work

to develop a positive corporate cu\tu%e cl:nd implement best
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"Warnaco's international units have been

significant contributors to our overall

performance.Many of our global brands—

including Calvin Klein underwear, Calvin Klein

jeans, Calvin Klein swimwear, Lejaby® and

“\ Op—enjoy strong world-wide recognition.
. We will continue to leverage this brand equity
,:\ to profitably expand our geographic footprint”

—STANLEY P. SILVERSTEIN

- Executive Vice President Corporate Development

o and Chief Administrative Officer

9
C

of Net Revenues

In 2004, international businesses accounted for~:j::. 9//

O of Group Operating Income
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A STRONG AND GROWING GLOBAL PRESENCE

Our international businesses are thriving. Our success in the international arena stems from Warnaco's
powerful brand portfolio, which includes several nomes that resonate with consumers around the world, including
Calvin Klein underwear and the newly acquired Op. During 2004, we worked diligently to leverage the
appeal of these names, expanding our market presence in Asia and Eastern Europe with our Calvin Klein
underwear brand. We are pleased with our progress to date, and we are excited by the strong international

growth opportunities that exist for our global brands in many under penetrated and untapped markets.
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style and quality. We maximize the potential of this diverse portfolio of bro

bution strategy. This strategy enables us to ensure product availability, hei

]




speedn >

Building

One of Warnaco’s key competitive advantages is our diversified portfolio of highly recognized brand names, which enables us to
serve a diverse range of consumers around the world. In 2004, we continued to strengthen these assets by intensifying our marketing
efforts, adding new licenses and completing a strategic acquisition. We further leveraged our brand power by entering new product

classifications, introducing fashion-forward merchandise, and expanding our domestic and international distribution channels.
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EXPANSION

For our Sportswear group, 2004 was a year of positive results, driven by continued

revenue growth in our Chaps brand and improved profitability in Calvin Klein jeans.

In our Chaps business, we extended our product assortment by launching a denim collection and
developing several new classification categories, and we expanded our distribution channels.

In our Calvin Klein jeans division, we fulfilled our strategic goal of improving both our products and
our profitability. We accomplished this by shipping trend-right products, which drove increased sales and
double-digit profirability. As we move forward, we are focused on accelerating the performance of this

business through the introduction of fresh, innovative products.

CJ CHATS

CalvinKlein Jeans

THE WARNACO GROQUP. INC




"We made great progress in 2004. By expanding our distribution channels for Chaps, we set the stage to

generate increased recognition for the brand. At the same time, we improved both processes and product
quality in our Calvin Klein jeans business, enabling us to deliver better customer service, improve sell-throughs

and build profitability.”

—FRANK TWORECKE
President of Sportswear Group
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PROGRESS

Our Swimwear group had an exciting year, during which we expanded our Speedo and
Designer Swimwear business through a combination of organic growth and acquisition.

We leveraged our Speedo brand by sponsoring several athletes who were prominently featured at the
Summer Olympics. In fact, 67 percent of the aquatic medals awarded to U.S. competitors were won by
athletes wearing Speedo products. We capitalized on this exposure by launching a new line of underwear
and activewear engineered by Speedo under the Axcelerate name and by utilizing Olympic Champions
Michael Phelps and Amanda Beard to promote these new products.

We continued to deliver solid performance in our Designer division by developing our many strong
and well-established brands, including Anne Cole®, Nautica®, Cole of California® and Cartalina®. We also
expanded our portfolio by adding new licenses for Michael Kors and Calvin Klein swimwear.

Finally, we acquired Ocean Pacific. Op’s authentic surf heritage makes it a compelling candidate for
profitable expansion. We believe that our initiative to vertically integrate certain core apparel product catego-

ries will help make Op a meaningful contributor to Warnaco’s top-line growth in 2006 and beyond.

=T /
speedo CalvinKlein  axcelerate NAUTICA  MICHAEL KORS ”D

swimwear engineered by speedo*
SPEEDO
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"Not only did the Swimwear Group have a productive year but we also laid the groundwork for future
growth, Among other accomplishments, we significantly heightened the visibility of the Speedo brand
through highly successful athlete sponsorships at the Summer Olympics; we odded new brands to our
designer portfolio; we expanded our Speedo footwear offerings: and we acquired Ocean Pacific. All of
these achievements created exciting new growth opportunities for Warnaco, and we look forward to

capitalizing on them in the coming years.”

—ROGER A. WILLIAMS

President of Swimwear Group
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POTENTIAL

Despite a challenging retail environment, the Intimate Apparel group, led by the success
of Calvin Klein underwear, was profitable and delivered modest revenue growth in 2004.

Calvin Klein underwear continued its positive momentum, delivering double-digit growth in both
revenues and operating income. We pursued our three-pronged growth strategy by launching several new
products, aggtessively entering new markets, and continuing our profitable global expansion at wholesale and
retail. During the year, 36 Calvin Klein underwear retail stores were opened, and at year-end there were
75 locations worldwide. We also extended our direct-to-consumer initiative by developing an e-commerce
site under the CKU.com name, which we launched in the first quarter of 2005. In addition, there are
plans to open 50 new Calvin Klein underwear retail stores in 2005.

We strengthened our core and fashion intimate apparel units by recruiting new leadership, emphasizing
product and “right sizing” our infrastructure, with the near-term goal of improving profitability. Our efforts
to improve product and profitability within our core brands are beginning to yield results, and we are

optimistic about our prospects for the future.

Iejaby _B_@M D nGERE RASWREL

NANCY GANZ. T JENNIFER LOPEZ

THE WARNACO GROUP. INC.




In 2004, we launched several product lines that further strengthened our brocd and diverse porticho.
With our continued implementation of turnaround strategies in our core and fashion brands, we believe

this group is better positioned to reclize future growth and profitability.”
—HELEN McCLUSKEY
President of Intimate Apparel Group
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Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of
shareholders will be held
on Monday, May 23, 2005,
at 10:00 am EDT:

The Warnaco Group, Inc.
501 Seventh Avenue
New York, NY 10018

Registrar & Transfer Agent

Wells Fargo Corporate Trust
Sixth & Marquette
Minneapolis, MN 55479
Telephone: (800) 468-9716

Annual and 10-K Reports

A copy of the Company’s annual
report to the Securities and
Exchange Commission on Form
10-K is available to shareholders
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501 Seventh Avenue
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InvestorRelations@Warnaco.com

Stock Data

The common stock of

The Warnaco Group, Inc. is
traded on the NASDAQ stock
exchange under the trading
symbol WRNC.

Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm
Deloitte & Touche LLP
Two World Financial Center
New York, NY 10281
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The following table sets forth the Intimate Apparel Group’s principal distribution channels and
customers:

Channels of Distribution

Customers

Brands

United States

Department Stores

Independent Retailers

Chain Stores

Membership Clubs

Canada

2003

Federated Department
Stores, The May Company
and Saks Inc.

Nordstrom, Dillard’s,
Neiman Marcus and Belk

Kohl’s and Sears

Costco, Sam’s Club and
BJs

Hudson Bay Company,
Zellers, Sears and
Wal-Mart

Liverpool, Palacio de
Hierro, Suburbia, Sears
and Sam’s Club
Harrods, House of Fraser,
Galeries Lafayette,
Selfridges, Debenhams,
Au Printemps, Karstadt,
Kaufhof and El Corte
Ingles

Distributors
(Company-owned stores/
stores operated under
distributorship
agreements)

Warner’s, Olga, Body Nancy
Ganz/Bodyslimmers, JLO, Lejaby
and Calvin Klein underwear
Warner’s, Olga, Body Nancy
Gaonz/Bodyslimmers, Lejaby and
Calvin Klein underwear

Warner's, Olga, Body Nancy
Ganz/Bodyslimmers and private
label

Warner’s, Olga and Body Nancy
Ganz/Bodyslimmers

Warner’s, Olga, Body Nancy
Ganz/Bodyslimmers, JLO, Calvin
Klein underwear and Lejaby
Warner’s, Olga, Body Nancy
Ganz/Bodyslimmers and Calvin
Klein underwear

JLO, Lejaby, Rasurel and Calvin
Klein underwear

Calvin Klein underwear

The Intimate Apparel Group generally markets its product lines for three retail-selling seasons
(spring, fall and holiday). Its revenues are generally consistent throughout the year, with 45.8%, 48.6%
and 50.6% of the Intimate Apparel Group’s net revenues recorded in the first halves of Fiscal 2004,

and 2002, respectively.

The Intimate Apparel Group has operations in the Americas (United States, Canada and
Mexico), Europe (Austria, Belgium, France, Germany, Italy, the Netherlands, Spain, Switzerland and
the United Kingdom) and Asia (Hong Kong, Singapore, China and Macau). In January 2004, the
Company sold its intimate apparel production facility located in Honduras. In the first quarter of
Fiscal 2004, the Company sold its intimate apparel production facility located in San Luis, Mexico. In
Fiscal 2003, the Company announced its plan to exit its Warner’s business in Europe and on May 21,
2004, the Company entered into a licensing agreement for its Warner’s business in Europe. According
to the terms of the agreement, the licensee pays royalties based upon sales. The licensee is not
required to pay minimum royalties until Fiscal 2007 and no royalties have been earned to date.
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PART I
Item 1. Business.

Introduction

The Warnaco Group, Inc. (“Warnaco”), a Delaware corporation organized in 1986 (collectively
with its subsidiaries, the “Company”), believes it is one of the world’s leading apparel companies. The
Company designs, sources, manufactures, markets, licenses and distributes a broad line of intimate
apparel, sportswear and swimwear worldwide. The Company’s products are sold under several highly
recognized brand names, including Warner’s®, Olga®, Calvin Klein®, Speedo®, Ocean Paciﬁc®, Chaps®,
Nautica® and Lejaby®. :

The Company’s products are distributed domestically and internationally, primarily to wholesale
customers through multiple distribution channels, including major department stores, independent
retailers, chain stores, membership clubs, specialty and other stores, mass merchandisers and the
internet, including such leading retailers as Macy’s and other units of Federated Department Stores,
The May Company, J.C. Penney, Kohl’s, Sears, Target, Costco and Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. The
Company also currently operates over 75 Calvin Klein underwear retail stores worldwide (consisting
of approximately 45 stores directly operated by the Company and approximately 30 stores operated
under retail licenses or distributorship agreements). For the fiscal year ended January 1, 2005 (“Fiscal
2004”), approximately 72.6% of the Company’s net revenues were generated from domestic sales and
approximately 27.4% were generated from international sales. {

The Company owns and licenses a portfolio of highly recognized brand names. As described
below, the majority of trademarks used by the Company are either owned or licensed in perpetuity
and generated approximately 65% of its revenues during Fiscal 2004. Brand names the Company
licenses for a term generated approximately 35% of its revenues during Fiscal 2004. The Company’s
highly recognized brand names have been established in their respective markets for extended periods
and have attained a high level of consumer awareness.

The following table sets forth the Company’s trademarks and licenses as of March 11, 2005:

Owned Trademarks

Warner’s Catalina®(a)

Olga Cole of California®

Body Nancy Ganz™/Bodyslimmers® Ocean Pacific and related brands (b)
Lejaby/ Lejaby Rose®

Rasurel®

Calvin Klein and formatives (including Choice
Calvin Klein) (beneficially owned for men’s,
women’s and children’s underwear, loungewear
and sleepwear. See “Trademarks and Licensing
Agreements” on page 13).

Trademarks Licensed in Perpetuity

Trademark Territory
Speedo (c) United States, Canada, Mexico, Caribbean
Islands
Anne Cole® (for women’s swimwear) (d) Worldwide
Axcelerate engineered by Speedo United States, Canada, Mexico, Caribbean
' Islands



Trademarks Licensed for a Term

Trademark Territory : Expires (m)

Calvin Klein (for men’s/'women’s/juniors’ jeans North, South and Central America 12/31/2044
and certain jeans-related products) (e)

Chaps (for men’s sportswear, jeanswear, United States, Canada, Mexico, 12/31/2018
activewear, sport shirts and swimwear) (f) Puerto Rico

Nautica (for women’s swimwear, beachwear United States, Canada, Mexico, 6/30/2009
and accessories) (g) Caribbean Islands

Lifeguard® (for wearing apparel excluding Worldwide (United States, Canada, 6/30/2030
underwear and loungewear) (h) Mexico, Caribbean Islands and all other

countries where trademark filings are or
will be made)

Calvin Klein, CK Calvin Klein and Choice Worldwide (as geographic regions 12/31/2014
Calvin Klein (for women’s and juniors’ become available) with respect to Calvin
swimwear) (1) Klein; Worldwide in approved forms with

respect to CK Calvin Klein and Choice
Calvin Klein
Calvin Klein (for men’s swimwear) (j) Europe (countries constituting Furopean  12/31/2014
Union at May 1, 2004), Switzerland,
Norway, United Arab Emirates, Saudi
Arabia, Kuwait, Lebanon, Jordan, the
West Bank, Egypt, Israel and Russia

CK Calvin Klein (for men’s accessories) Europe (countries constituting European  12/31/2005
Union at May 1, 2004)
J. Lo by Jennifer Lopez® (for women’s Worldwide 12/31/2013
intimate apparel) (k)
Michael Kors® and MICHAEL Michael Worldwide (excluding Japan) 6/30/2014

Kors® (for women’s swimwear) (1)

(a) The Company sells swimwear wholesale to Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. using the Catalina trademark.

(b) In August 2004, the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding common stock of Ocean Pacific
Apparel Corp. Ocean Pacific operates through a network of licensees worldwide and offers a
broad array of apparel and accessories catering to men, women, young men, juniors and kids
under various trademarks, the most recognizable being its Op®, Ocean Pacific® and Op Classics
labels.

(¢) Licensed in perpetuity from Speedo International, Ltd. (“SIL").

®

(d) Licensed in perpetuity from Anne Cole and Anne Cole Design Studio.

(e) Expiration date reflects a renewal option, which permits the Company to extend for an additional
ten-year term through 12/31/2044 (subject to compliance with certain terms and conditions).

(f) Expiration date reflects two renewal options, each of which permits the Company to extend for an
additional five-year term (subject to compliance with certain terms and conditions) for the
trademark Chaps and the Chaps mark and logo.

(g) Expiration date reflects a renewal option which permits the Company to extend for an additional
two years (subject to compliance with certain terms and conditions).

(h) Expiration date reflects four renewal options, each of which permits the Company to extend for
an additional five-year term (subject to compliance with certain terms and conditions).

(i) Expiration date reflects a renewal option which permits the Company to extend for an additional
five-year term (subject to compliance with certain terms and conditions).

(j) Expiration date reflects a renewal option, which permits the Company to extend for an additional
five-year term (subject to compliance with certain terms and conditions).
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(k) Expiration date reflects two renewal options, each of which permits the Company to extend for an
additional three-year term (subject to compliance with certain terms and conditions).

(1) Expiration date reflects two renewal options, each of which permits the Company to extend for an
additional three-year term (subject to compliance with certain terms and conditions).

{m) Assumes exercise of renewal option(s).

The Company relies on its highly recognized brand names to appeal to a broad range of
consumers. The Company designs products across a wide range of price points and strives to meet the
needs and shopping preferences of male and female consumers across a broad age spectrum. The
Company believes that its ability to serve multiple domestic and international distribution channels
with a diversified portfolio of products under widely recognized brand names at varying price points
distinguishes it from many of its competitors and reduces its reliance on any single distribution
channel, product, brand or price point.

The Company operates on a fiscal year basis ending on the Saturday closest to December 31.
References in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to the “Predecessor” refer to the Company prior to
February 4, 2003 (the date the Company emerged from bankruptcy). References to the “Successor”
refer to the Company on and after February 4, 2003 after giving effect to the implementation of fresh
start accounting. References in this Form 10-K to “Fiscal 2004” refer to operations for the twelve
months ended January 1, 2005. References to “Fiscal 2003” refer to operations for the twelve months
ended January 3, 2004, comprising operations of the Predecessor for the period January 5, 2003 to
February 4, 2003 combined with the operations of the Successor for the period February 5, 2003 to
January 3, 2004. Financial information for the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 and Fiscal
2003 has been restated to reflect the correction of the Company’s lease accounting. See Nore 23 of
Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company’s previous three fiscal years ended on
January 4, 2003 (“Fiscal 2002”), January 5, 2002 (“Fiscal 2001”) and December 30, 2000 (“Fiscal
20007).

Acquisitions during Fiscal 2004
Ocean Pacific

On August 19, 2004 (the “Acquisition Date”), the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding
common stock of Ocean Pacific Apparel Corp. {collectively with its subsidiaries, “Ocean Pacific”) for
$40.0 million in cash and the assumption and retirement of $1.0 million in debt owed to a selling
shareholder of Ocean Pacific. The assumed debt was repaid simultaneously with the closing. The
terms of the acquisition agreement require the Company to make certain contingent payments to the
sellers if (i) wholesale net revenues (both directly earned by the Company and directly earned by the
Company’s licensees) exceed a defined threshold for Fiscal 2007 and (ii) operating profits of certain
defined direct operations of the Company exceed a defined threshold of wholesale net revenues from
such defined operations for Fiscal 2007 and Fiscal 2008. The contingent payments are based on the
amount earned by the Company in excess of the applicable thresholds. The defined thresholds
represent significant growth in Ocean Pacific’s business compared to 2004. No contingent payments are
required if the defined thresholds are not exceeded by the Company. Any contingent payments
ultimately made by the Company will be recorded as an increase in the purchase price of Ocean
Pacific and an increase in goodwill.

Ocean Pacific is based in Irvine, California and is a surf and beach lifestyle brand which operates
through a network of licensees worldwide and offers a broad array of apparel and accessories catering
to men, women, young men, juniors, and kids under its Op, Ocean Pacific and Op Classics labels. The
Company believes an opportunity exists for expansion of the Ocean Pacific business with current
licensing partners and, over time, for direct opportunities across the Company’s core competencies of
swimwear, sportswear and intimate apparel.

The results of operations of Ocean Pacific have been included in the Company’s consolidated
statement of operations (as part of the Company’s Swimwear Group) since the Acquisition Date and
the balance sheet of Ocean Pacific has been included in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as
of January 1, 2005.



Distribution Facility

In April 2004, the Company entered into an agreement to terminate its joint venture agreement
related to the operation of its distribution facility located in the Netherlands. On December 31, 2004,
pursuant to the agreement, the Company acquired the remaining outstanding shares of the company
formed under the joint venture for cash payments totaling $0.4 million.

Business Groups

The Company operates in three business segments: (i) Intimate Apparel Group; (ii) Sportswear
Group; and (iit) Swimwear Group.

The following table sets forth, for each of the last three fiscal years, net revenues and operating
income (loss) for each of the Company’s business groups and for the Company on a consolidated
basis. The Company does not allocate interest expense {including the amortization of deferred
financing charges), income taxes, corporate overhead (including depreciation of corporate assets and
the cost of shared services), restructuring items or reorganization items to its business groups.
Financial information for Fiscal 2003 has been restated to reflect the correction of the Company’s
lease accounting. See Note 23 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Certain prior period
items have been reclassified between the business groups and unallocated corporate expenses to
conform to the current period presentation, including certain information technology-related expenses
and certain stock and performance-based compensation expenses:

Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002
(in thousands of dollars)
% of Total % of Total % of Total
Net revenues:
Intimate Apparel Group......... $ 588256 41.3% $ 572,813 417% $ 614,155 43.6%
Sportswear Group. . ............ 455,601 32.0% 440,516 32.1% 483,461 343%
Swimwear Group .............. 380,324 26.7% 361,092 26.3% 310,626 22.1%
Netrevenues................ $1,424,181 100.0% $1,374,421 100.0% $1,408,242  100.0%
% of Net % of Net % of Net
Revenues Revenues Revenues
Operating income (loss):
Intimate Apparel Group......... $ 55361 $ 55858 $ 47,078
Sportswear Group. ............. 53,757 31,764 20,185
Swimwear Group .............. 58,147 52,901 30,036
Group operating income. . . ...... 167,265 11.8% 140,523 10.2% 97,299 6.9%
Unallocated corporate expenses. . . (66,000) —4.6% (62,603) —4.6% (67,230) 4.8%
Restructuring items. .. .......... (5,130) -0.4% (19,101) -1.4% — 0.0%
Reorganization items . .......... — 0.0% (29,805) -22%  (114495) 8.1%
Operating income (loss) ....... $ 96,135 6.8% $ 29,014 21% §$ (84,426) —6.0%

January 1, 2005 % of Total January 3, 2004 % of Total

Total assets:

Intimate Apparel Group......... $ 303484 26.3% $ 300,634 27.6%
Sportswear Group. ............. 254,728 22.1% 244,676 22.4%
Swimwear Group .............. 356,288 30.9% 292,184 26.8%
Corporate/Other . . ............. 239,404 20.7% 253,516 23.2%
Total assets ................. $1,153,904 100.0% $1,091,010 100.0%
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Intimate Apparel Group

The Intimate Apparel Group designs, manufactures, sources and markets moderate to premium
priced intimate apparel and other products for women and better to premium priced men’s underwear
and loungewear. The Intimate Apparel Group also currently operates over 75 Calvin Klein underwear
retail stores worldwide (consisting of approximately 45 stores directly operated by the Company and
approximately 30 stores operated under retail licenses or distributorship agreements). Net revenues of
the Intimate Apparel Group accounted for approximately 41% of the Company’s net revenues in
Fiscal 2004. '

The Intimate Apparel Group targets a broad range of consumers and provides products across a
wide range of price points. The Company’s design team strives to design products of a price, quality,
fashion and style that meet its customers’ demands.

The following table sets forth the Intimate Apparel Group’s brand names and the apparel price
ranges and types:

Brand Name ‘ Price Range Type of Apparel

Calvin Klein. ...................... Better to premium Women’s intimate apparel and
sleepwear and men’s underwear
and loungewear

Choice Calvin Klein.............. ... Better to premium Women’s intimate apparel
Warners ........ ..o oo Upper moderate to better Women’s intimate apparel
Olga ... it Better Women’s intimate apparel
Body Nancy Ganz/Bodyslimmers . ... Better to premium Women’s intimate apparel
Lejaby/Rasurel/Lejaby Rose ... ... ... Better to premium Women’s intimate apparel and
swimwear
J. Lo by Jennifer Lopez ............ Better to premium Women’s intimate apparel
Axcelerate engineered by Speedo . . . .. Better to premium Women’s intimate apparel and

men’s underwear (a)

(a) Initial shipments of Axcelerate engineered by Speedo underwear are scheduled for the second
quarter of Fiscal 2005.

The Calvin Klein women’s lines consist primarily of women’s underwear, bras, panties, daywear,
loungewear and sleepwear. The Calvin Klein men’s lines consist primarily of men’s underwear, briefs,
boxers, T-shirts, loungewear and sleepwear. According to The NPD Group (“NPD”), a market
research firm, Calvin Klein men’s underwear was the number two selling brand of men’s underwear in
2004 and 2003 in U.S. department stores participating in the surveys.

The Warner’s, Olga, Lejaby and J.Lo by Jennifer Lopez (“JLO”) lines consist primarily of bras,
panties, daywear and sleepwear. The Body Nancy Ganz/Bodyslimmers line is primarily a shapewear
line. The Rasurel line consists primarily of swimwear sold in Europe. The Company’s Axcelerate
engineered by Speedo line of intimate apparel, which the Company expects to begin shipping in the
second quarter of Fiscal 2005, consists primarily of women’s performance bras, panties and tops and
men’s performance underwear and tops. '

The Company’s Intimate Apparel brands are distributed primarily through department stores,
independent retailers, chain stores, membership clubs and, to a lesser extent, specialty stores. In
addition, the Company uses its design, manufacturing and sourcing expertise to produce private label
intimate apparel at lower price points to customers that generally do not carry the Company’s branded
products. »



The following table sets forth the Intimate Apparel Group’s principal distribution channels and
customers:

Channels of Distribution Customers Brands
United States
Department Stores ............... Federated Department Warners, Olga, Body Nancy
Stores, The May Company Ganz/Bodyslimmers, JL.O, Lejaby
and Saks Inc. and Calvin Klein underwear
Independent Retailers............. Nordstrom, Dillard’s, Warner’s, Olga, Body Nancy

Neiman Marcus and Belk  Ganz/Bodyslimmers, Lejaby and
Calvin Klein underwear

Chain Stores . ............... ... Kohl’s and Sears Warner’s, Olga, Body Nancy
Ganz/Bodyslimmers and private
label

Membership Clubs . .............. Costco, Sam’s Club and Warner’s, Olga and Body Nancy

BJs Ganz/Bodyslimmers -

Canada........................... Hudson Bay Company, Warner’s, Olga, Body Nancy
Zellers, Sears and Ganz/Bodyslimmers, JLO, Calvin
Wal-Mart Klein underwear and Lejaby

Mexico ................ ..o oo Liverpool, Palacio de Warners, Olga, Body Nancy
Hierro, Suburbia, Sears Ganz/Bodyslimmers and Calvin
and Sam’s Club Klein underwear

Europe ............c..ooiiiiiin, Harrods, House of Fraser, JLO, Lejaby, Rasurel and Calvin
Galeries Lafayette, Klein underwear

Selfridges, Debenhams,
Au Printemps, Karstadt,
Kaufhof and El Corte
Ingles
Asia. ... Distributors Calvin Klein underwear
(Company-owned stores/
stores operated under
distributorship
agreements)

The Intimate Apparel Group generally markets its product lines for three retail-selling seasons
(spring, fall and holiday). Its revenues are generally consistent throughout the year, with 45.8%, 48.6%
and 50.6% of the Intimate Apparel Group’s net revenues recorded in the first halves of Fiscal 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

The Intimate Apparel Group has operations in the Americas (United States, Canada and
Mexico), Europe (Austria, Belgium, France, Germany, Italy, the Netherlands, Spain, Switzerland and
the United Kingdom) and Asia (Hong Kong, Singapore, China and Macau). In January 2004, the
Company sold its intimate apparel production facility located in Honduras. In the first quarter of
Fiscal 2004, the Company sold its intimate apparel production facility located in San Luis, Mexico. In
Fiscal 2003, the Company announced its plan to exit its Warner’s business in Europe and on May 21,
2004, the Company entered into a licensing agreement for its Warner’s business in Europe. According
to the terms of the agreement, the licensee pays royalties based upon sales. The licensee is not
required to pay minimum royalties until Fiscal 2007 and no royalties have been earned to date.




The following table sets forth the domestic and international net revenues of the Intimate

Apparel Group:
Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002

Net % of Net % of Net % of
Revenues Total Revenues Total Revenues Total

{in thousands of dollars)

Net revenues:

United States $282,866 48.1% $295,655 51.6% $370,857 60.4%
International 305,390 51.9% 277,158 48.4% 243,298 39.6%
$588,256 100.0% $572,813 100.0% $614,155 100.0%

The Company’s Calvin Klein underwear, Warner’s, Olga, Body Nancy Ganz/Bodyslimmers and
JLO products (generating approximately 82% of the Intimate Apparel group’s net revenues) are
sourced from third parties. Lejaby’s products are produced in the Company’s facilities located in
France, with a portion of the manufacturing process subcontracted to a third party located in Tunisia.
Sourcing allows the Company to maximize production flexibility while avoiding significant capital
expenditures, work-in-process inventory buildups and the costs of managing a large production work
force. The Company inspects products manufactured by suppliers to ensure that they meet its quality
and production standards.

Sportswear Group

The Sportswear Group designs, sources and markets moderate to premium priced men’s, women’s
and juniors’ sportswear. Net revenues of the Sportswear Group accounted for 32% of the Company’s
net revenues in Fiscal 2004. The following table sets forth the Sportswear Group’s brand names and
their apparel price ranges and types:

Brand Name (a) Price Range Type of Apparel

CalvinKlein. ...................... Better to premium Men’s, women'’s, juniors’ and
children’s designer jeanswear
(bottoms and tops)

Chaps ... Moderate Men’s sportswear, jeanswear,
activewear, knit and woven sports
shirts and swimwear

(a) In December 2003 the Company sold its White Stag® trademark to Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
Pursuant to the sale agreement, the Company provides certain sourcing and design services
related to the White Stag women’s sportswear line. The design services agreement extends though
January 2007.

The Calvin Klein line includes men’s and women’s jeans and jeans-related products, including
khakis, knit and woven tops and shirts. The Company renegotiated the term of its Calvin Klein jeans
license in the second quarter of Fiscal 2003, providing the Company with greater control over the
design and product development calendar. The Company believes that this increased flexibility has
allowed it to provide better service to retailers, which has resulted in improved sell-through of
merchandise at retail.

Chaps is a moderately priced men’s sportswear line providing a more casual product offering to
the consumer. During Fiscal 2003, the Company negotiated the amendment and extension of the
Chaps license through 2018, assuming the exercise of renewal options and compliance with certain
conditions. The renegotiated license gives the Company an opportunity to extend the brand in terms
of both product and distribution channels, which allowed the Company to launch the Chaps denim
line in June 2004. The Chaps denim line accounted for $19.9 million of the Company’s net revenues in
Fiscal 2004. In December 2004, the Company introduced the Chaps brand to the mid-tier distribution
channel.



The Sportswear Group’s apparel products are distributed primarily through department stores,

independent retailers, chain stores, membership clubs, mass merchandisers and, to a lesser extent,

specialty stores.

The following table sets forth the Sportswear Group’s principal distribution channels and

customers.

Channels of Distribution

Customers

Brands

United States
Department Stores

Independent Retailers

Chain Stores
Membership Clubs
Mass Merchandisers

...........................

Federated Department
Stores and The May
Company

Saks Inc.

Nordstrom, Dillard’s and
Belk

Kohl’s

Costco and Sam’s Club
Wal-Mart

Military

Hudson Bay Company and
Sears

Liverpool, Sears and
membership clubs

Calvin Klein jeans

Calvin Klein jeans and Chaps
Calvin Klein jeans and Chaps

Chaps

Calvin Klein jeans

Design and sourcing services
related to the White Stag
trademark

Calvin Klein jeans and Chaps
Calvin Klein jeans and Chaps

Calvin Klein jeans and Chaps

The Sportswear Group generally markets its products for four retail selling seasons (spring,
summer, fall and holiday). New styles, fabrics and colors are introduced based upon consumer
preferences and market trends and coincide with the appropriate selling season. The Sportswear
Group recorded 41.3%, 47.9% and 45.0% of its net revenues in the first halves of Fiscal 2004, 2003 and

2002, respectively.

The Sportswear Group has operations in the United States, Canada and Mexico.

The following table sets forth the domestic and international net revenues of the Sportswear

Group:
Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002
Net % of Net % of Net % of
Revenues Total Revenues Total Revenues _Total
(in thousands of dom
Net revenues:
United States $388,907 85.4% $388,529 88.2% $430,111 89.0%
International 66,694 14.6% 51,987 11.8% 53,350 _11.0%
$455,601 100.0% $440,516 100.0% $483,461 100.0%

The Sportswear Group’s products are entirely sourced from third party suppliers worldwide.

Swimwear Group

The Swimwear Group designs, manufactures, sources and markets mass market to premium
priced swimwear, fitness apparel, swim accessories and related products and licenses its owned brand
names to suppliers of apparel and other products in widely diversified channels -of distribution. Net
revenues of the Swimwear Group accounted for 27% of the Company’s net revenues in Fiscal 2004.




The following table sets forth the Swimwear Group’s significant brand names and their apparel
price ranges and types:

Brand Name Price Range Type of Apparel

Speedo ........ ... L. Better Men’s and women’s competitive
swimwear, competitive and non-
competitive swim accessories,
men’s swimwear and coordinating
T-shirts, women’s fitness swimwear,
fashion swimwear and activewear
and children’s swimwear

AnneCole ........................ Better to premium Women’s swimwear
Cole of California.................. Upper moderate to better Women’s swimwear
Catalina .......................... Mass market Women’s, juniors’ and girls’
swimwear
Lifeguard ......................... Upper moderate to better Men’s and women’s swimwear and
related products
Nautica.................ccccvun.. Upper moderate to better Women’s, juniors’ and girls’
swimwear, beachwear and
accessories
CalvinKlein(a) ................... Better to premium Men’s, women’s and juniors’
swimwear
" Choice Calvin Klein (b)............. Better to premium Men’s, women’s and juniors’
swimwear
Ocean Pacific (¢) .................. Better to premium Men’s, women’s, young men’s,

juniors’ and kid’s swimwear,
sportswear and related products

Michael Kors (d) .................. Better to premium Women'’s and juniors’ swimwear

Axcelerate engineered by Speedo(e) .. Better Men’s and women’s swimwear,
activewear and accessories

Private Label .. .................... Moderate Women’s and juniors’ swimwear

(a) Initial shipments of Calvin Klein swimwear are scheduled for Fiscal 2007 in the United States and
Fiscal 2005 in Europe.

(b) Shipments of Choice Calvin Klein swimwear commenced in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2004 in
the United States and initial shipments are scheduled in Fiscal 2005 in Europe.

(c¢) In Fiscal 2004, Ocean Pacific products were sold by third-party licensees. Beginning in the second
half of Fiscal 2005, the Company will sell certain Ocean Pacific products directly to customers.

(d) Expected to be introduced in the third quarter of Fiscal 2005.

(e) Initial shipments of Axcelerate engineered by Speedo activewear, swimwear and accessories are
scheduled for the second quarter of Fiscal 2005.

The Company believes that Speedo is the pre-eminent competitive swimwear brand in the world
and innovations by the Swimwear Group and its licensor, SIL, have led and continue to lead the
competitive swimwear industry. For example, in March 2004, Speedo introduced the next generation of
its Fastskin® suit (the “FS II”), developed by the Swimwear Group and SIL. Based on data compiled
by the Company’s Swimwear Group, the Company believes that over 67% of the total U.S. swimming
medal winners at the 2004 Summer Olympic Games in Athens raced in Speedo suits. Speedo
competitive swimwear is primarily distributed through chain stores, sporting goods stores, team
dealers, swim specialty shops and the Company’s Speedo internet website. Speedo competitive
swimwear accounted for approximately 13.0% of the Swimwear Group’s net revenues in Fiscal 2004.
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The Company capitalizes on the competitive Speedo image in marketing its Speedo brand fitness
and fashion swimwear by incorporating performance elements in its more fashion-oriented products.
Speedo fitness and fashion swimwear, Speedo swimwear for children and Speedo active apparel are
distributed in the United States, Mexico, Canada and the Caribbean through department and specialty
stores, independent retailers, chain stores, sporting goods stores, team dealers, catalog retailers,
membership clubs and the Company’s Speedo internet website. Speedo fashion swimwear, active
apparel and related products accounted for approximately 30.8% of the Swimwear Group’s net
revenues in Fiscal 2004. :

Speedo accessories, including swim goggles, footwear, water-based fitness products, water toys,
electronics and other swim and fitness-related products for adults and children, are primarily
distributed through sporting goods stores, chain stores, swim specialty shops, membership clubs and
mass merchandisers. Speedo accessories accounted for approximately 23.7% of the Swimwear Group’s
net revenues in Fiscal 2004 inclusive of $26.5 million of net revenues from the sale of Speedo footwear
products.

The Swimwear Group’s Designer Swimwear business unit designs, sources, manufactures and sells
a broad range of fashion swimwear and beachwear for girls, juniors and women. Designer Swimwear
products are distributed through many channels of distribution in the United States, Mexico and
Canada, including department stores, independent retailers, chain stores, membership clubs, mass
merchandisers and swim specialty shops. In addition, the Company uses its design, manufacturing and
sourcing expertise to produce private label swimwear at lower price points to customers that generally
do not carry the Company’s branded products. Designer Swimwear accounted for approximately
30.5% of the Swimwear Group’ net revenues in Fiscal 2004.

The Swimwear Group’s Ocean Pacific business unit was acquired by the Company on August 19,
2004. Ocean Pacific is a surf and beach lifestyle brand which operates through a network of licensees
worldwide. The licensees offer a broad array of apparel and accessories catering to men, women,
young men, juniors and kids under its Op, Ocean Pacific and Op Classics labels. The Company
believes an opportunity exists for expansion of the Ocean Pacific business with current licensing
partners and, over time, for direct opportunities across the Company’s core competencies of swimwear,
sportswear and intimate apparel.

The following table sets forth the Swimwear Group’s principal distribution channels and
customers:

Channels of Distribution (a) Customers Brands (a)
United States
Department Stores ............... Federated Department Speedo swimwear and accessories,
Stores, The May Company Anne Cole, Cole of California,
and Saks Inc. Nautica and Choice Calvin Klein
swimwear
Independent Retailers............. Nordstrom, Dillard’s, Anne Cole, Speedo swimwear,

Neiman Marcus and Belk  Nautica swimwear and Choice
Calvin Klein swimwear

Chain Stores ................. ... J. C. Penney, Kohl’s and  Speedo swimwear and accessories
Sears

Membership Clubs . .............. Costco and Sam’s Club Speedo swimwear, active apparel

and accessories
Mass Merchandisers . ............. Wal-Mart and Target Catalina (wholesale basis), private
. label and Speedo accessories

Other. ..., Military, Victoria’s Secret  Speedo swimwear and accessories,
Catalog and The Sports Lifeguard, Anne Cole, Nautica and
Authority private label
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Channels of Distribution (a) Customers Brands (a)

Canada........................... Hudson Bay Company, Speedo swimwear and accessories,
Sears and membership Nautica and Anne Cole
clubs

Mexico .........ooovviiiiiiin Liverpool, Palacio De Speedo swimwear and accessories,
Hierro, Marti, Suburbia, Nautica, Anne Cole and Catalina
Wal-Mart and membership
clubs

(a) In Fiscal 2004 the Company’s Ocean Pacific business was operated through a global network of
licensees who distribute a broad range of apparel and accessories through multiple channels of
distribution including department stores, swim specialty stores and chain stores. Beginning in the
second half of Fiscal 2005, the Company will sell certain Ocean Pacific products directly to
customers.

The Swimwear Group generally markets its products for three retail selling seasons (cruise, spring
and summer). New styles, fabrics and colors are introduced based upon consumer preferences and
market trends and coincide with the appropriate selling season. The swimwear business is seasonal.
Approximately 70% of the Swimwear Group’s net revenues were recorded in the first halves of Fiscal
2004, Fiscal 2003 and Fiscal 2002.

The Swimwear Group has operations in the United States, Mexico and Canada and its licensees
operate worldwide.

The following table sets forth the domestic and international net revenues of the Swimwear

Group:
Fiscal 2004 Fiscal 2003 Fiscal 2002

Net % of Net % of Net % of
Revenues Total Revenues Total Revenues Total

(in thousands of dollars)

Net revenues:

United States $361,770 95.1% $344,980 95.5% $295,675 95.2%
International 18,554 4.9% 16,112 4.5% 14,951 4.8%
$380,324 100.0% $361,092 100.0% $310,626 100.0%

The Swimwear Group’s products are manufactured both in the Company’s facilities in Mexico and
Canada and sourced from third party contractors primarily in the United States, Mexico, Europe and
Asia,

Customers

The Company’s products are widely distributed to department and specialty stores, independent
retailers, chain stores, membership clubs and mass merchandise stores in North America, Asia and
Europe. No one customer accounted for more than 10% of the Company’s net revenues in Fiscal 2004.
One customer, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., accounted for approximately 10.5% of the Company’s net
revenues in Fiscal 2003. In Fiscal 2002, one customer, Federated Department Stores, accounted for
approximately 10.5% of the Company’s net revenues.

The Company offers a diversified portfolio of brands across multiple distribution channels to a
wide range of customers. The Company utilizes focus groups, market research and in-house and
licensor design staffs to align its brands with the preferences of consumers. The Company believes
that this strategy reduces its reliance on any single distribution channel and allows it to market
products with designs and features that appeal to a wide range of consumers at varying price points.
The Company offers its Calvin Klein underwear products through over 75 Calvin Klein underwear
retail stores worldwide (consisting of approximately 45 stores directly operated by the Company and
approximately 30 stores operated under retail licenses or distributorship agreements). In addition, the
Company distributes Speedo products and Calvin Klein underwear directly to customers through its
internet sites.
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Advertising, Marketing and Promotion

The Company devotes significant resources to advertising and promoting its various brands to
increase awareness of its products with retail consumers and, consequently, to increase consumer
demand.

Total advertising, marketing and promotion expense (including cooperative advertising programs)
was $86.0 million, or 6.0% of net revenues, in Fiscal 2004 compared with $73.8 million, or 5.4% of net
revenues, in Fiscal 2003 and $105.7 million, or 7.5% of net revenues, in Fiscal 2002. The Company
focuses its advertising and promotional spending on brand and/or product-specific advertising,
primarily through point of sale product displays, visuals and individual in-store promotions. Certain of
the Company’s brands also advertise in national print publications. In addition, the Swimwear Group
sponsors a number of world-class swimmers, divers, volleyball players, surfers, skateboarders and
tri-athletes who wear its products in competition and participate in various promotional activities on
behalf of the Speedo and Ocean Pacific brands.

The Company incurred approximately $2.0 million in advertising expenses during Fiscal 2004
related to the 2004 Summer Olympic Games in Athens, which included sponsorship-related programs
for Olympic athletes. These programs were highly visible to viewers and spectators of the Games and
the Company believes that the programs provided incremental advertising exposure over and above
the cost of the programs. In addition, in Fiscal 2004, the Intimate Apparel Group incurred
approximately $3.1 million in advertising costs associated with the launch of the JLO lingerie line and
the Sportswear Group incurred approximately $2.6 million in advertising costs associated with the
introduction of Chaps denim. The balance of the Company’s total advertising, marketing and
promotion expense related to amounts incurred to advertise and promote the Company’s existing
product lines.

The Company participates in cooperative advertising programs with many of its customers,
reimbursing customers for a portion of the cost incurred by the customer in placing print advertising
featuring its products. Cooperative advertising expenses included in advertising, marketing and
promotion expenses were $18.4 million, $18.9 million and $31.6 miilion for Fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

The Company’s licenses for the Calvin Klein, Nautica and Michael Kors trademarks include
provisions requiring the Company to spend a specified percentage (ranging from 1% to 3%) of
revenues on advertising and promotion related to the licensed products. The Company also benefits
from general advertising campaigns conducted by its licensors. Though some of these advertising
campaigns do not focus specifically on the Company’s licensed products and often include the products
of other licensees in addition to its own, the Company believes it benefits from the general brand
recognition that these campaigns generate.

Sales

The Company’s wholesale customers are served by more than 300 salaried and commissioned
sales representatives who are generally assigned to specific brands and products. The Company also
employs sales coordinators who assist its customers in presenting its products effectively and in
educating consumers about its various products. In addition, the Company has customer service
departments for each business unit that assist its sales representatives and customers in tracking goods
available for sale, determining order and shipping lead times and tracking the status of open orders.

The Company utilizes Electronic Data Interchange programs (“EDI”) wherever possible, which
permit it to receive purchase orders electronically from customers and, in some cases, to transmit
invoices electronically to customers. EDI helps the Company ensure that its customers receive its
products in a timely and efficient manner.

Distribution

The Company distributes its products to its wholesale customers and retail stores from its various
distribution facilities located in the United States (four primary facilities), Mexico (two facilities),
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Canada {one facility), France (one facility), Hong Kong (one facility) and the Netherlands (one
facility). The Company acquired 100% control of the management of the Netherlands facility on
December 31, 2004. Previously, that facility had been managed through a joint venture. Several of the
Company’s facilities are shared by more than one of its business units and/or operating segments.
During Fiscal 2003, the Company consolidated the distribution and logistics of its Calvin Klein jeans
operation into its primary distribution facility in Duncansville, Pennsylvania. These services were
previously provided by a third party. During Fiscal 2004, the Company completed the process of
consolidating its two Canadian distribution operations into one facility. The consolidation of the
above-mentioned facilities resulted in cost savings of approximately $7.5 million related to
warehousing and distribution expenses for Fiscal 2004 compared to Fiscal 2003. The Company owns
one of its distribution facilities and leases all of its other distribution facilities.

Raw Materials

The Company’s products are comprised of raw materials which consist principally of cotton, wool,
silk, synthetic and cotton-synthetic blends of fabrics and yarns. Raw materials are available from
multiple sources. Neither the Company, nor, to the Company’s knowledge, any of its third party
contractors, have experienced any significant shortage of raw materials.

Trademarks and Licensing Agreements

The Company owns and licenses a portfolio of highly recognized brand names. Most of the
trademarks used by the Company are either owned, licensed in perpetuity or, in the case of Calvin
Klein jeans, licensed for a term in excess of 40 years. The Company’s core brands have been
established in their respective markets for extended periods and have attained a high level of
consumer awareness. The Speedo brand has been in existence for 77 years and the Company believes
Speedo is the dominant competitive swimwear brand in the United States. The Warner’s and Olga
brands have been in existence for 132 and 65 years, respectively; Lejaby has been in existence for
more than 50 years; and Calvin Klein, Ocean Pacific and Chaps have each been in existence for more
than 25 years. According to NPD, Warner’s, Olga and Calvin Klein were three of the top ten selling
intimate apparel brands in U.S. department stores participating in the survey in Fiscal 2004.

The Company regards its intellectual property in general and, in particular, its owned trademarks
and licenses, as its most valuable assets. The Company believes the trademarks and licenses have
substantial value in the marketing of its products. The Company has protected its trademarks by
registering them with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and with governmental agencies in other
countries where its products are manufactured and sold. The Company works vigorously to enforce
and protect its trademark rights by engaging in regular market reviews, helping local law enforcement
authorities detect and prosecute counterfeiters, issuing cease-and-desist letters against third parties
infringing or denigrating its trademarks and initiating litigation as necessary. The Company also works
with trade groups and industry participants seeking to strengthen laws relating to the protection of
intellectual property rights in markets around the world.

Although the specific terms of each of the Company’s license agreements vary, generally the
agreements provide for minimum royalty payments and/or royalty payments based on a percentage of
net sales. The license agreements generally also grant the licensor the right to approve any designs
marketed by the Company.

The Company has license agreements in perpetuity with SIL which permit the Company to
design, manufacture and market certain men’s, women’ and children’s apparel, including swimwear,
sportswear and a wide variety of other products, using the Speedo trademark and certain other
trademarks, including Surf Walker® and Axcelerate engineered by Speedo. The Company’s license to
use Speedo and other trademarks was granted in perpetuity subject to certain conditions and is
exclusive in the United States and its territories and possessions, Canada, Mexico and the Caribbean.
The license agreements provide for minimum royalty payments to be credited against future royalty
payments based on a percentage of net sales. The license agreements may be terminated with respect
to a particular territory in the event the Company does not pay royalties or abandons the trademark
in such territory. Moreover, the license agreements may be terminated in the event the Company
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manufactures, or is controlled by a company that manufactures, racing/competitive swimwear,
swimwear caps or swimwear accessories under a different trademark, as specifically defined in the
license agreements. The Company generally may sublicense the Speedo trademark within the
geographic regions covered by the licenses. SIL retains the right to use or license the Speedo
trademark in other jurisdictions and actively uses or licenses the Speedo trademark throughout the
world outside of the Company’s licensed territory.

In 1992, the Company entered into an agreement with Speedo Holdings B.V. and its successor,
SIL, granting certain additional irrevocable rights to the Company relating to the use of the Authentic
Fimess name and service mark, which rights are in addition to the rights under the license agreements
with SIL.

The Company has an exclusive worldwide license agreement with Anne Cole and Anne Cole
Design Studio Ltd. Under the license agreement, the Company has the right to use, in perpetuity, the
Anne Cole trademark for women’s swimwear, activewear and beachwear and children’s swimwear,
subject to certain terms and conditions. Under the license agreement, the Company is required to pay
certain minimum guaranteed annual royalties, to be credited against earned royalties, based on a
percentage of net sales. Anne Cole and Anne Cole Design Studio Ltd. have the right to approve
products bearing the licensed trademark, as set forth in the license.

The Company has a license to develop, manufacture and market designer jeanswear products
under the Calvin Klein trademark in North, South and Central America. The initial term of the
license expires on December 31, 2034 and is extendable by the Company for a further ten-year term
expiring on December 31, 2044 if the Company achieves certain sales targets in the United States,
Mexico and Canada. The Company’s exclusive worldwide license agreement with Calvin Klein, Inc. to
distribute Calvin Klein men’s accessories expired on June 30, 2004. The Company extended this
license agreement through December 31, 2005 for Western Europe only (subject to certain terms and
conditions).

All of the Calvin Klein trademarks (including all variations and formatives thereof) for all
products and services are owned by the Calvin Klein Trademark Trust. The trust is co-owned by
Calvin Klein, Inc. and the Company. The Class B and C Series Estates of the trust correspond to the
Calvin Klein trademarks for men’s, women’s and children’s underwear, intimate apparel and sleepwear
and are owned by the Company. Accordingly, as owner of the Class B and C Estate Shares of the
trust corresponding to these product categories, the Company is the beneficial owner of the Calvin
Klein trademarks for men’s, women’s and children’s underwear, intimate apparel, loungewear and
sleepwear throughout the entire world.

In November 2003, the Company entered into an exclusive worldwide license agreement with
Sweetface Fashion Company, LLC for the design, sourcing, distribution, advertising, marketing and
sale of women’s panties, bras, shapewear, sleepwear, loungewear and daywear bearing the J.Lo by
Jennifer Lopez brand name. Assuming compliance with certain terms and conditions for the exercise
of two renewal options, this license can be extended through 2013.

The Company has the exclusive right to use the Chaps trademark for men’s sportswear, jeanswear,
activewear, sports shirts and swimwear in the United States and its territories and possessions,
including Puerto Rico, Mexico and Canada and has rights of first refusal with respect to Europe. The
license extends through December 31, 2008, subject to the Company’s right to renew for two
additional five-year terms beyond the expiration date up to and including December 31, 2018,
provided that the Company has achieved certain levels of minimum earned royalties.

In March 2003, the Company entered into an exclusive license agreement to manufacture,
distribute and sell Nautica women’s, juniors’ and girls’ swimwear and related products in the United
States, Canada, Mexico and the Caribbean Islands for an initial term of four years. The license
agreement may be renewed at the Company’s option for two additional years if it achieves certain
sales targets.

In July 1995, the Company entered into a license agreement with Lifeguard Licensing Corp.
Under the license agreement, the Company has the exclusive right to manufacture, source, sublicense,
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distribute, promote and advertise Lifeguard apparel worldwide. In September 2003, the Lifeguard
license was amended and extended to add other product categories, namely accessories and sporting
equipment. The current term of the license agreement expires on June 30, 2010. The agreement
includes four renewal options, each of which permits the Company to extend for an additional
five-year term (through June 20, 2030) subject to compliance with certain conditions.

In June 2004, the Company entered into a license agreement with Michael Kors, L.L.C. The
Company has the worldwide (excluding Japan) right to manufacture and distribute Michael Kors® and
MICHAEL Michael Kors® products in the designer collection market segment and in the better
market segment. The current term of the license agreement expires on June 30, 2008. The agreement
includes two renewal options, each of which permits the Company to extend for an additional
three-year term (through June 30, 2014) subject to compliance with certain conditions.

In August 2004, the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding common stock of Ocean Pacific.
Ocean Pacific operates through a network of licensees worldwide and offers a broad array of apparel
and accessories catering to men, women, young men, juniors and kids under various trademarks, the
most recognizable being its Op Ocean Pacific and Op Classics labels. The Ocean Pacific licenses
generally grant the licensees the right to design, market and distribute licensed products in specific
geographic areas. The terms for Ocean Pacific licenses range from one to 26 years. Licenses that are
set to expire by 2008 accounted for approximately 57% of Ocean Pacific’s royalty income for Fiscal
2004.

On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates entering into distribution or license agreements with
other companies that would permit those companies to market products under the Company’s
trademarks. In evaluating a potential distributor or licensee, the Company generally considers the
experience, financial stability, manufacturing performance and marketing ability of the proposed
licensee.

Some of the license agreements with third parties will expire by their terms over the next several
years. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to negotiate and conclude extensions
of such agreements on similar economic terms or at all.

International Operations

In addition to its operations in the United States, the Company has operations in Canada,
Mexico, Europe (Austria, Belgium, France, Germany, Italy, the Netherlands, Portugal, Spain,
Switzerland and the United Kingdom) and Asia (Hong Kong, Singapore, China and Macau), which
engage in sales, manufacturing and/or marketing activities. International operations generated $390.6
million, or 27.4% of net revenues, in Fiscal 2004 compared with $345.3 million, or 25.1% of net
revenues, in Fiscal 2003 and $310.6 million, or 22.1% of net revenues, in Fiscal 2002.

The movement of foreign currency exchange rates affects the Company’s results of operations.
With the exception of the fluctuation in the rates of exchange of the local currencies in which the
Company’s subsidiaries in Canada and Western Europe conduct their business, the Company does not
believe that its operations in Canada and Western Europe are subject to risks that are significantly
different from those of its domestic operations. Mexico historically has been subject to high rates of
inflation and currency restrictions that may, from time to time, adversely affect the Company’s
Mexican operation. However, fluctuation of the Mexican peso against the United States dollar is not
expected to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of
operations.

The Company has manufacturing facilities in Canada, Mexico and France. The Company has
distribution facilities in Canada, Mexico, France, Hong Kong and the Netherlands. The Swimwear
Group operates manufacturing facilities in Mexico pursuant to duty-advantaged (commonly referred
to as “Item 807”) programs. A portion of the Company’s Warner’s, Olga and Body Nancy
Ganz/Bodyslimmers products are currently manufactured by a third party supplier in Honduras. A
loss of production from this supplier could have a short-term adverse effect on the Company’s ability
to deliver these products to its customers. The Company has many potential sources of supply and
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believes a disruption at any one facility would not have a material adverse effect on the Company.
The Company maintains insurance policies designed to substantially mitigate the financial effects of
any disruption in its sources of supply.

The majority of the Company’s purchases which are imported into the United States are
denominated in United States dollars or Hong Kong dollars (which currently fluctuate in tandem with
the United States dollar) and, therefore, are not subject to currency fluctuations.

Substantially all of the Company’s products sold in the United States are imported and are
subject to federal customs laws, which impose tariffs as well as import quota restrictions established by
the United States Department of Commerce. Importation of goods from some countries may be
subject to embargo by United States Customs authorities if shipments exceed quota limits. The
Company closely monitors import quotas and can, in most cases, shift production to contractors
located in countries with available quotas or to domestic manufacturing facilities. As a result, the
existence of import quotas has not had a material effect on the Company’s business. The Company
expects the elimination of import quotas in 2005 from China and Brazil to result in a higher level of
competition among sellers, resulting in lower purchase prices for the Company’s goods and purchase
prices for apparel products in general.

Competition

The apparel industry is highly competitive. The Company competes with many domestic and
foreign apparel manufacturers and suppliers, some of which are larger and more diversified and have
greater financial and other resources than the Company. In addition to competition from other
branded apparel manufacturers, the Company competes in certain product lines with department
stores, mass merchandisers and specialty store private label programs.

The Company offers a diversified portfolio of brands across a wide range of price points in many
channels of distribution in an effort to appeal to all consumers. The Company competes on the basis
of product design, quality, brand recognition, price, product differentiation, marketing and advertising,
customer service and other factors. Although some of its competitors have greater sales, the Company
does not believe that any single competitor dominates any channel in which it operates. The Company
believes that its ability to serve multiple distribution channels with a diversified portfolio of products
under widely recognized brand names distinguishes it from many of its competitors.

Government Regulations

The Company is subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations affecting its business,
including those promulgated under the Occupational Safety and Health Act, the Consumer Product
Safety Act, the Flammable Fabrics Act, the Textile Fiber Product Identification Act, the rules and
regulations of the Consumer Products Safety Commission and various environmental laws and
regulations. The Company’s international businesses are subject to similar regulations in the countries
where they operate. The Company believes that it is in compliance in all material respects with all
applicable governmental regulations.

The Company’s operations are also subject to various international trade agreements and
regulations such as the North American Free Trade Agreement, the Central American Free Trade
Agreement and the Caribbean Basin Initiative, and the activities and regulations of the World Trade
Organization. Generally, these trade agreements benefit the Company’s business by reducing or
eliminating the duties and/or quotas assessed on products manufactured in a particular country.
However, trade agreements can also impose requirements that negatively affect the Company’s
business, such as limiting the countries from which it can purchase raw materials and setting quotas on
products that may be imported from a particular country. The Company monitors trade-related
matters pending with the United States government for potential positive or negative effects on its
operations.

Employees
As of January 1, 2005, the Company employed 10,662 employees. As of January 1, 2005,
approximately 29% of the Company’s employees, all of whom are engaged in the manufacture and
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distribution of its products, were represented by labor unions. The Company considers labor relations
with its employees to be satisfactory and has not experienced any significant interruption of its
operations due to labor disagreements.

The Company monitors all of its owned and contracted factories to ensure their continued human
rights and labor compliance and adherence to all applicable laws and the Company’s own business
partner manufacturing guidelines.

All of the Company’s contractors are required, by the terms of such contractor’s agreement with
the Company, to execute the Company’s business partner manufacturing guidelines. All purchase
orders and letters of credit contain similar contractual requirements. Company personnel regularly
conduct on-site visits to monitor a contractor’s working environment, compliance with local labor laws
and compliance with the Company’s business partner manufacturing guidelines.

The Company has engaged third-party labor compliance auditing companies to monitor its
facilities and those of its contractors. These auditing companies periodically audit all the Company’s
foreign and domestic contractors’ payroll records, age certificates, and compliance with local labor
laws and compliance with the Company’s business partner manufacturing guidelines. These auditing
companies also conduct unannounced visits, surveillance and random interviews with contractors,
employees and supervisors. In addition, these companies regularly conduct labor compliance training
sessions for management personnel at the Company’s factories around the world, as well as for the
Company’s own sourcing and production personnel.

Backlog

Open orders for shipments by the Company’s Swimwear Group totaled $219.1 million as of
January 1, 2005 and $205.9 million as of January 3, 2004. A substantial portion of net revenues of the
Company’s other businesses is based on orders for immediate delivery and, therefore, backlog is not
necessarily indicative of future net revenues.

Asset Sales

During the course of the Chapter 11 Cases (as defined below), the Company obtained the
Bankruptcy Court’s authorization to sell assets and settle liabilities for amounts other than those
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. The Company sold certain personal property, certain
owned buildings and land and other assets, including certain inventory associated with the Company’s
domestic outlet retail stores generating net proceeds of approximately $36.3 million, including $23.2
million from the sale of inventory related to certain closed outlet stores. The sale of assets in Fiscal
2002 and Fiscal 2003 did not result in a material gain or loss since the Company had previously
written-down assets identified for potential disposition to their estimated net realizable value.
Substantially all of the net proceeds from the sale of assets were used to reduce outstanding
borrowings under the Amended Debtor-in-Possession Financing Facility (“Amended DIP”) entered
into in connection with the Chapter 11 Cases, or to provide collateral for outstanding trade and
standby letters of credit.

In addition, during the first quarter of Fiscal 2002, the Company sold the business and
substantially all of the assets of GJIM Manufacturing Ltd. (“GIM”), a private label manufacturer of
women’s sleepwear, and Penhaligon’s Ltd. (“Penhaligon’s”), a United Kingdom based retailer of
perfumes, soaps, toiletries and other products. The sales of GJM and Penhaligon’s generated aggregate
net proceeds of approximately $20.5 million and an aggregate net loss of approximately $2.9 million.
Proceeds from the sale of GJM and Penhaligon’s were used to: (i) reduce amounts outstanding under
certain debt agreements of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries which were not part of the Chapter 11
Cases (approximately $4.8 million); (ii) reduce amounts outstanding under the Amended DIP
(approximately $4.2 million); (iii) create an escrow fund (subsequently disbursed in June 2002) for the
benefit of pre-petition secured lenders (approximately $9.4 million); and (iv) create an escrow fund
(subsequently disbursed to the Company in February 2003) for the benefit of the purchasers of GIM
and Penhaligon’s for potential indemnification claims and for any working capital valuation
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adjustments (approximately $1.7 million). In September 2002, the Company sold other assets
generating approximately $0.2 million of net proceeds and a loss on the sale of approximately $1.4
million.

In November 2003, the Company entered into an agreement to sell its A.B.S. by Allen Schwartz®
(“ABS”) business unit. The sale was finalized on January 30, 2004. The sale price was $15.4 million in
cash plus the assumption of up to $2.0 million in liabilities. The Company recorded, as part of the loss
from discontinued operations in the statement of operations, a loss pursuant to the sale of the ABS
business unit of $3.1 million. The loss included an impairment charge of $3.0 million related to the !
write-down of the ABS trademark to net realizable value at January 3, 2004. Cash proceeds from the !
sale, net of related expenses, were $15.2 million.

During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2003, the Company entered into an agreement to sell its
manufacturing operations located in Villanueva, Honduras. The manufacturing operations sold
consisted of one cutting center and four sewing facilities. The sale was finalized in January 2004 and,
pursuant to the sale agreement, the Company sold certain items of property and machinery for $0.5
million. Included in restructuring charges in Fiscal 2003 is an impairment charge of approximately $1.5
million related to the write-down of these assets to net realizable value based on the selling price as
stated in the agreement. ‘

During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2003, the Company sold its White Stag trademark to Wal-Mart
Stores, Inc. for $28.7 million. Pursuant to the sale agreement, the Company received $10.0 million in
cash in December 2003 and a note receivable for an aggregate of $18.7 million (plus interest). The
note, including interest, is payable on or before March 2, 2007. The Company recorded a loss on the
sale of the White Stag trademark of $3.8 million, which is included in other income (expense) in the
consolidated statement of operations for the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004.

During the first quarter of Fiscal 2004, the Company entered into an agreement to sell its
manufacturing operation located in San Luis, Mexico. The manufacturing operation sold consisted of a
combined cutting and sewing facility. The sale was finalized in March 2004 and, pursuant to the sale
agreement, the Company sold certain items of property and machinery for $0.1 million.

During Fiscal 2004, the Company sold certain real property in the United Kingdom and Costa
Rica for total proceeds of $2.3 million. The Company recorded a net gain of $0.5 million, as part of
restructuring items, related to these facilities.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The executive officers of the Company, their age and their position as of March 14, 2005 are set
forth below:

Name Age Position

Joseph R. Gromek................. - 58 Director, President and Chief Executive Officer

Lawrence R. Rutkowski ............ 47 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Roger A. Willilams ................. 57 President—Swimwear Group

Helen McCluskey.................. 49  President—Intimate Apparel Group

Frank Tworecke ................... 58 President—Sportswear Group

Stanley P. Silverstein ............... 52 Executive Vice President — Corporate Development and
Chief Administrative Officer

Jay A. Galluzzo ................ ... 30 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Mr. Gromek has served as the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer since April 2003,
at which time he was also elected to the Board of Directors. From 1996 to January 2002, Mr. Gromek
served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Brooks Brothers, Inc. From January 2002 until he
joined the Company in April 2003, Mr. Gromek worked as an independent consultant. Over the last
25 years, Mr. Gromek has held senior management positions with Saks Fifth Avenue, Limited Brands,
Inc. and Ann Taylor Stores Corporation. Mr. Gromek is the Vice Chairman of the Board of Trustees
of Volunteers of America and a member of the Board of Governors of the Parsons School of Design.

Mr. Rutkowski currently serves as the Company’s Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, From September 2003 until March 2, 2005, Mr. Rutkowski served as the Company’s Senior
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Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Over the last 20 years, Mr. Rutkowski has held senior
management positions at National Broadcasting Company/General Electric and Walt Disney Studios.
From December 1999 to June 2003, he served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
at Primedia, Inc. From November 1993 to December 1999, he served at National Broadcasting
Company/General Electric as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer—Strategic Business
Development and Controller of Corporate Finance.

Mr. Williams has served as the Company’s President—Swimwear Group since May 2002. Mr.
Williams owned his own private consulting firm from 1998 to 2002. Between 1994 and 1997, Mr.
Williams served as Executive Vice President of Guess?. He also served as Executive Vice President of
Donna Karan from 1992 to 1994. From 1982 to 1990, Mr. Williams served as Chief Operating Officer
of Olga Intimate Apparel and Group President, Warnaco Retail, and thereafter as Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer for Warnaco Inc. Mr. Williams also served as Chief Operating
Officer of Authentic Fitness Corporation from 1990 to 1992,

Ms. McCluskey joined the Company as President—Intimate Apparel Group in July 2004 and is
responsible for all aspects of the Company’s intimate apparel business including Warner’s, Olga and
Body Nancy Ganz, as well as Lejaby, Lejaby Rose and JLO lingerie. Prior to joining the Company,
Ms. McCluskey served as Group President of the Moderate Women'’s Sportswear division of Liz
Claiborne Corporation from August 2001 to June 2004. Previously, she spent 18 years at Sara Lee
Corporation where she held executive positions in marketing, operations and general management,
including President of Playtex Apparel from 1999 to 2001.

Mr. Tworecke joined the Company as President—Sportswear Group in May 2004 and oversees the
Calvin Klein jeans, Calvin Klein underwear and Chaps brands. Mr. Tworecke has over 30 years
experience in leading retail and apparel companies. Mr. Tworecke served as President and Chief
Operating Officer of Bon-Ton Stores from 1999 to April 2004. Previously, he was President and Chief
Operating Officer of Jos. A. Bank. Mr. Tworecke has also held senior management positions with
other appare! wholesalers, as well as specialty and department store retailers including MGR, Inc.,
Rich’s Lazarus Goldsmith (a division of Federated Department Stores) and John Wanamaker.

Mr. Silverstein currently serves as the Company’s Executive Vice President-Corporate
Development. From March 2003 to March 2, 2005, Mr. Silverstein served as the Company’s Senior
Vice President—Corporate Development and has served as the Company’s Chief Administrative
Officer since December 2001. Mr. Silverstein served as the Company’s Vice President and General
Counsel from December 1990 until February 2003. Mr. Silverstein served as the Company’s Assistant
Secretary from June 1986 to January 1987 and as its Secretary from January 1987 until May 2003.

Mr. Galluzzo currently serves as the Company’s Senior Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary, From March 2003 to March 2, 2005, Mr. Galluzzo served as the Company’s Vice President
and General Counsel and has served as the Company’s Secretary since May 2003. Mr. Galluzzo was
associated with the law firm of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP from October 2000 to
March 2003. From September 1999 to September 2000, Mr. Galluzzo served as a law clerk to the Hon.
Charles L. Brieant, United States District Judge for the Southern District of New York.

Proceedings Under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code

On June 11, 2001 (the “Petition Date”), the Company and certain of its subsidiaries (each a
“Debtor” and, collectively, the “Debtors™) each filed a voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 11
of the 1J.S. Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. §§ 101-1330, as amended (the “Bankruptcy Code™), in the
United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the “Bankruptcy Court™)
(collectively, the “Chapter 11 Cases”). Warnaco, 36 of its 37 U.S. subsidiaries and one of the
Company’s Canadian subsidiaries, Warnaco of Canada Company, were Debtors in the Chapter 11
Cases. The remainder of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries were not debtors in the Chapter 11 Cases,
nor were they subject to foreign bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings.

On November 9, 2002, the Debtors filed the First Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization of The
Warnaco Group, Inc. and Its Affiliated Debtors and Debtors-In-Possession Under Chapter 11 of the
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Bankruptcy Code (the “Reorganization Plan”). On January 16, 2003, the Bankruptcy Court entered
(i) its Findings of Fact to and Conclusions of Law Re: Order and Judgment Confirming The First
Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization of The Warnaco Group, Inc. and Its Affiliated Debtors and
Debtors-In-Possession Under Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the United States Code, dated November 8,
2002, and (ii) an Order and Judgment Confirming The First Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization of
The Warnaco Group, Inc. and Its Affiliated Debtors and Debtors-In-Possession Under Chapter 11 of
Title 11 of the United States Code, dated November 8, 2002, and Granting Related Relief (the
“Confirmation Order”).

In accordance with the provisions of the Reorganization Plan and the Confirmation Order, the
Reorganization Plan became effective on February 4, 2003 (the “Effective Date”) and the Company
entered into the $275 million Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility (as amended, the “Revolving
Credit Facility”). The Revolving Credit Facility provides for a four-year, non-amortizing revolving
credit facility. In accordance with the Reorganization Plan, on the Effective Date, the Company issued
$200.9 million of New Warnaco Second Lien Notes due 2008 (the “Second Lien Notes™) to certain
pre-petition creditors and others in a transaction exempt from the registration requirements of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Securities Act”), pursuant to Section 1145(a) of the Bankruptcy
Code. On June 12, 2003, the Company repaid the Second Lien Notes and the accrued interest
thereon, in full, with the proceeds of the offering of Warnaco Inc.’s 8%% Senior Notes due 2013 (the
“Senior Notes”). See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Capital Resources and Liquidity — Financing Arrangements and Note 15 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the Company’s outstanding debt arrangements.

Set forth below is a summary of certain material provisions of the Reorganization Plan. Among
other things, as described below, the Reorganization Plan resuited in the cancellation of the
Predecessor’s Class A Common Stock, issued prior to the Effective Date (the “Old Common Stock”™).
The holders of Old Common Stock did not receive any distribution on account of the Old Common
Stock under the Reorganization Plan. The Company, as reorganized under the Reorganization Plan,
issued 44,999,973 shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “New Common Stock™), in
reliance on the exemption from registration afforded by Section 1145 of the Bankruptcy Code, which
shares were distributed to pre-petition creditors as specified below. In addition, 5,000,000 shares of
New Common Stock of the Company were reserved for issuance pursuant to management incentive
stock grants. On March 12, 2003, subject to approval by the stockholders of the Company’s proposed
The Warnaco Group, Inc. 2003 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Stock Incentive Plan”), the Company
authorized the grant of 750,000 shares of restricted stock and options to purchase 3,000,000 shares of
New Common Stock at the fair market value of the New Common Stock on the date of grant. On
May 28, 2003, the stockholders of the Company approved the Stock Incentive Plan. The
Reorganization Plan also provided for the issuance by the Company of the Second Lien Notes in the
principal amount of $200.9 million to pre-petition creditors and others as specified below, secured by a
second priority security interest in substantially all of the Debtors’ domestic assets and guaranteed by
the Company and its domestic subsidiaries.

The following is a summary of distributions pursuant to the Reorganization Plan:

a) the Old Common Stock, including all stock options and restricted shares, was
extinguished, and holders of the Old Common Stock received no distribution on account
of the Old Common Stock;

b) general unsecured claimants received approximately 2.55% (1,147,050 shares) of the New
Common Stock, which the Company distributed in April 2003;

c) the Company’s pre-petition secured lenders received their pro rata share of approximately
$106.1 million in cash, Second Lien Notes in the principal amount of $200 million and
appreximately 96.26% of the New Common Stock (43,318,350 shares);

d) holders of claims arising from or related to certain of the Predecessor’s preferred
securities received approximately 0.60% of the New Common Stock (268,200 shares);
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e) pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement, as modified by the Reorganization
Plan, Antonio C. Alvarez II, then President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
received an incentive bonus consisting of approximately $2.0 million in cash, Second Lien
Notes in the principal amount of approximately $0.9 million and approximately 0.59% of
the New Common Stock (266,400 shares valued at $11.19 per share); and

f) in addition to the foregoing, allowed administrative and certain priority claims were paid
in full in cash.

Website Access to Reports

The Company’s internet website is http/www.warnaco.com. The Company makes available free
of charge on its website (under the heading “SEC Filings”) its Annual Reports on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports as
soon as reasonably practicable after the Company electronically files such material with, or furnishes it
to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

Additional information required by Item 1 of Part I is incorporated by reference to Note 8 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 2. Properties.

The Company’s principal executive offices are located at 501 Seventh Avenue, New York, New
York, which the Company leases pursuant to a 13-year lease that commenced in May 2003 (expiring
August 2016). In addition to the Company’s executive offices, it leases offices in California and
Connecticut pursuant to leases that expire between 2010 and 2013.

The Company has four domestic distribution and warehousing facilities located in California and
Pennsylvania and thirteen international manufacturing and warehouse facilities in Canada (two),
France (five), Mexico (four), Hong Kong (one) and the Netherlands (one). Some of the Company’s
manufacturing and warehouse facilities are also used for administrative functions. The Company owns
one of its domestic facilities and two of its international facilities. The owned domestic facility is
subject to liens in favor of the lenders under the Revolving Credit Facility. The rest of the Company’s
facilities are leased with terms expiring between 2005 and 2020, except for certain leases which
operate on a month-to-month basis.

The Company leases sales offices in a number of major cities, including Atlanta, Dallas, Los
Angeles and New York in the United States; Brussels, Belgium; Toronto, Canada; Paris, France;
Cologne, Germany; Hong Kong; Milan, Italy; Mexico City, Mexico; and Lausanne, Switzerland. The
sales office leases expire between 2005 and 2008 and are generally renewable at the Company’s option.
The Company leases over 45 retail store sites in Canada, Europe and Asia. Retail leases expire
between 2005 and 2019 and are generally renewable at the Company’s option. During Fiscal 2004, the
Company finalized the closure of all its leased Speedo Authentic Fitness retail stores and recorded, as
part of loss from discontinued operations, charges of $2.6 million related to future operating lease
commitments and landlord settlements, net of possible sublease rental income.

All of the Company’s production and warehouse facilities are located in appropriately designed
buildings, which are kept in good repair. All such facilities have well-maintained equipment and
sufficient capacity to handle present and expected future volumes. The Company owns one vacant
domestic manufacturing facility that it has listed for sale with local real estate agents. The carrying
value of this facility has been reduced to its expected net realizable value.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

SEC Investigation

As previously disclosed, the Company reached a settlement with the SEC on the proposed
allegations related to matters that had been under investigation. Pursuant to the settlement, on May
11, 2004, the SEC issued an administrative order requiring that the Company cease and desist from
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committing or causing any violations and future violations of Sections 10(b), 13(a), 13(b)(2)(A) and
13(b)(2)(B) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and Rules
10b-5, 12b-20, 13a-1 and 13a-13 thereunder. The cease-and-desist order, in which the Company neither
admits nor denies the findings, was pursuant to the Company’s offer of settlement. The Company paid
no fine under the SEC settlement. As part of the settlement, the Company agreed to certain
undertakings, including retention of an independent consultant to perform a review of the Company’s
internal controls and policies relating to its inventory systems, internal audit, financial reporting and
other accounting functions. On October 29, 2004, the independent consultant delivered its report to
the Special Committee of the Board of Directors, which report was thereafter delivered to the SEC.
In January 2005, the Board, upon recommendation of the Special Committee, adopted the
recommendations contained in the report. In addition, pursuant to the settlement, the Company
agreed that for a period of two years its Chief Administrative Officer (who previously served as
General Counsel) shall not sign any documents to be filed with the SEC by or on behalf of the
Company and shall not participate in or be responsible for the preparation or review of such filings
except under limited circumstances. The Company also agreed that for a period of two years its
General Counsel shall continue to report directly to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
on any matters relating to the Company’s financial reporting obligations. The Company does not
expect the settlement with the SEC to have a material effect on its financial condition, results of
operations or business.

Other

In addition to the above, from time to time, the Company is involved in arbitrations or legal
proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of its business. The Company cannot predict the timing
or outcome of these claims and proceedings. Currently, the Company is not involved in any arbitration
and/or legal proceeding that it expects to have a material effect on its financial condition, results of
operations or business.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

None.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities.

New Common Stock

Effective with the consummation of the Reorganization Plan on February 4, 2003, the Old
Common Stock was cancelled and the Company issued 44,999,973 shares of New Common Stock to
certain of its pre-petition creditors in reliance on the exemption from registration afforded to it by
Section 1145 of the Bankruptcy Code. The New Common Stock began trading on the NASDAQ
National Stock Market on February 5, 2003 under the ticker symbol “WRNC.” The table below sets
forth the high and low sales prices of the New Common Stock as reported on the NASDAQ
Composite Tape from February 5, 2003 through March 11, 2005:

High Low

2003

First Quarter (from February 5,2003)....................cooiv..... $14.10 $ 8.80
Second QUArter . ...ov it i $13.99 $ R.96
Third QUaTLET . . o ottt et e e e e e e $17.93 $13.57
Fourth QUarter. . ...t e e e e e $18.23 $12.94
2004

FirSt QUATTET . o v oot et e et e e e e e $20.62 $15.66
Second QUAr T ..ottt e $21.98 $17.63
Third QUaTter. . ..ottt e $22.76 $17.57
Fourth QUarter. . ..ottt e e e e e e e $22.55 $19.21
2005

First Quarter (through March 11,2005) ........... e $25.84 $20.05

As of March 11, 2005, there were 2,083 holders of the New Common Stock, based upon the
number of holders of record and the number of individual participants in certain security position
listings.

The last reported sale price of the New Common Stock as reported on the NASDAQ Composite
Tape on March 11, 2005 was $24.59 per share. The Revolving Credit Facility and the indenture
governing the Senior Notes place restrictions on the Company’s ability to pay dividends on the New
Common Stock, and the Company has not paid any dividends on the New Common Stock.

O)d Common Stock

Prior to June 11, 2001, the Old Common Stock was traded on the New York Stock Exchange (the
“NYSE”) under the symbol “WAC.” On June 11, 2001, the NYSE suspended trading of the Old
Common Stock. From June 11, 2001 until February 4, 2003, the Old Common Stock was traded on the
over-the-counter electronic bulletin board (the “OTCBB”) under the ticker symbol “WACGQ.PK.”
Prices of the Old Common Stock per the OTCBB from January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 ranged
from a low of $0.0000 to a high of $0.0010. These prices reflect inter-dealer prices without retail
mark-up, markdown or commission and may not represent actual transactions. No dividends were
paid by the Company on the Old Common Stock during such period.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following table sets forth the Company’s selected historical consolidated financial and
operating data for Fiscal 2004, the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 (as restated), the period
January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003, Fiscal 2002, Fiscal 2001 and Fiscal 2000. All fiscal years for which
financial information is set forth below had 52 weeks, except Fiscal 2001 which had 53 weeks. The

23



period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 and the period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 had 48
weeks and four weeks, respectively. Financial information for the period February 5, 2003 to January
3, 2004 has been restated to reflect the correction of the Company’s lease accounting. See Note 23 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

For all periods presented in the statements of operations, income from continuing operations
excludes the results of the Company’s ABS business unit, the Company’s Warner’s Europe operations
and the Company’s Speedo Authentic Fitness retail stores which the Company closed in Fiscal 2004,
The ABS business unit, the Company’s Warner’s Europe operations and the Speedo Authentic Fitness
retail stores have been accounted for as discontinued operations in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long Lived Assets (“SFAS 144”). Accordingly, the results of operations of these business units are
presented separately in the following table.

The Company emerged from bankruptcy on February 4, 2003 and, pursuant to American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position 90-7, Financial Reporting by Entities in
Reorganization Under the Bankruptcy Code (“SOP 90-7”), the Company adopted fresh start
accounting. Fresh start accounting principles provide, among other things, that the Company
determines the reorganization value of its company and allocates such reorganization value to the fair
value of its assets in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations (“SFAS
1417). The Company engaged an independent third party appraisal firm to assist it in determining its
reorganization value. The reorganization value of the Company as approved by the bankruptcy court
was $750.0 million. Using the work of valuation specialists, the Company allocated the reorganization
value to the fair value of its tangible assets, finite lived intangible assets and indefinite lived intangible
assets in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 141. The Company’s audited consolidated balance
sheet as of February 4, 2003, reflecting the implementation of the Reorganization Plan and the
Company’s emergence from bankruptcy, is included in the notes to the Company’s financial statements
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. The Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of February 4, 2003 and
consolidated balance sheets presented for periods thereafter will not be comparable in certain material
respects to historical balance sheets presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The
Company’s consolidated statements of operations for periods beginning after February 4, 2003 will not
be comparable in certain material respects to the historical consolidated financial statements for prior
periods included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

References to the Predecessor refer to the Company prior to February 4, 2003. References to the
Successor refer to the Company on and after February 4, 2003 after giving effect to the
implementation of fresh start accounting.
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The information set forth in the following table should be read in conjunction with Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the Company’s
consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report

on Form 10-K.

Successor Predecessor
For the Period | For the Period
February 5, January §,
2003 to 2003 to
January 3, February 4, Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001 Fiscal 2000
Fiscal 2004 2004(k) 2003 (d) (d) (a)(b)(c)
(Dollars in millions, except per share data)

Statement of operations data:
Netrevenues . ..............o......n $ 14242 § 12643 $ 1101 § 14082 % 1582983 21308
Grossprofit. .......... ... . ... 473.0 392.1 42.8 4054 268.3 3449
Selling, general and administrative expenses

(B)e e e 3779 319.6 322 370.0 545.2 564.9
Amortization of sales order backlog. ... .. — 11.8 — — — —
Impairment charge. . ................ — — — — 65.0 —
Restructuring items .. ............... 5.1 191 — — — —_
Reorganizationitems .. .............. — — 29.8 1145 171.9 11.2)
Operating income (loss) ... ........... 96.1 48.1 (19.1) (84.4) (513.8) (208.8)
Gain on cancellation of pre-petition

indebtedness. . . ............. ... — — (1,692.7) — — —
Fresh start adjustments. . . ............ — — (765.7) — — —
Other (income) loss .. ... .ot (22) (2.8) 0.4 (0.1) 6.6 36.9
Interest expense. . .....o.ov o, 15.8 20.6 1.8 20.0 122.2 170.2
Income (loss) from continuing operations

before cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle . .............. 46.9 18.2 2,359.0 (154.0) (793.5) (363.1)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of

BAXES « o v o et (4.4) (18.4) 0.5) 9.3) 67.7) (13.7)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle, netof taxes . . ............ — — — (801.6) — (13.1)
Netincome (loss). . ................. 42.5 0.2) 2,3585 (964.9) (861.2) (390.0)
Net income (loss) applicable to Common

Stock. ... 42.5 (0.2) 23585 (964.9) (861.2) (390.0)
Dividends on Common Stock .. ........ — — — —_ — 13.0
Per share data:
Income (loss) from continuing operations

before cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle

Basic............. o $ 1.03 % 0.40 $ 452 § 2918  (15.00)% (6.88)

Diluted ............ ... ... ..... 1.02 0.40 44.52 (2.91) (15.00) (6.88)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of

taxes

Basic.......... ... .. . i (0.10) (0.41) (0.01) (0.17) (1.28) (0.26)

Diluted . .......... .. oL (0.09) (0.40) (0.01) 0.17) (1.28) (0.26)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle, net of taxes

Basic........coooii i — — — (15.13) — (0.25)

Diluted ............ .. .. — — — (15.13) — (0.25)
Net income (loss):

Basic......... ..o o i 0.93 (0.01) 4451 (18.21) (16.28) (7.39)

Diluted .......... . ... ... 0.93 — 4451 (18.21) (16.28) (7.39)
Dividends declared. . . ............... — — — — — 0.27
Shares used in computing earnings per

share (f)

Basic.......... ... . o 45,418,069 45,060,724 52,989,965 52,989,965 52,911,005 52,783,379

Diluted . .................... ... 46,178,535 45,462,560 52,989.965  52989,965 52,911,005 52,783,379
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For the Period|For the Period
February 5, January 5,
2003 to 2003 to
January 3, February 4, Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001 Fiscal 2000
Fiscal 2004 2004(k) 2003 (d) (d) (a)(b)(c)

Other data: _

Cash flows from operating activities ........ 50.3 83.6 (24.9) 2262 (422.8) (10.7)

Cash flows from investing activities. . . ... ... (45.2) (18.5) 0.7) 16.2 (21.4) (69.6)

Cash flows from financing activities. . . .. .. .. - 0.6 (44.9) (67.6) (176.8) 474.6 (82.1)

Depreciation and amortization . . . ......... 325 43.5 4.3 532 89.3 98.6

Capital expenditures . . ................. 31.9 30.1 0.6 20.0 22.8 110.1

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges. ... ...... 33 1.8 787.2 n/a n/a n/a

Deficit of earnings to fixed charges (g) ... ... n/a n/a n/a 104.3 642.5 342.1

Successor Predecessor
January 1, January 3, February 4, | January 4, January 5, December 30,
2005 2004(k) 2003 2003 2002 2000

Balance sheet data:

Working capital. . . .. ... 4342 3943 3277 4612(h)  4463(h)  (1,484.2)

Total assets. . .. ... ... ... . .. ... 1,153.9 1,091.0 1,126.6 947.9 1,985.5 2,342.1

Liabilities subject to compromise .. ........ — — — 2,486.1 2,435.0 —

Debtor-in-possession financing . ... ........ — — — — 155.9 —

Senior Secured credit facility .. ........... ‘ — — 392 — — —

Second Lien Notes due 2008 ... .......... — — 200.9 — — —

8% Senior Notes due 2013. . ............ 210.0 210.0 — — — —

Long-term debt (excluding current maturities) . 210.8 211.1 202.2 1.3 22 —(1)

Mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred

SECUTTHES. « o oottt —_ — — —() —() 103.4

Stockholders’ equity (deficit) ... .......... 576.9 520.6 503.5 (1,856.1) (851.3) 27.2

(a) Fiscal 2000 includes investment income of $36.9 million resulting from a $42.8 million gain on the
Company’s sale of its investments in InterWorld Corporation, net of losses of $5.9 million in
connection with certain equity forward purchase agreements that the Company entered into prior
to its bankruptcy with certain of its lenders which were discharged in the Company’s bankruptcy.

(b) Fiscal 2000 includes the impact of a change in accounting of $13.1 million (net of income tax
benefit of $8.6 million) related to a change in the method of valuation of inventory in the
Company'’s retail outlet stores.

(c¢) Fiscal 2000 includes a tax provision valuation reserve allowance of $129.2 million for the deferred
tax asset.

(d) Includes reorganization items related to the Chapter 11 Cases of $177.8 million and $116.7 million
in Fiscal 2001 and Fiscal 2002, respectively, impairment charges of $101.8 million in Fiscal 2001,
and a tax provision of $151.0 million in Fiscal 2001 primarily related to the increase in the
valuation allowance related to future income tax benefits. Also includes the cumulative effect of a
change in accounting of $801.6 million, net of income tax benefit of $53.5 million related to the
adoption of SFAS No. 142, Business Combinations (“SFAS 142”") in Fiscal 2002.

(e) SG&A expenses exclude pension (income) expense of $(6.2) million, $(6.5) million, $0, $5.4
million, $2.9 million and $0.6 million for Fiscal 2004, the period February 5, 2003 to January 3,
2004, the period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003, Fiscal 2002, Fiscal 2001 and Fiscal 2000,
respectively.

(fy On February 4, 2003, pursuant to the terms of the Reorganization Plan, the outstanding Old

Common Stock was cancelled, and the Company issued 44,999,973 shares of New Common Stock.
Due to the cancellation of the Predecessor’s Old Common Stock and the issuance of 45 million
shares of New Common Stock by the Successor in connection with the Company’s emergence
from bankruptcy on February 4, 2003, income (loss) per common share for periods beginning after
February 4, 2003 will not be comparable to income (loss) per common share for periods before
February 4, 2003.
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(g) For the purposes of computing the ratio of earnings to fixed charges, earnings are defined as
income from continuing operations before income taxes, plus fixed charges and less capitalized
interest. Fixed charges are defined as the sum of interest expense, including the amortization of
deferred financing costs, capitalized interest and that portion of rental expense which the
Company believes to be representative of an interest factor. The deficit of earnings to fixed
charges represents the amount of earnings that would be required to increase the ratio of earnings
to fixed charges to 1.00 in those cases where earnings are less than the total fixed charges.

(h) Does not include liabilities subject to compromise.
(i) Included in working capital as a current liability.
(j) Included in liabilities subject to compromise.

(k) Financial information for Fiscal 2003 has been restated to reflect the correction of the Company’s
lease accounting. See Note 23 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The Company is subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause its future results of
operations to differ materially from its historical results of operations and those expected in the
future. The Company generally is subject to certain risks that could affect the market value of the
Company’s common stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “Common Stock”). Except for the historical
information contained herein, this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the following discussion,
contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. See “Staterment Regarding
Forward-Looking Disclosure” and “Overview—Risks and Uncertainties.”

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes
thereto which are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. References to “Core Brands” refer
to the Company’s Warner’s, Olga and Body Nancy Ganz /Bodyslimmers brand names. References to
“Fashion Brands” refer to the Company’s Lejaby and JLO brand names. References to “Designer”
refer to the Swimwear Group’s fashion brands including Cole of California, Catalina, Anne Cole,
Lifeguard, Nautica and Calvin Klein. '

Overview

The Company designs, sources, manufactures, markets, licenses and distributes intimate apparel,
sportswear and swimwear worldwide through a broad line of highly recognized brand names. The
Company’s products are distributed primarily to wholesale customers through multiple distribution
channels, including major department stores, independent retailers, chain stores, membership clubs,
specialty and other stores and mass merchandisers. The Company also currently operates over 75
Calvin Klein underwear retail stores worldwide (consisting of approximately 45 stores directly
operated by the Company and approximately 30 stores operated under retail licenses or
distributorship agreements).

In Fiscal 2004, the Company saw significant improvements in its operations and results. During
the year, the Company: (i) expanded its product offerings by launching, among other things, Chaps
denim, JLO lingerie and Choice Calvin Klein; (ii) introduced Axcelerate engineered by Speedo, a
performance active apparel offering, and CK 39, a premium denim line; (iii) entered into a license
agreement with Michael Kors to market swimwear under the Michael Kors and MICHAEL/Michael
Kors labels; (iv) expanded its Calvin Klein underwear retail operations in North America, Europe and
Asia; and (v) acquired Ocean Pacific, a recognized leader in the surf inspired California lifestyle
segment of the apparel business. Additionally, the Company increased its marketing expenditures to
improve brand awareness, in particular for its Calvin Klein, Chaps and Speedo lines.

The Company’s international businesses continued to grow in Fiscal 2004. International sales,
primarily of Calvin Klein underwear and Lejaby intimate apparel, provided approximately 27% of the
Company’s net revenues and over 35% of the Company’s group operating income during the year.
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The Company also continued its transition to an outsourced production model. In those
businesses where the Company maintains manufacturing facilities, the Company has improved
efficiencies and reduced manufacturing costs.

The Company continues to plan for its long term growth and profitability by investing in its
operating platform and infrastructure. In the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2004, the Company began the
implementation of SAP’s Apparel and Footwear Solution (an enterprise-wide computer software
platform encompassing Finance, Sales and Distribution and Materials Management) in both its
Swimwear Group and its corporate finance department. The Company expects to implement the SAP
Apparel and Footwear Solution across its entire operating platform before 2009. The Company
believes that this enterprise software solution will enable management to better and more efficiently
gather, analyze and assess information worldwide.

The Company has identified many near term opportunities for growth and operational
improvement, as well as challenges to certain of its businesses. In particular, management believes that
there are many factors influencing the manufacturing and procurement business cycle of the apparel
industry, including but not limited to uncertainty surrounding ongoing import restrictions, overall
deflation in the selling prices of products and retailer pressure. The Company will continue to address
these and other challenges by, among other things, seeking to (i) improve its procurement process and
identify and utilize lower cost, high quality reliable sourcing partners, (ii) focus on operational
controls and efficiency by continuing its investment in its infrastructure and (iii) continue to develop
and invest in its portfolio of desirable brands while maintaining a diverse product offering at
competitive price points across multiple channels of distribution.

Restatement

On February 7, 2005, the Office of the Chief Accountant of the SEC issued a letter regarding
accounting for (i) the amortization of leasehold improvements by a lessee in an operating lease with
lease renewals, (ii) the pattern of recognition of rent expense when the lease term contains a period
where there are free or reduced rents and (iii) incentives related to leasehold improvements provided
by a lessor to a lessee in an operating lease. In light of the SEC’ recent statement regarding existing
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) for lease accounting set forth in such letter, and
after consultation with its independent registered public accounting firm, the Company determined
that its method of accounting for rent that was deferred during a pre-occupancy renovation period
(see clause (ii) of the prior sentence) and its netting of cash received from the landlord against the
cost of leasehold improvements (see clause (iii) of the prior sentence), in both instances as it related
to the lease for the Company’s New York headquarters which commenced during 2003, did not ‘
conform to GAAP. The Company has amended its policy for operating lease accounting to ensure its
compliance with GAAP and has instituted additional procedures to ensure ongoing compliance with
its revised policy. In addition, the Company has restated its financial statements for the second, third
and fourth quarters of Fiscal 2003. This correction did not result in a restatement of the first three
quarters of Fiscal 2004 as the impact on these periods was nominal. The Company recorded
appropriate adjustments, which were nominal, in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2004. The accompanying
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations gives effect to
the restatement of the consolidated financial statements as of January 3, 2004 and for the period
February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004. See Note 23 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Acquisition of Ocean Pacific

On August 19, 2004, the Company acquired Ocean Pacific for $40.0 million in cash and the
assumption of $1.0 million in debt. The assumed debt was repaid simultaneously with the closing.
Ocean Pacific, based in Irvine, California, is a surf and beach lifestyle brand which operates through a
network of licensees worldwide and offers a broad array of apparel and accessories catering to men,
women, young men, juniors and children under its Op, Ocean Pacific and Op Classics labels. The
Company believes an opportunity exists to expand the Ocean Pacific business with current licensing
partners and, over time, for direct opportunities across the Company’s core competencies of swimwear,
sportswear and intimate apparel. Ocean Pacific contributed approximately $2.7 million of net revenues
to the Company’s Swimwear Group in Fiscal 2004.
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Financial and Operating Highlights

Net revenues increased $49.8 million, or 3.6%, to $1.42 billion for Fiscal 2004 compared to $1.37
billion for Fiscal 2003. The majority of the increase was attributable to the Swimwear Group,
reflecting increases in both Speedo and Designer swimwear net revenues. In the Sportswear Group, an
increase in Chaps was partially offset by declines in Calvin Klein jeans (due primarily to a planned
reduction of sales to lower margin off-price accounts) and mass sportswear licensing (due to the sale
of the White Stag trademark in December 2003). The increase in net revenues in the Intimate Apparel
Group primarily reflects increases in Calvin Klein underwear and Fashion Brands, partially offset by a
decline in Core Brands. Net revenues for Fiscal 2004 includes approximately $35.5 million related to
the effect of favorable foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, primarily as a result of a stronger
euro and Canadian dollar.

Gross profit was $473.0 million, or 33.2% of net revenues, for Fiscal 2004 compared to $435.0
million, or 31.6% of net revenues, for Fiscal 2003. An improved mix of regular to off-price sales
contributed to the 160 basis point rise in gross profit as a percentage of net revenues. Gross profit for
Fiscal 2004 includes approximately $16.7 million related to the effect of favorable foreign currency
exchange rate fluctuations, primarily as a result of a stronger euro and Canadian dollar.

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses increased $26.2 million, or 7.9%, to $377.9
million (26.5% of net revenues) for Fiscal 2004 from $351.7 million (25.6% of net revenues) for Fiscal
2003. Marketing expenses increased $12.0 million reflecting the Company’s investment in the
marketing of new and existing brands of $10.0 million (including marketing expenses of $3.1 million
and $2.6 million in connection with the launches of JLO and Chaps denim, respectively) and $2.0
million of marketing expenses related to the 2004 Summer Olympic Games in Athens. Selling
expenses increased $9.5 million reflecting higher sales volumes, partially offset by the positive impact
of terminating a third party distribution agreement and consolidating the Company’s Calvin Klein
jeans distribution facility into the Company’s primary distribution facility in Pennsylvania. Unallocated
corporate administrative expenses included $5.6 million related to professional costs associated with
SOX compliance and an internal control review conducted in connection with the Company’s
previously announced settlement with the SEC. The Company expects a portion of these costs to
recur in future periods. In addition, SG&A expenses for Fiscal 2004 include $6.1 million related to the
unfavorable impact of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, primarily as a result of a stronger
euro and Canadian dollar.

Net income for Fiscal 2004 was $42.5 million, or $0.93 per diluted share. The Company emerged
from bankruptcy on February 4, 2003, and therefore the prior year results of the Successor are for the
eleven-month period commencing February S, 2003 and endmg January 3, 2004. For that period, net
loss was $0.2 million, or $0 per diluted share:

The Company’s workmg capital (current assets minus current liabilities) increased $39.9 million at
January 1, 2005 compared to January 3, 2004 reflecting the increase in net revenues during Fiscal
2004. Inventory increased from $279.8 million at January 3, 2004 to $335.7 million at January 1, 2005
reflecting inventory increases related to the Chaps business (to support Chaps’ introduction to the
mid-tier channel of distribution), increases in Calvin Klein jeans inventories as a result of an expected
increase in shipments for the first quarter of 2005 and the timing of certain product receipts compared
to Fiscal 2003. Cash and cash equivalents increased by $12.1 million, or 22.7%, to $65.6 million at
January 1, 2005 compared to $53.5 million at January 3, 2004.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Company believes that it faces a number of risks in its business. These risks include
downturns in the economies of the Company’s principal markets, weakness in the department store
channel of distribution in the United States, changes in import regulations and import tariffs and the
uncertainties relating to the Company’s ability to design and source fashionable, high quality products
that generate excitement and consumer demand and to import the materials and products it needs to
satisfy the demands of its customers. The Company attempts to address these risks by offering a wide
variety of products at various price points through muitiple channels of distribution as well as through
its strong foundation of basic products that are less susceptible to changes in demand.
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The Company has foreign currency exposures related to buying, selling and financing in
currencies other than the United States dollar. These exposures are primarily related to the
Company’s operations in Canada, Mexico and Europe. These operatlons accounted for approximately
25% of the Company’s net revenues for Fiscal 2004.

The Company’s current exposure to changes in interest rates is limited because the Company
does not have any borrowings outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility and the interest rate on
the Company’s Senior Notes is fixed. The Company’s exposure to changes in interest rates is limited to
changes in short-term interest rates related to the Company’s interest rate swap agreements. See
“Capital Resources and Liquidity—Financing Arrangements” for a discussion of the Company’s
interest rate swap agreements.

Bankruptcy Reorganization and Turnaround

On the Petition Date, the Debtors each filed a voluntary petition for relief under Chapter 11 of
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in the Bankruptcy Court. A number of factors contributed to the
Company’s decision to file for reorganization, including the Company’s highly leveraged capital
structure, the impact of litigation with certain licensors and general operating problems. The Company
incurred substantial debt in part to finance and support its acquisition strategy and share repurchase
program during the period from 1994 to 2001, and the Company was unable to refinance its debt. In
addition, Calvin Klein, Inc. and the Calvin Klein Trademark Trust filed a lawsuit against the Company
alleging breach of a license agreement by selling to retailers other than those permitted by the
agreement and by the Company’ use of the license. Although this lawsuit ultimately was settled
favorably and dismissed in January 2001, it generated adverse publicity that the Company believes had
a negative effect on its business. Additional factors contributing to the Company’s deteriorating
financial performance in Fiscal 2001 included: (i) increased competition in the apparel industry; (ii)
the closings and/or bankruptcies of a number of the stores that carried the Company’s product lines;
(iii) escalating interest rates under the Company’s then outstanding credit agreements; and (iv) a
softening retail environment and overall economy.

As part of the Company’s reorgarization, it implemented a comprehensive turnaround plan
intended to stabilize and improve operations of the Company’s core business units and sell or
liquidate certain of the Company’s non-core businesses. The Company also explored the potential sale
of its core businesses.

In connection with the reorganization and the Company’s emergence from bankruptcy on
February 4, 2003 pursuant to the Reorganization Plan, the Company strengthened its overall financial
health with a conservative capitalization that the Company believes provides it with significant
operating and financial flexibility to. implement its business strategy.

Discussion of Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires the Company to use judgment in making estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses in its consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes. The following critical accounting policies are based on, among
other things, judgments and assumptions made by the Company that involve inherent risks and
uncertainties. \ ’ '

Use of Estimates

The Company uses estimates and assumptions in the preparation of its financial statements which
affect (i) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and (ii) the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses. Actual results could materially differ from these estimates. The estimates the
Company makes are based on historical factors, current circumstances and the experience and
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judgment of its management. The Company evaluates its assumptions and estimates on an ongoing
basis and may employ outside experts to assist in its evaluations. The Company believes that the use
of estimates affects the application of all of its significant accounting policies and procedures.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when goods are shipped to customers and title and risk of loss
have passed, net of estimated customer returns, allowances and other discounts. The Company
recognizes revenue from its consignment accounts and retail stores when goods are sold to consumers,
net of allowances for future returns. The determination of allowances and returns involves the use of
significant judgment and estimates by the Company. The Company bases its estimates of allowance
rates on past experience by product line and account, the financial stability of its customers, the
expected rate of retail sales growth and general economic and retail forecasts. The Company reviews
and adjusts its accrual rates each month based on its current experience. During the Company’s
monthly review, the Company also considers its accounts receivable collection rate and the nature and
amount of customer deductions and requests for promotional assistance. The Company believes it is
likely that its accrual rates will vary over time and could change materially if the Company’s mix of
customers, channels of distribution or product mix changes. The Company’s current rates of accrual
for sales allowances, returns and discounts vary by business unit and channel of distribution and range
from 5.0% to 20.0%. Revenues from the licensing or sub-licensing of certain trademarks are
recognized when the underlying royalties are earned.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold for the Company consists of the cost of products produced or purchased and
certain period costs related to the product procurement and manufacturing process. Product costs
include (i) material, direct labor and overhead (including the costs incurred by external contractors),
(ii) duty, quota and related tariffs, (iii) in-bound freight and traffic costs, including inter-plant freight,
(iv) procurement and material handling costs, (v) indirect production overhead including inspection,
quality control, sample making, production control and planning, cost accounting, and engineering and
(vi) in-stocking costs in the Company’s warehouse (cost to receive, unpack and stock product available
for sale in the Company’s distribution center). Period costs included in costs of goods sold include (a)
royalty, (b) design and merchandising, (c) samples, (d) manufacturing variances (net of amounts
capitalized), (e) loss on seconds, (f) provisions for inventory losses (including provisions for shrinkage
and losses on the disposition of excess and obsolete inventory) and (g) direct freight charges
associated with shipping goods to customers. Costs incurred to store, pick, pack and ship (excluding
direct freight charges) inventory to customers are included in shipping and handling costs and are
classified in SG&A expenses. The Company’s gross profit and gross margin may not be directly
comparable to those of its competitors, as income statement classifications of certain expenses may
vary by company.

Accounts Receivable

As of January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004, the Company had approximately $271.9 million and
$260.1 million of open trade invoices and other receivables and $2.8 million and $6.8 million of open
debit memos, net of credit memos, respectively. Based upon the Company’s analysis of estimated
recoveries and collections associated with the related invoices and debit memos, as of January 1, 2005
and January 3, 2004, the Company had $54.9 million and $57.4 million of accounts receivable reserves,
respectively. The decrease in the accounts receivable reserve as of January 1, 2005 compared to
January 3, 2004 primarily reflects the reduction in the level of open net debit memos.

The Company maintains reserves for estimated amounts that the Company does not expect to
collect from its trade customers. Accounts receivable reserves include amounts the Company expects
its customers to deduct for returns, allowances, traclé discounts, markdowns, amounts for accounts that
go out of business or seek the protection of the Bankruptcy Code and amounts related to charges in
dispute with customers. The Company’s estimate of the allowance amounts that are necessary includes
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amounts for specific deductions the Company has authorized and an amount for other estimated
losses. Adjustments for specific account allowances and negotiated settlements of customer deductions
are recorded as deductions to revenue in the period the specific adjustment is identified. The provision
for accounts receivable allowances is affected by general economic conditions, the financial condition
of the Company’s customers, the inventory position of the Company’s customers and many other
factors. The determination of accounts receivable reserves is subject to significant levels of judgment
and estimation by the Company’s management. If circumstances change or economic conditions
deteriorate, the Company may need to increase the reserve significantly. The Company has purchased
credit insurance to help mitigate the potential losses it may incur from the bankruptey, reorganization
or liquidation of some of its customers.

Inventories

The Company records purchases of inventory when it assumes title and the risk of loss. The
Company values its inventories at the lower of cost, determined on a first-in, first-out basis, or market.
The Company evaluates its inventories to determine excess units or slow-moving styles based upon
quantities on hand, orders in house and expected future orders. For those items for which the
Company believes it has an excess supply or for styles or colors that are obsolete, the Company
estimates the net amount that it expects to realize from the sale of such items. The Company’s
objective is to recognize projected inventory losses at the time the loss is evident rather than when the
goods are ultimately sold. The Company’s calculation of the reduction in carrying value necessary for
the disposition of excess inventory is highly dependent on its projections of future sales of those
products and the prices it is able to obtain for such products. The Company reviews its inventory
position monthly and adjusts its carrying value for excess or obsolete goods based on revised
projections and current market conditions for the disposition of excess and obsolete inventory. If
economic conditions worsen, the Company may have to decrease its carrying value of excess or
obsolete goods substantially.

At January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004, the Company had inventory with a carrying value of
approximately $53.5 million and $18.5 million, respectively, which was potentially excess and/or
obsolete. Based upon the estimated recoveries related to such inventory, as of January 1, 2005 and
January 3, 2004, the Company reduced the carrying value of such inventory by $22.4 million and $11.0
million, respectively, for excess, obsolete and other inventory adjustments. The carrying value of the
Company’s inventories were adjusted to fair value at February 4, 2003 in connection with the adoption
of fresh start accounting. Therefore, the carrving value of a portion of the inventory identified as
excess and/or obsolete at January 3, 2004 reflects the reductions to record inventory at fair value at
February 4, 2003.

Long-lived Assets

As of February 4, 2003, the Company adopted fresh start reporting and, as a result, its long-lived
assets, including property, plant and equipment were recorded at their fair values based upon the
preliminary appraised values of such assets. Adjustments to the preliminary appraised values were
recorded as adjustments to goodwill. The Company used the work of an independent third party
appraisal firm to assist it in determining the fair values of its property, plant and equipment. The
Company and the independent third party appraiser determined the fair value of the Company’s
property, plant and equipment using the planned future use of each asset or group of assets, quoted
market prices for assets where a market exists for such assets, the expected future revenue and
profitability of the business unit utilizing such assets and the expected future life of such assets. In its
determination of fair value, the Company also considered whether an asset would be sold either
individually or with other assets and the proceeds the Company expected to receive from such a sale.
Long-lived assets in existence at February 4, 2003 are recorded at their fair values net of accumulated
depreciation since February 4, 2003. Long-lived assets acquired after February 4, 2003 are recorded at
historical costs, net of accumulated depreciation. Assumptions relating to the expected future use of
individual assets could affect the fair value of such assets and the depreciation expense recorded
related to such assets in the future.
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The Company reviews its long-lived assets for possible impairment when events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. Assumptions and estimates used
in the evaluation of impairment may affect the carrying value of long-lived and intangible assets,
which could result in impairment charges in future periods. In addition, depreciation and amortization
expense is affected by the Company’s determination of the estimated useful lives of the related assets.
The estimated useful lives of fixed assets and finite lived intangible assets are based on their
classification and expected usage, as determined by the Company.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the amount by which the Company’s reorganization value exceeded the fair
value of its tangible assets and identified intangible assets less its liabilities allocated in accordance
with the provisions of SFAS 141 as of February 4, 2003 and the excess of purchase price over fair
value of net assets acquired in business combinations under the purchase method of accounting.
Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS 142, goodwill is not amortized and is subject to an annual
impairment test which the Company performs in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. Goodwill was
allocated to various reporting units, which are either the operating segment or one reporting level
below the operating segment. The Company’s reporting units for purposes of applying the provisions
of SFAS 142 are: Warner’s/Olga/Body Nancy Ganz/Bodyslimmers, Calvin Klein underwear, Lejaby,
Calvin Klein jeans, Chaps and Swimwear. SFAS 142 requires the Company to compare the fair value
of the reporting unit to its carrying amount on an annual basis to determine if there is potential
impairment. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an impairment loss is
recorded to the extent that the implied fair value of the goodwill within the reporting unit is less than
its carrying value. If the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is
recognized. Fair values for goodwill and intangible assets are determined based on discounted cash
flows, market multiples or appraised values, as appropriate.

Intangible assets primarily consist of licenses and trademarks. The fair value of such licenses and
trademarks owned by the Company at February 4, 2003 was based upon the preliminary appraised
values of such assets as determined by the Company and an indépendent third party appraiser.
Adjustments to the preliminary appraised amounts were recorded as adjustments to goodwill. Licenses
and trademarks in existence at February 4, 2003 are recorded at their fair values net of accumulated
amortization since February 4, 2003. Licenses and trademarks acquired after February 4, 2003 are
recorded at cost net of accumulated amortization. The majority of the Company’s license and
trademark agreements cover periods of time in excess of forty years. The estimates and assumptions
used in the determination of the value of indefinite lived intangible assets will not have an effect on
the Company’s future earnings unless a future evaluation of trademark or license value indicates that
such asset is impaired. Identifiable intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS 142, intangible
assets with indefinite lives are not amortized.

The Company did not identify any impairments of goodwill or intangible assets for Fiscal 2004 or
the period February S, 2003 to January 3, 2004. See Note 13 of Notes 1o Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are determined using the liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial reporting and tax basis of assets
and liabilities and are measured by applying enacted tax rates and laws to taxable years in which such
differences are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is established to reduce the amount of
deferred tax assets to an amount that the Company believes, based upon objectively verifiable
evidence, is realizable. The only objectively verifiable evidence the Company is currently able to use
in determining the need for a valuation allowance is the future reversals of existing temporary
differences. The future recognition of deferred tax assets, through a reduction in valuation allowances
that existed at February 4, 2003, will first reduce goodwill. Should the recognition of deferred tax
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assets result in the elimination of goodwill, any additional deferred tax asset recognition will reduce
other intangible assets. Pursuant to SOP 90-7, benefits realized from pre-confirmation net operating
loss carryforwards should first reduce goodwill and other intangible assets until exhausted and
thereafter should be reported as a direct addition to additional paid-in-capital.

Pension Plan

The Company has a defined benefit pension plan (the “Pension Plan”) covering certain full-time
non-union domestic employees and certain domestic employees covered by a collective bargaining
agreement. The determination of the total liability attributable to benefits owed to participants
covered by the Pension Plan is determined by the Pension Plan’s third party actuary (the “Pension
Actuary”) using assumptions provided by the Company. The assumptions used can have a significant
effect on the amount of pension liability recorded by the Company. The Pension Actuary also
determines the annual cash contribution to the Pension Plan. The Pension Plan was under-funded as
of January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004. The Pension Plan and the Reorganization Plan contemplate
that the Company will continue to fund its minimum required contributions and any other premiums
due under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”) and the
United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). Effective January 1, 2003,
the Pension Plan was amended. and, as a result, no future benefits will accrue to participants in the
Pension Plan. As a result of the amendment, the Company has not recorded pension expense for
current service costs in Fiscal 2003 or Fiscal 2004 and will not record pension expense for current
service costs for any future period. As of January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004, the Company had
recorded a Pension Plan liability equal to the amount that the present value of projected benefit
obligations (discounted using an interest rate of approximately 5.5% and 5.3%, respectively) exceeded
the fair value of Pension Plan assets as determined by the Pension Plan trustee. The Company’s cash
contribution to the Pension Plan for 2004 was $12.3 million and is expected to be approximately $25.4
million in the aggregate from Fiscal 2005 through Fiscal 2009. The amount of estimated cash
contributions that the Company will be required to make to the Pension Plan could increase or
decrease depending on the actual return earned by the assets of the Pension Plan and changes in the
amount of liability for future benefits as determined by the Pension Actuary. The accrued long-term
Pension Plan liability and accruals for other post-retirement benefits are classified as other long-term
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet at January 1, 2005. Contributions to the Pension Plan to be
paid in Fiscal 2005 of $5.4 million are classified with accrued liabilities at January 1, 2005.

On October 3, 2003 (the beginning of the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2003), the Company changed its
method of accounting for the Pension Plan to a method that accelerates the recognition of gains or
losses on Pension Plan assets and the liability for Pension Plan obligations (“Accelerated Method”).
The Company previously deferred gains and losses on pension plan assets in excess of the expected
rate of return and amortized the deferred amount into operations over the remaining estimated
service life to the extent such gains and losses exceeded 10% of the Pension Plan’s projected benefit
obligations (“Deferred Method”). The Company believes that the Accelerated Method is preferable to
the Deferred Method because the recorded pension liability, using the Accelerated Method, will
approximate fair value. Pursuant to SFAS No. 87, Employers’ Accounting for Pensions, each quarter
the Company recognizes interest cost on projected benefit obligations, offset by the expected return
on Pension Plan assets. In addition, the Company obtains reports from the Pension Actuary and
Pension Plan trustee to measure Pension Plan assets and liabilities at year-end. The Company records
the effect of actual gains and losses exceeding the expected return on Pension Plan assets and any
other changes in the Pension Plan projected benefit obligation determined by the actuary in the fourth
quarter of each fiscal year. As a result of this change, the Company’s pension income or expense will
be more volatile than that of other companies. Therefore, the Company reports pension expense or
income on a separate line of its statement of operations in each period. See Note 10 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. "

Stock-Based Compensation
Effective February §, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value method of accounting for stock
options for all options granted by the Company after February 4, 2003 pursuant to the prospective
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method provisions of SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, Transition and
Disclosure. The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton model to calculate the fair value of stock
option awards. The Black-Scholes-Merton model requires the Company to make significant judgments
regarding the assumptions used within the Black-Scholes-Merton model, the most significant of which
are the stock price volatility assumption, the expected life of the option award and the risk-free rate
of return. In determining the stock price volatility assumption used, the Company considered the
volatility of the stock prices of selected companies in the apparel industry, the nature of those
companies, the Company’s stock price volatility since its emergence from bankruptcy and other
factors. For options granted during Fiscal 2004 and for the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004,
the Company used a weighted average stock price volatility assumption of approximately 35%. The
Company based its estimate of the expected life of a stock option of five years upon the vesting
period of 36-42 months and the option term of ten years for issued and outstanding options. The
Company’s risk-free rate of return assumption for options granted in Fiscal 2004 and for the period
February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 was equal to the quoted yield for five-year U.S. treasury bonds as
of the date of grant. Compensation expense related to stock option grants is determined based on the
fair value of the stock option on the grant date and is recognized over the vesting period of the grants
on a straight-line basis. Compensation expense related to restricted stock grants is determined based
on the fair value of the underlying stock on the grant date and recognized over the vesting period of
the grants on a straight-line basis..

Prior to February 5, 2003, the Company followed the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 123”). The Company accounted for stock-based
compensation for employees using the intrinsic value method (as defined below) as prescribed by
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees
(“APB 257), and related interpretations. Under APB 25, no compensation expense was recognized for
employee share option grants because the exercise price of the options granted equaled the market
price of the underlying shares on the date of grant (the “intrinsic value method”). Compensation
expense related to restricted stock grants, prior to February 4, 2003, was recognized over the vesting
period of the grants.

Adbvertising Costs

Advertising costs are included in SG&A expenses and are expensed the first time the advertising
or promotion is published or presented to consumers. Cooperative advertising allowances provided to
customers are charged to operations as incurred and are also included in SG&A expenses. The
amounts charged to operations for advertising, marketing and promotion expenses (including
cooperative advertising, marketing and promotion expenses) for Fiscal 2004, the periods February 3,
2003 to January 3, 2004 and January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002 were $86.0 million,
$66.4 million, $7.4 million and $105.7 million, respectively. Cooperative advertising expense for Fiscal
2004, the periods February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 and January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and
Fiscal 2002 were $18.4 million, $17.5 million, $1.4 million and $31.6 million, respectively.

Reorganization Items

Reorganization items included in the consolidated statement of operations for the periods
January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002 were $29.8 million and $114.5 million,
respectively. Included in reorganization items are certain non-cash asset impairment provisions and
accruals for items that were paid in cash or settled in connection with the Reorganization Plan.
Certain accruals at January 4, 2003 were subject to compromise under the provisions of the
Bankruptcy Code. The Company recorded these accruals at the estimated amount the creditor was
entitled to claim under the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code. The ultimate amount of and
settlement terms for such liabilities are detailed in the Reorganization Plan. See Note 5 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. Subsequent to February 4, 2003, to the extent that the Company
has incurred reorganization items in respect of the Chapter 11 Cases, such items have been recorded
in SG&A expenses. Included in SG&A expenses for Fiscal 2004 and the period February 5, 2003 to
January 3, 2004 are legal and professional fees and certain compensation related costs relating to the
Chapter 11 Cases of $0.7 million and $5.0 million, respectively.
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Restructuring Items

During Fiscal 2004 and the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, the Company incurred
restructuring charges of $5.1 million and $19.1 million, respectively. See Note 6 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Results of Operations

Statement of Operations (Selected Data)

The following tables summarize the historical results of operations of the Company for Fiscal
2004, the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 (as restated), the period January 5, 2003 to
February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002. The period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 combined with the
period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 constitutes a combined presentation of Fiscal 2003 (as
restated).

The results of the Company’s discontinued operations are included in “Loss from discontinued
operations, net of taxes” for all periods presented.

Successor Predecessor Combined Predecessor
For the For the
Period Period

February 5, January 5,
2003 to 2003 to

% of Net January 3, February 4, % of Net % of Net
Fiscal 2604 Revenues 2004 20603 Fiscal 2063 Revenues Fiscal 2002 Revenues
(in thousands of dollars)
Net revenues . ........... $1,424,181 100.0% $1264,301 $§ 110,120 $ 1374421  100.0% $1408.242 100.0%
Cost of goods sold. . .. ..... 951,198 66.8% 872,170 67.283 939,453 684% 1,002,816 71.2%
Gross profit . ............ 472,983 33.2% 392,131 42,837 434,968 31.6% 405,426 28.8%
Selling, general and
administrative expenses . . . 377,868 26.5% 319,580 32,156 351,736 25.6% 369,958 263%
Pension expense (income) . . . (6,150) -0.4% (6,488) — (6,488) 05% 5,399 0.4%
Amortization of sales order
backlog. .............. — — 11,800 — 11,800 0.9% —
Restructuring items. . . .. ... 5,130 0.4% 19,101 — 19,101 1.4% —
Reorganization items. . .. ... — — — 29,805 29,805 2.2% 114,495 8.1%
Operating income (loss). . . . . 96,135 6.8% 48,138 (19,124) 29,014 21% (84,426) —
Gain on cancellation of
pre-petition indebtedness . . — —  (1,692,696) (1,692,696) —
Fresh start adjustments . . . . . — — (765,726)  (765,726) —
Other (income) loss. . ... ... (2,197) (2,817) 359 (2,458) (62)
Interest expense, net (a) .. .. 19,821 20,641 1,751 22,392 19,972
Income (loss) from continuing
operations before provision
for income taxes and
cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle . . . . 78,511 30,314 2,437,188 2,467,502 (104.336)
Provision for income taxes. . . 31,636 12,084 78,150 90,234 49,648
Income (loss) from continuing
operations before
cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle . . . . 46,875 18,230 2,359,038 2,377,268 (153,984)
Loss from discontinued
operations, net of taxes. . . . (4,358) (18,393) (501) (18,894) (9.257)
Cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle, net
of taxes. . .. ........... — — — — (801,622)
Net income (loss) .. ....... $ 42517 $ (163) §$ 2,358,537 §$ 2,358,374 $ (964,863)

(a) Includes interest income of $1.9 million, $0.6 million, $0.5 million and $3.6 million for Fiscal 2004,
the period February S, 2003 to January 3, 2004, the period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003
and Fiscal 2002, respectively. Contractual interest for the Predecessor was $15.0 million and $180.2
million for the period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002, respectively.
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Comparison of Fiscal 2004 to Fiscal 2003

Net Revenues
Net revenues by segment were as follows:

Fiscal Fiscal Increase %

2004 2003 (Decrease) Change

(in thousands of dollars)
Intimate Apparel Group............ $ 588,256 $ 572,813 $15,443 2.7%
Sportswear Group ................. 455,601 440,516 15,085 3.4%
Swimwear Group .................. 380,324 361,092 19,232 5.3%
NEt TEVENUES . oot v e ieein e $1,424,181 $1,374,421 $49,760 3.6%

The Company’s products are widely distributed through many major channels of distribution. The
following table summarizes the Company’s net revenues by channel of distribution for Fiscal 2004 and

Fiscal 2003:

Fiscal Fiscal
2004 2003
United States - wholesale

Department stores and independent retailers .. .. 23% 25%

Specialty stores ... 10% 9%

Chain Stores . ..o o oviien i 7% 7%

Mass merchandisers .............ccovvvrnnen.. 8% 9%

Membership clubs and other................... _24% _25%

Total United States - wholesale .................. 72% 75%

International - wholesale . ......................... 26% 24%

Retail /other...........ooooiiiiiiiiii _2% _1%

Net revenues - consolidated ....................... 100% 100%

Intimate Apparel Group
Intimate Apparel Group net revenues were as follows:
Fiscal Fiscal Increase %
2004 2003 (Decrease) Change
{in thousands of dollars)

Calvin Klein underwear............. $310,192 $279,106 $31,086 11.1%
CoreBrands ...................... 148,176 180,945 (32,769) ~-18.1%
Fashion Brands.................... 116,950 100,240 16,710 16.7%
Retail/other ....................... 12,938 12,522 416 _33%
Intimate Apparel Group............ $588,256 $572,813 $15,443 _29%

The increase in Calvin Klein underwear net revenues reflects an increase of $11.2 million, $15.6
million and $4.3 million in the United States, Europe and all other foreign operations, respectively.
The increased sales in the United States and Europe were primarily driven by strength in the men’s
regular price business combined with the launch of the Company’s new Choice Calvin Klein label
(which accounted for approximately $7.9 million of the increase in net revenues in the United States
and Europe). The Company believes the increase in net revenues is a result of improvements and
innovations in product design and an increase in marketing expenditures combined with the positive
impact of a stronger euro relative to the United States dollar.

The decrease in Core Brands net revenues reflects a $35.9 million decline in the United States,
partially offset by a combined increase of $3.1 million in Canada, Asia and Mexico. The decline in net
revenues in the United States primarily reflects continued difficulty for the Company’s Core Brands at
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retail. In addition, the Company experienced a reduction in the level of service to customers, primarily
as a result of transitioning from an owned manufacturing to an outsourced production model, which
negatively affected order fulfillment rates.

The increase in Fashion Brands net revenues reflects $11.6 million in net revenues from the
launch of JLO in July 2004 and an increase of $5.1 million in Lejaby net revenues. The increase in
Lejaby reflects an increase of $3.1 million in the United States primarily related to the launch of
Lejaby Rose in March 2004 combined with an increase of $2.0 million in Europe. The increase in
Lejaby net revenues in Europe primarily reflects the positive effect of a stronger euro of $9.5 million,
partially offset by a decrease, primarily related to lower unit volumes, of $7.9 million. The decrease in
sales volumes was attributable to a less favorable reception of certain product lines at retail and a
declining specialty store distribution base.

Sportswear Group

Sportswear Group net revenues were as follows:

Fiscal Fiscal Increase %
2004 2003 {Decrease) Change
(in thousands of dollars)
Chaps . ... $168,114 -$129,634 $ 38,480 29.7%
Calvin Klein jeans ................. 265,754 282,718 (16,964) -6.0%
Calvin Klein accessories (a) ......... 13,857 13,335 522 3.9%
Mass sportswear licensing (b) ....... 7,876 14,829 (6,953) -46.9%
Sportswear Group ................. $455,601 $440,516 $ 15,085 _ 34%

(a) The Calvin Klein accessories license will expire on December 31, 2005.

(b) Mass sportswear licensing revenues for Fiscal 2003 consist of royalty revenues related to the Whire
Stag trademark. With respect to Fiscal 2004, mass sportswear licensing revenues include design
services fees earned in connection with the White Stag women’s sportswear line.

Chaps net revenues increased $37.4 million and $2.3 million in the United States and Mexico,
respectively, partially offset by a $1.2 million decrease in Canada. The increase in Chaps domestic net
revenues includes $18.1 million related to the launch of the new denim line in June 2004 combined
with a $19.3 million net increase across all other Chaps sportswear lines reflecting the Company’s
planned expansion into the mid-tier channel of distribution and a favorable reception of the
Company’s products at retail, which increased certain reorder sales. These increases were partially
offset by a reduction in sales to military base stores.

Calvin Klein jeans net revenues decreased $17.0 million reflecting a decrease of $29.6 million in
the United States, partially offset by an increase of $8.9 million and $3.7 million in Mexico and
Canada, respectively. The decrease in the United States reflects a planned reduction of unit sales to
low margin off-price channels (accounting for a decrease of approximately $30.0 million) and declines
in department store unit sales and sales to military base stores. The decreases in off-price and
department store sales were partially offset by an increase in unit sales to membership clubs and to
stores operated by the Calvin Klein jeans licensor. Net unit selling prices increased due to more
favorable returns and allowances experience, which management believes is the result of reinvigorated
designs and extended product offerings. The increase in Mexico net revenues relates to volume
increases in sales of certain men’s basic lines to department stores combined with increased sales to
membership clubs.

The decrease in mass sportswear licensing net revenues reflects the sale of the Whire Stag
trademark to Wal-Mart in December 2003. Pursuant to the sales agreement, the Company no longer
receives royalties from Wal-Mart; however, the Company receives fees for design services provided to
Wal-Mart related to the White Stag women’s sportswear line.
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Swimwear Group

Swimwear Group net revenues were as follows:

Fiscal Fiscal Increase
2004 2003 (Decrease) Change
(in thousands of dollars)

Speedo ... $248,619 $240,405 $ 8214 3.4%
Designer swimwear {a) ............. 123,890 116,575 7315 6.3%
Ocean Pacific (b) .................. 2,747 — 2,747 0.0%
Online retail store ................. : 5,068 4,112 956 23.2%
Swimwear Group .................. $380,324 $£361,092 $19.232 5.3%

(a) Includes Catalina wholesale swimwear.
(b) Consists of licensing revenue.

The increase in Speedo net revenues reflects a $3.9 million increase in regular-price sales
combined with a $4.3 million increase in off-price sales. The increase in regular price sales reflects
higher net selling price due to a $3.0 million reduction in sales allowances and returns, primarily as a
result of better product performance at retail in Fiscal 2004 compared to Fiscal 2003, combined with
increased net sales of $1.0 million primarily related to increased unit shipments of shoes, accessories
and racing gear.

The increase in Designer swimwear net revenues reflects increases primarily related to the
Company’s private label business with Target ($7.3 million), increased net sales of Catalina ($2.3
million) and increased net sales of Nautica and Anne Cole swimwear ($17.3 million), offset by déclines
in Polo® (license terminated in June 2003) and other brands ($19.6 million). The increase in net
revenues from private label and Caralina sales reflects volume increases. The increase in Nautica and
Anne Cole primarily reflects a full year of selling of the Nautica brand which was launched during

Fiscal 2003.

Net revenues of Ocean Pacific relate to the acquisition of Ocean Pacific in August 2004 and
represent royalty income earned from licensing partners.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was as follows:
% of % of

Segment Net Segment Net
Fiscal 2004 Revenues Fiscal 2003 Revenues
(in thousands of dollars)
Intimate Apparel Group............ $210,455 35.8% $199,598 34.8%
Sportswear Group ................. 126,571 27.8% 103,946 23.6%
Swimwear Group .................. 135,957 35.7% 131,424 364%
Total gross profit................... $472.,983 33.2% $434,968 31.6%

The increase in gross profit of $38.0 million reflects an increase of $22.6 million, $10.9 million and
$4.5 million in the Sportswear Group, Intimate Apparel Group and Swimwear Group, respectively.
Gross profit as a percentage of net revenues (“gross margin”) increased 160 basis points primarily due
to a more favorable sales mix in the Company’s Calvin Klein jeans business. Gross profit for Fiscal
2004 includes the effect of approximately $16.7 million related to the favorable impact of foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations, primarily as a result of a stronger euro and Canadian dollar.

Intimate Apparel Group gross profit increased $10.9 million primarily reflecting strength in the
Company’s Calvin Klein underwear business (increased gross profit of $22.3 million) and the launch of
JLO lingerie in July 2004 (gross profit of $2.1 million) combined with increases of $2.3 million and
$1.8 million in the Company’s Lejaby and Intimate Apparel retail operations, respectively. The

40



increases were partially offset by a $17.6 million decrease in Core Brands gross profit. The increase in
Calvin Klein underwear gross profit and gross margin reflects the increase in net revenues described
above, combined with a favorable sales mix and lower sourcing costs. The decline in Core Brands
gross profit reflects sales allowances granted to customers and unfavorable absorption of fixed
overhead costs due to decreased sales volumes.

Sportswear Group gross profit increased $22.6 million, or 21.8%, in Fiscal 2004 as compared to
Fiscal 2003 and gross margin increased 420 basis points. The increase in gross profit and gross margin
primarily reflects strength in the Calvin Klein jeans (317.6 million increase in gross profit), Calvin
Klein accessories ($1.8 million increase in gross profit) and Chaps ($10.5 million increase in gross
profit) businesses, partially offset by a $7.3 million decline in mass sportswear licensing as a result of
the sale of the White Stag trademark to Wal-Mart in December 2003. The increase in Calvin Klein
jeans gross profit and gross margin reflects an improved sales mix, primarily as a result of the
Company’s planned reduction of sales to low margin off-price channels. The increase in Chaps gross
profit reflects the increase in net revenues described above and improved allowance experience to
customers reflecting higher net selling prices.

Swimwear Group gross profit increased $4.5 million, reflecting the increase in net revenues
described above and efficiencies realized in the Company’s manufacturing plants as a result of
production volume increases. The decrease in gross margin of 70 basis points reflects the less
favorable sales mix, start-up activities related to a new activewear line and the unfavorable impact of
foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations on cost of sales, primarily as a result of the effect of a
stronger Canadian dollar related to Canadian manufacturing operations, partially offset by margins
earned on royalty income (related to the August 2004 acquisition of Ocean Pacific) and favorable
manufacturing variances.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

SG&A expenses increased $26.2 million, or 7.4%, to $377.9 million (26.5% of net revenues) for
Fiscal 2004 from $351.7 million (25.6% of net revenues) for Fiscal 2003. Marketing expenses increased
$12.0 million, reflecting the Company’s investment in the marketing of new and existing brands of
$10.0 million (including the launches of JLO lingerie and Chaps denim) and expenses related to the
2004 Summer Olympic Games in Athens of $2.0 million. Selling expenses increased $9.5 million
reflecting higher sales volumes, partially offset by the positive impact of terminating a third party
distribution agreement and consolidating the Company’s Calvin Klein jeans distribution facility into
the Company’s primary distribution facility in Pennsylvania. Unallocated corporate administrative
expenses include $5.6 million related to professional costs associated with SOX compliance and an
internal control review conducted in connection with the Company’s previously announced settlement
with the SEC. The Company expects a portion of these costs to recur in future periods. In addition,
SG&A expenses for Fiscal 2004 include $6.1 million related to the unfavorable impact of foreign
currency exchange rate fluctuations, primarily as a result of a stronger euro and Canadian dollar.

Pension Income / Expense

Pension Plan income of $6.2 million for Fiscal 2004 reflects the income earned by Pension Plan
assets, offset by interest costs associated with Pension Plan projected benefit obligations. Pension Plan
income was $6.5 million for Fiscal 2003. See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Amortization of Sales Order Backlog

Results of operations for Fiscal 2003 included $11.8 million of expenses related to the
amortization of sales order backlog recorded in connection with the adoption of fresh start accounting
on February 4, 2003. The sales order backlog was amortized over six months using the straight-line
method and was fully amortized as of January 3, 2004.

Restructuring Items

During Fiscal 2004 and the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, the Company incurred
restructuring charges of $5.1 million and $19.1 million, respectively. See Note 6 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Reorganization Items

Reorganization items were $29.8 million and $114.5 million for the period January 5, 2003 to
February 4, 2003 and for Fiscal 2002, respectively. See Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Operating Income

The following table presents operating income by group:

Fiscal % of % of
2004 Net Revenues Fiscal 2003 Net Revenues
(in thousands of dollars)
Intimate Apparel Group............ $ 55,361 $ 55,858
Sportswear Group ................. 53,757 31,764
Swimwear Group ............. ..., 58,147 52,901
Group operating income............ 167,265 11.8% 140,523 10.2%
Unallocated corporate expenses .. ... (66,000) —4.6% (62,603) ~4.6%
Restructuring items ................ (5,130) -0.4% (19,101) ~1.4%
Reorganization items............... — = (29,805) -2.2%
Operating income. ................. $ 96,135 6.8% $ 29,014 21%

|

Operating income increased $67.1 million, reflecting an increase in group operating income of
$26.7 million and a decrease in restructuring and reorganization items of $43.8 million, partially offset
by an increase in unallocated corporate expenses of $3.4 million. The increase in group operating
income includes the effect of an $11.8 million decrease in amortization expense related to sales order
backlog which was incurred in the 2003 period in connection with the adoption of fresh start
accounting. Operating income for Fiscal 2004 was positively affected by the favorable impact of
foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations of approximately $10.6 million, primarily as a result of a
stronger euro and Canadian dollar. The increase in unallocated corporate expenses of $3.4 million in
Fiscal 2004 compared to Fiscal 2003 was due primarily to consulting fees of $5.6 million related to
professional costs associated with SOX compliance and an internal control review conducted in
connection with the Company’s previously announced settlement with the SEC.

Intimate Apparel Group

Intimate Apparel Group operating income was as follows:

Fiscal % of Brand Fiscal % of Brand

2004 Net Revenues 2003 Net Revenues
(in thousands of dollars)
Calvin Klein underwear. .. .......... $49.871 16.1% $39,837 14.3%
CoreBrands ...................... 2,520 1.7% 7,524 42%
Fashion Brands. ................... 2,579 2.2% 9,256 9.2%
Retail/other...............o. oLl 391 _3.0% (759) -6.1%
Intimate Apparel Group............ $55,361 _9.4% $55,858 _9.8%

Intimate Apparel Group operating income decreased $0.5 million, primarily reflecting an increase
in Calvin Klein underwear, more than offset by a decrease in Core Brands and Fashion Brands. The
$10.0 million increase in Calvin Klein underwear operating income reflects a $22.3 million increase in
gross profit (as described above), the positive effect of a stronger euro and a $2.2 million decrease in
amortization of sales order backlog. Partially offsetting this net increase was an increase of $14.5
million in SG&A expenses (primarily due to a planned increase in marketing expenditures to support
the launch of Choice Calvin Klein), the increase in volume-related selling costs and the effect of a
stronger euro. The $5.0 million decrease in Core Brands operating income reflects a decline in Core
Brands gross profit of $17.6 million as described above, partially offset by a decrease of $12.6 million
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in SG&A expenses due to cost cutting initiatives undertaken by management in Fiscal 2004 and a
decrease in volume-related selling expenses due to reduced net revenues. The $6.7 million decrease in
Fashion Brands operating income reflects a $3.0 million operating loss from the launch of JLO in July
2004 and a $3.7 million decrease in Lejaby. The decrease in Lejaby operating income reflects a $6.0
million increase in SG& A expenses, partially offset by a $2.3 million increase in Lejaby gross profit.
The increase in SG&A expenses includes a $2.8 million increase in marketing costs associated with a
new European advertising campaign and the launch of Lejaby Rose in the United States combined
with the unfavorable impact of a stronger euro.

Sportswear Group

Sportswear Group operating income was as follows:

Fiscal % of Brand Fiscal % of Brand
2004 Net Revenues 2003 Net Revenues
(in thousands of dollars)
Chaps .. ..o i $17.479 10.4% $ 9,718 7.5%
Calvin Kleinjeans ................ | 30,266 11.4% 9,447 33%
Calvin Klein accessories ............ ‘ 2,564 18.5% 1,795 13.5%
Mass sportswear licensing........... 3,448 43.8% 10,804 72.9%
Sportswear Group ........... ... $53,757 11.8% $31,764 72%

Sportswear Group operating income increased $22.0 million reflecting increases in Calvin Klein
jeans, Chaps and Calvin Klein accessories, partially offset by decreases in mass sportswear licensing.
The increase of $7.8 million in Chaps operating income reflects an increase in gross profit of $10.5
million (as discussed above) combined with a $0.8 million reduction in amortization of sales order
backlog, partially offset by an increase of $3.5 million in SG&A expenses. The increase in SG&A
expenses included a $2.7 million increase in marketing expenses primarily related to the launch of
Chaps denim in June 2004 and the increased variable selling expenses associated with higher sales
volume. The increase of $20.8 million in Calvin Klein jeans operating income reflects an increase in
gross profit of $17.6 million (as discussed above) combined with a $3.2 million reduction in SG&A
expenses, primarily related to a decrease in warehouse and distribution expenses as a result of the
Company relocating its distribution center in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2003 from a third-party
operated facility to the Company’s facility in Duncansville, Pennsylvania. The decrease in operating
income of mass sportswear licensing reflects the sale of the White Stag trademark in December 2003.

Swimwear Group

Swimwear Group operating income was as follows:

Fiscal % of Brand Fiscal % of Brand
2004 Net Revenues 2003 Net Revenues
(in thousands of dollars)

Speedo ......... ... ... o e $38,999 15.7% $34,729 14.4%
Designer.............c. it 17,344 14.0% 16,574 14.2%
Ocean Pacific. ..................... (423) -15.4% — —
Ubertech ......................... — — 34 —
Online retail store ................. 2,227 _43.9% 1,564 38.0%
Swimwear Group ........ e $58,147 - _15.3% $52,901 14.7%

Swimwear Group operating income increased $5.2 million, reflecting an increase of $4.5 million in
gross profit as a result of increased net revenues combined with a decrease of $8.5 million in
amortization of sales order backlog, partially offset by a $7.8 million increase in SG&A expenses. The
increase in SG&A expenses reflects a $2.3 million increase in marketing expenses, primarily related to
the 2004 Summer Olympic Games in Athens, a $2.1 million increase in volume related selling
expenses and a $3.4 million increase in administrative expenses primarily related to the acquisition of
Ocean Pacific. :
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Gain on Cancellation of Debt and Fresh Start Adjustments

Fiscal 2003 includes a gain of $1,692.7 million related to the cancellation of the Company’s
pre-petition debt and other liabilities subject to compromise net of the fair value of cash and cash
equivalents and securities distributed to the pre-petition creditors. Fresh start adjustments of $765.7
million represent adjustments to the carrying amount of the Company’s assets and liabilities to fair
value in accordance with the provisions of SOP 90-7. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements. No comparable gains were recorded in Fiscal 2004.

Other (Income) Loss

Other (income) loss primarily reflects gains on the current portion of inter-company loans to
foreign subsidiaries that are denominated in United States dollars of $1.9 million and $6.7 million for
Fiscal 2004 and Fiscal 2003, respectively. The foreign exchange gain for Fiscal 2003 was partially offset
by a $3.8 million loss on the sale of the White Stag trademark.

Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense decreased $2.6 million, or 11.5%, to $19.8 million in Fiscal 2004 compared to
$22.4 million in Fiscal 2003. Interest expense in Fiscal 2004 included interest on the Senior Notes of
$16.9 million (net of the benefit of approximately $1.6 million from the Swap Agreements (as defined
below)), unused commitment fees and letters of credit charges of $2.4 million related to the Revolving
Credit Facility and amortization of deferred financing fees and other items of $2.4 million, partially
offset by interest income of $1.9 million. Interest income primarily reflects income earned on the note
receivable relating to the sale of White Stag and interest earned on invested cash balances. Interest
expense for Fiscal 2003 includes interest on foreign debt for one month of $1.0 million, interest on the
Second Lien Notes of $6.7 million, interest on the Senior Notes of approximately $10.0 million,
amortization of deferred financing fees of $2.1 and other interest and fees of approximately $2.6
million.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes of $31.6 million for Fiscal 2004 consists of an income tax expense
of $13.3 million on domestic earnings and an $18.3 million income tax expense on foreign earnings.
The provision for income taxes for Fiscal 2003 of $90.2 million includes income taxes related to the
income of foreign operations of $11.6 million, state and local income taxes of $1.0 million and
deferred income taxes of $77.6 million related to the recording of the Company’s assets at fair value in
accordance with fresh start accounting.

Under U.S. tax law, a company that realized cancellation of debt income (“COD”) while in
bankruptcy is entitled to exclude such income from taxable income for U.S. tax reporting purposes. A
company that excludes COD will be required to reduce certain tax attributes in an amount equal to
the COD excluded from taxable income. If the attribute reduction is applied on a consolidated basis,
all of the Company’s U.S. consolidated net operating loss carryovers would be eliminated and certain
of its other U.S. tax attributes will be substantially reduced or eliminated. However, by applying the
attribute reduction rules on a separate company basis, the Company retained U.S. net operating loss
carryforwards of approximately $246.2 million, which can be used to reduce U.S. taxable income, if
any, by approximately $23.4 million per year. There can be no assurance that the Company’s position
with respect to separate company attribute reduction will be sustained upon review by the Internal
Revenue Service. Any tax benefit from the utilization of consolidated U.S. net operating losses that
existed as of February 4, 2003 will reduce goodwill when realized and will not affect the Company’s
future results of operations.

Additionally, as a result of the Company’s acquisition of Ocean Pacific, non-current deferred tax
liabilities were increased by $12.4 million, primarily related to acquired trademarks and licenses.
Deferred taxes also included a U.S. net operating loss carryforward of $2.6 million, of which the
majority is subject to an annual limitation of $0.4 million.
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Discontinued Operations

Losses from discontinued operations were $4.4 million and $18.9 million for Fiscal 2004 and Fiscal

2003, respectively. See Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Comparison of Fiscal 2003 to Fiscal 2002

Net Revenues

Net revenues by segment were as follows:

Fiscal Fiscal Increase
2003 2002 {Decrease)
(in thousands of dollars)
Intimate Apparel Group (a)......... $ 572,813 $ 614,155 $(41,342)
Sportswear Group ................. 440,516 483,461 (42.945)
Swimwear Group .................. 361,092 310,626 50,466
NEet reVENUES . . oo v e e e, $1,374,421 $1,408,242 $(33,821)

%
Change

-6.7%
-8.9%
162%

-2.4%

(a) Consolidated net revenues for Fiscal 2003 and Fiscal 2002 included $0.1 million and $46.2 million,
respectively, of revenues from GIM, Penhaligon’s, Fruit of the Loom, Weight Watchers, [ZKA and

domestic outlet retail stores (the “discontinued and sold units”).

The Company’s products are widely distributed through many major channels of distribution. The
following table summarizes the Company’s net revenues by channel of distribution for Fiscal 2003 and

Fiscal 2002:

Fiscal
2003
United States - wholesale:
Department stores, independent retailers and
specialty Stores. . ... 34%
Chain StOTES . v it i e et 7%
Mass merchandisers . ........ ... ... oL 9%
Other.........c.o i _25%

Total United States - wholesale .................. 75%
International - wholesale . ......................... 24%
Retail/Other.......... ..o i, _ 1%

Net revenues - consolidated ....................... 100%
Intimate Apparel Group
Intimate Apparel Group net revenues were as follows:
Fiscal Fiscal Increase
2003 2002 (Decrease)
(in thousands of dollars)
Calvin Klein underwear.........., $279,106 $239,662 $ 39,444
Core Brands .......... e 180,945 222,308 (41,363)
Lejaby................ PP 100,240 90,468 9,772
Retail ................ e : 12,397 15,528 (3,131)
Total continuing business units ...... 572,688 567,966 4,722
Discontinued / sold business units. . .. ‘ 125 - 46,189 (46,064)
Intimate Apparel Group. e | $572,813 $614,155 $(41,342)
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Fiscal
2002

39%
8%
6%

2%

75%
21%
_4%

100%

% Change

16.5%
~18.6%
10.8%
-202%

0.8%
-99.7%

0.0%
_—6.7%



The decrease in Core Brands net revenues reflects lower reorders due to a buildup of inventory
at retailers as a result of less favorable reception of certain product lines, coupled with the effect of a
soft market. The decrease in Intimate Apparel net revenues was partially offset by the translation
effect of a stronger Canadian dollar of approximately $2.5 million. The increase in Calvin Klein
underwear net revenues reflects increased sales in the United States, Europe, Mexico and Asia.
Approximately 72.6% of the increase in Calvin Klein underwear net revenues related to the European
operation, which benefited from a stronger euro coupled with increased sales volume. Increases in the
United States were due primarily to an increase in off-price sales. Volume increases in Asia were
attributable to the opening of three new retail stores and the addition of new distributors in Korea,
Singapore and Malaysia. The increase in Lejaby net revenues reflects the positive effect of a stronger
euro, which added $17.1 million to net revenues, partially offset by a $7.4 million decrease in net sales
as a result of a business slowdown, primarily in Germany and Austria.

Sportswear Group

Sportswear Group net revenues were as follows:

Fiscal Fiscal Increase %
2003 2002 (Decrease) Change
: (in thousands of dollars)

Chaps ......cooie i, - $129,634 $137,387 $ (7,753) -5.6%
Calvin Klein jeans ................. 282,718 - 317,587 (34,869) -11.0%
Calvin Klein accessories (a) ......... 13,335 14,404 (1,069) -7.4%
Mass sportswear licensing........... 14,829 14,083 746 5.3%
Sportswear Group ................. $440,516 $483,461 $(42,945) -8.9%

(a) The Calvin Klein accessories license will expire on December 31, 2005.

The decrease in Calvin Klein jeans net revenues was primarily attributable to a soft retail
environment and a reduction in sales to military exchanges, partially offset by an increase in sales to
membership clubs. The decrease in Chaps net revenues reflects a softer retail market for men’s
sportswear in the United States, partially offset by an increase in net revenues of approximately $2.4
million in Chaps sales in Canada (which includes the translation effect of a stronger Canadian dollar,
which added approximately $1.8 million to net revenues). Net revenues in Mexico decreased by
approximately $1.8 million, primarily as a result of the downsizing and consolidation of operations in
that country coupled with a buildup of excessive inventories at certain retailers as a result of
decreased sales volumes.

Swimwear Group

Swimwear Group net revenues were as follows:

Fiscal Fiscal Increase %
2003 2002 ) (Decrease) Change
‘ (in thousands of dollars)
Speedo ... ... $240,405 $201,707 $38,698 19.2%
Designer swimwear (a) ............. 116,575 104,713 11,862 11.3%
Online retail store ................. 4,112 4,206 (94 —2.2%
Swimwear Group . .............co.. $361,092 $310,626 $50,466 16.2%

(a) Includes Catalina wholesale swimwear.

The increase in Swimwear net revenues resulted from a larger backlog entering the spring 2003
season, new product lines, an expanded customer base and better allowance and markdown
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experience (allowances decreased, as a percentage of gross sales, by 210 basis points in Fiscal 2003
compared to Fiscal 2002). The increase in Speedo net revenues primarily reflects higher sales of
Speedo fitness swim products and accessories to membership clubs and team dealers. The increase in
Designer swimwear net revenues was due to improved styling and increased door distribution for the
Catalina and Anne Cole lines, as well as sales of the Nautica line, which was introduced in the fourth
quarter of Fiscal 2003. Speedo Authentic Fitness retail net revenues, which reflect the online retail
store operation, decreased $0.1 million, or 2.2%, for Fiscal 2003 compared to Fiscal 2002.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was as follows:

"Fiscal % of Segment Fiscal % of Segment
2003 Net Revenues 2002 Net Revenues
(in thousands of dollars)
Intimate Apparel Group............ $199,598 34.8% $204,798 33.3%
Sportswear Group ................. 103,946 23.6% 99,963 20.7%
Swimwear Group .................. 131,424  36.4% 100,665 32.4%
Total gross profit. .......... P $434,968 31.6% $405,426 28.8%

Gross profit increased $29.5 million, or 7.3%, for Fiscal 2003 compared to Fiscal 2002. The 280
basis point increase in gross profit margin primarily reflects higher sales volume in the Company’s
Swimwear Group and lower product costs due to more efficient product sourcing. Gross profit for
Fiscal 2002 was reduced by $11.8 million of certain distribution and other product-related expenses
that were classified in cost of goods sold. Commencing February 4, 2003 (the date the Company
emerged from bankruptcy), the Company classifies these items as SG& A expenses. To meaningfully
compare gross margin for Fiscal 2003 to Fiscal 2002, the change in classification of these expenses
should be considered. Gross profit was $435.0 million, or 31.6% of net revenues, in Fiscal 2003
compared to $417.2 million, or 29.2% of net revenues, for Fiscal 2002 after adjusting Fiscal 2002 to
reflect this change. o

Intimate Apparel Group gross profit decreased $5.2 million, or 2.5%, and gross margin increased
150 basis points, reflecting a less favorable sales mix of $1.3 million and less favorable production and
manufacturing variances of $7.7 million, partially offset by an increase of $7.0 million as a result of the
change in classification of certain distribution and other product-related expenses that were classified
in cost of goods sold in Fiscal 2002.

Sportswear Group gross profit increased $4.0 million, or 4.0%, and gross margin increased 290
basis points, reflecting an increase of $4.3 million as a result of the change in classification of certain
distribution and other product-related expenses that were classified in cost of goods sold in Fiscal
2002. The Sportswear Group also experienced lower product costs due to better product sourcing.

Swimwear Group gross profit increased $30.8 million, or 30.6%, and gross margin increased 400
basis points, resulting from an increase in sales volume, a favorable sales mix, lower product costs due
to more efficient sourcing and increased efficiency and cost savings in the Company’s manufacturing
facilities. The increase in the gross margin reflects a 210 basis point decrease in the rate of sales
allowances and returns as a percentage of gross sales due to improvements in on-time shipping
performance. '

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

SG&A expenses for Fiscal 2003 decreased $18.2 million, or 4.9%, to $351.7 million (25.6% of net
revenues) compared to $369.9 million (26.3% of net revenues) for Fiscal 2002. SG&A expenses for
Fiscal 2003 included certain product-related costs which were included in cost of goods sold in Fiscal
2002. As adjusted for this change in classification, SG& A expenses declined $30.0 million for Fiscal
2003 compared to Fiscal 2002. This decline reflects lower sales volumes, a reduction in lease expenses
of $8.2 million for certain operating leases that were settled in connection with the Reorganization
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Plan, lower depreciation and amortization expenses of approximately $17.4 million (excluding the
amortization of sales order backlog of $11.8 million) and the Company’s expense management
initiatives. These reductions were partially offset by the inclusion in SG&A expenses of non-cash
stock-based compensation expenses of $5.5 million related to restricted stock and stock options
granted during Fiscal 2003, as well as a charge for incentive compensation of $8.8 million. SG&A
expenses for Fiscal 2003 included $5.0 million of legal and professional fees and certain employee-
related costs relating to the Chapter 11 Cases. Comparable expenses in Fiscal 2002 were included in
reorganization items.

Pension Income / Expense

Pension Plan income of $6.5 million for Fiscal 2003 reflects income earned by Pension Plan assets
in excess of the interest cost associated with Pension Plan projected benefit obligations. Pension Plan
expense was $5.4 million for Fiscal 2002. See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Amortization of Sales Order Backlog

Using the assistance of a third party appraiser, the Company determined that the fair value of its
order backlog at February 4, 2003 was $12.6 million, $11.8 million of which related to continuing
operations and $0.8 million of which was attributable to the discontinued ABS business unit. The
Company sold the assets of the ABS business unit in January 2004. The sales order backlog was
amortized over six months using the straight-line method and was fully amortized as of January 3,
2004.

Restructuring Items

Restructuring items were $19.1 million for the period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003. See
Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Reorganization Items

Reorganization items were $29.8 million and $114.5 million for the period January 5, 2003 to
February 4, 2003 and for Fiscal 2002, respectively. See Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Operating Income (Loss)

The following table presents operating income by group:

% of Net Fiscal % of Net
Fiscal 2003 Revenues 2002 Revenues
(in thousands of dollars)

Intimate Apparel Group............ $ 55,858 $ 47,078

Sportswear Group ................. 31,764 20,185

Swimwear Group .................. 52,901 30,036
Group operating income............ 140,523 10.2% 97299 6.9%
Unallocated corporate expenses .. ... (62,603) —4.6% (67,230) ~4.8%
Restructuring items ................ {19,101) -1.4% — 0.0%
Reorganization items. .............. (29,805) =2.2% (114,495) -8.1%
Operating income (loss) ............ $ 29,014 2.1% $ (84,426) =6.0%

The increase in operating income of $113.4 million primarily reflects increased operating income
generated by the Company’s business groups of $43.2 million, due primarily to increased gross profit
and decreased SG&A expenses, and a $65.6 million decrease in reorganization and restructuring
items. Corporate expenses decreased $4.6 million, primarily the result of a reduction in depreciation
expense and the Company’s expense management initiatives, partially offset by the recognition of
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stock compensation expense of $5.5 million and a charge for incentive compensation of $8.8 million.
In addition, the Company incurred legal and professional fees and certain employee costs relating to
the Chapter 11 Cases of $5.0 million.

Intimate Apparel Group

Intimate Apparel Group operating income was as follows:

Fiscal % of Brand Fiscal % of Brand
2003 Net Revenues 2002 Net Revenues
(in thousands of dollars)
Calvin Klein underwear......... $39,837 14.3% £27,736 11.6%
Core Brands .................. 7,524 4.2% 13,601 6.1%
Lejaby. ... it 9,256 9.2% 8,572 9.5%
Retail ........................ (456) =3.6% (318) =2.0%
Total continuing business units ... ... 56,161 9.8% 49 591 8.7%
Total discontinued and sold business

UNIES . .vev et (303) e (2,513) ~5.4%
Intimate Apparel Group............ $55,858 9.8% $47,078 17%

The Intimate Apparel Group’s operating income increased $8.8 million, reflecting increases in
Calvin Klein underwear of $12.1 million and Lejaby of $0.7 million, partially offset by a decrease in
Core Brands of $6.1 million. In addition, operating losses from discontinued and sold units decreased
$2.2 million in Fiscal 2003 compared to Fiscal 2002. The increase in operating income of Calvin Klein
underwear is primarily attributable to an increase in net sales coupled with the positive impact of a
stronger euro. The increase in operating income of Lejaby reflects the effect of a stronger euro and
cost reductions related to the structuring of the Company’s operations in France. The lower operating
income in Core Brands primarily reflects the decrease in revenue as discussed above coupled with an
increase in certain administrative costs of approximately $1.5 million incurred to strengthen the
infrastructure necessary to support future growth of existing brands and the development of new
brands.

Sportswear Group

Sportswear Group operating income was as follows:

Fiscal % of Brand Fiscal % of Brand
2003 Net Revenues 2002 Net Revenues
(in thousands of dollars)
CRADS oo $ 9,718 7.5% $ 8,947 6.5%
Calvin Klein jeans ................. 9,447 3.3% (147) 0.0%
Calvin Klein accessories ............ 1,795 13.5% 761 53%
Mass sportswear licensing........... 10,804 72.9% 10,624 75.4%
Sportswear Group ................. $31,764 7.2% $20,185 42%

Sportswear Group operating income increased $11.6 million, or 57.4%, primarily due to increased
operating margins in Chaps and Calvin Klein jeans. The improvement in Chaps operating margin is
attributable to increased gross profit and gross profit percentage coupled with lower SG&A expenses.
The improvement in Calvin Klein jeans operating income reflects higher gross margins due to
improved product sourcing and the closure of two jeans manufacturing facilities in  Fiscal 2002. During
December 2003, the Company sold its White Stag trademarks to Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. The revenues
generated by these trademarks were included in mass sportswear licensing and yielded an operating
income of $10.8 million in Fiscal 2003.
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Swimwear Group

Swimwear Group operating income was as follows:

Fiscal % of Brand Fiscal % of Brand
2003 Net Revenues 2002 Net Revenues
(in thousands of dollars)
Speedo ... ... $34,729 14.4% $21,340 10.6%
Designer................. it 16,574 14.2% 7,875 7.5%
Ubertech ..., 34 0.0% (654) 0.0%
Online retail store ................. 1,564 38.0% 1,475 351%
Swimwear Group .................. $52,901 14.7% $30,036 9.7%

Swimwear Group operating income increased $22.9 million, or 76.1%, primarily due to higher
gross profit as a result of an increase in sales volume, a more favorable sales mix, lower product costs
due to more efficient sourcing and increased efficiency and costs savings in the Company’s
manufacturing facilities. Swimwear Group operating income for Fiscal 2002 includes approximately
$3.0 million of bad debt expense primarily associated with certain Speedo team dealers.

Gain on Cancellation of Debt and Fresh Start Adjustments

Fiscal 2003 includes a gain of $1,692.7 million related to the cancellation of the Company’s
pre-petition debt and other liabilities subject to compromise net of the fair value of cash and securities
distributed to the pre-petition creditors. Fresh start adjustments of $765.7 million represent
adjustments to the carrying amount of the Company’s assets to fair value in accordance with the
provisions of SOP 90-7. See Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Interest Expense, Net

During the term of the Chapter 11 Cases, the Company did not accrue interest on its pre-petition
debt and, as a result, the Company’s interest expense consisted of interest on the Amended DIP and
certain foreign debt agreements subject to standstill agreements that were repaid in connection with
the settlement of the Chapter 11 Cases. As a result of the Company’s emergence from bankruptcy and
the issuance of the Second Lien Notes (repaid in connection with the offering of the Senior Notes
issued on June 12, 2003), interest expense for Fiscal 2003 was higher than the amounts recorded in
Fiscal 2002.

Interest expense increased $2.4 million, or 12.0%, to $22.4 million in Fiscal 2003, as compared to
$20.0 million in Fiscal 2002. Interest expense for Fiscal 2003 included interest for one month of $1.0
million on certain foreign debt agreements subject to standstill agreements, interest on the Second
Lien Notes of $6.7 million, interest on the Senior Notes of $10.0 million, amortization of deferred
financing fees of $2.1 million and other interest and fees of $2.6 million. Interest expense for Fiscal
2002 included the amortization of deferred financing costs of $8.5 million related to fees and charges
on the Amended DIP, $5.2 million related to borrowing on the Amended DIP, interest on foreign debt
agreements paid as part of the Reorganization Plan of $9.8 million (of which $7.8 million was included
in income (loss) from continuing operations and $2.0 million was included in loss from discontinued
operations) and other interest and fees of $1.5 million. Interest expense in Fiscal 2002 included $3.5
million of interest income related to tax refunds received in June 2002 and interest earned on cash
balances held in cash collateral accounts.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense for Fiscal 2003 of $90.2 million includes income taxes related to the income
of foreign operations of $11.6 million, state and local income taxes of $1.0 million and deferred
income taxes of $77.6 million related to the recording of the Company’s assets at fair value in
accordance with fresh start accounting. The income tax provision from continuing operations for Fiscal
2002 was $49.6 million, which consisted primarily of an increase in the valuation allowance of $44.6
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million resulting mainly from the adoption of SFAS 142, a tax provision of $32.8 million relating to a
distribution of foreign earnings and a tax provision of $3.7 million relating to earnings from foreign
operations, offset by a tax benefit of $36.5 million relating to the Company’s pre-tax operating loss of
$104.3 million.

Discontinued Operations

Losses from discontinued operations were $18.9 million and $9.3 million for Fiscal 2003 and Fiscal
2002, respectively. See Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

As of January 5, 2002, the Company had goodwill and other indefinite lived intangible assets net
of accumulated amortization of approximately $940.1 million. The Company adopted SFAS 142
effective January 6, 2002. Under the provisions of SFAS 142, goodwill is deemed impaired if the net
book value of a business reporting unit exceeds the fair value of that business reporting unit.
Intangible assets may be deemed impaired if the carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the assets.
The Company engaged an independent third party appraisal firm to assist the Company in its
determination of the Company’s business enterprise value (“BEV”) in connection with the preparation
of the Reorganization Plan. The Company allocated the BEV to its various reporting units and
determined that the value of certain of its indefinite lived intangible assets and goodwill was impaired.
As a result, the Company recorded a charge of $801.6 million, net of income tax benefit of $53.5
million, as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting from the adoption of SFAS 142 on January 6,
2002.

Capital Resources and Liquidity
Financing Arrangements

Senior Notes

On June 12, 2003, Warnaco Inc., the principal operating subsidiary of Warnaco, completed the
sale of $210.0 million aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes at par value, which notes mature on
June 15, 2013 and bear interest at 87%4% payable semi-annually on December 15 and June 15 of each
year. No principal payments prior to the maturity date are required. The Senior Notes are
unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, by Warnaco and substantially all of Warnaco Inc.’s
domestic subsidiaries {all of which are 100% owned, either directly or indirectly, by Warnaco). The
Senior Notes are effectively subordinate in right of payment to existing and future secured debt
(including the Company’s Revolving Credit Facility) and to the obligations (including trade accounts
payable) of the subsidiaries that are not guarantors of the Senior Notes. The guarantees of each
guarantor are effectively subordinate to that guarantor’s existing and future secured debt (including
guarantees of the Revolving Credit Facility) to the extent of the value of the assets securing that debt.
There are no restrictions that prevent the guarantor subsidiaries from transferring funds or paying
dividends to the Company. The indenture pursuant to which the Senior Notes were issued contains
covenants which, among other things, restrict the Company’s ability to incur additional debt, pay
dividends and make restricted payments, create or permit certain liens, use the proceeds of sales of
assets and subsidiaries’ stock, create or permit restrictions on the ability of certain of Warnaco Inc.’s
subsidiaries to pay dividends or make other distributions to Warnaco or to Warnaco Inc., enter into
transactions with affiliates, engage in certain business activities, engage in sale and leaseback
transactions and consolidate or merge or sell all or substantially all of its assets. The Company was in
compliance with the covenants of the Senior Notes at January 1, 2005. Redemption of the Senior
Notes prior to their maturity is subject to premiums as set forth in the indenture. Proceeds from the
sale of the Senior Notes were used to repay the outstanding principal balance on the Second Lien
Notes of $200.9 million and accrued interest thereon of $2.0 million. The proceeds were also used to
pay underwriting fees, legal and professional fees and other expenses associated with the offering in
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an aggregate amount of approximately $7.1 million. In connection with the offering of the Senior
Notes, the Company entered into a registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers of the
Senior Notes, which, among other things, required Warnaco Inc. and the guarantors to complete a
registration and exchange of the Senior Notes. In accordance with the registration rights agreement,
the Company completed the registration and exchange of the Senior Notes in the first quarter of
Fiscal 2004.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

On September 18, 2003, the Company entered into an Interest Rate Swap Agreement (the “2003
Swap Agreement”) with respect to the Senior Notes for a total notional amount of $50 million. The
2003 Swap Agreement provides that the Company will receive interest at 872% and pay a variable rate
of interest based upon six month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 4.11% (6.8% at
January 1, 2005). The 2003 Swap Agreement expires on June 15, 2013 (the date on which the Senior
Notes mature).

On November 5, 2004, the Company entered into a second Interest Rate Swap Agreement (the
“2004 Swap Agreement”) with respect to the Company’s Senior Notes for a total notional amount of
$25 million. The 2004 Swap Agreement provides that the Company will receive interest of 874% and
pay a variable rate of interest based upon six months LIBOR plus 4.34% (7.03% at January 1, 2005).
The 2004 Swap Agreement expires on June 15, 2013 (the date on which the Senior Notes mature).

As a result of the 2003 and 2004 Swap Agreements, the weighted average effective interest rate
of the Senior Notes was reduced to 8.16% as of January 1, 2005.

The Company designated the 2003 and 2004 Swap Agreements as fair value hedges of the
changes in fair value of $50 million and $25 million, respectively, aggregate principal amount of the
$210 million aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes outstanding. As of January 1, 2005, the fair
value of the 2003 Swap Agreement was a gain of $0.1 million, recorded as part of other assets, which
was offset by a corresponding loss on the hedged debt. As of January 1, 2005, the fair value of the
2004 Swap Agreement was a loss of $0.3 million, recorded as part of long-term debt, which was offset
by a corresponding gain on the hedged debt. No hedge ineffectiveness is recognized in the
consolidated statement of operations, as the provisions of the 2003 and 2004 Swap Agreements match
the provisions of the hedged debt.

Revolving Credit Facility

On the Effective Date, the Company entered into the Revolving Credit Facility. The Revolving
Credit Facility provides for a four-year, non-amortizing revolving credit facility. The Revolving Credit
Facility includes provisions that allow the Company to increase the maximum available borrowing
from $175.0 million to $325.0 million. Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility bear interest at
Citibank N.A.s base rate plus 1.25% (6.50% at January 1, 2005) or at LIBOR plus 2.25%
(approximately 4.81% at January 1, 2005). The Company enters into contracts to elect the LIBOR
option when it expects borrowings to be outstanding for more than 30 days. The remaining balances
bear interest at the base rate plus 1.25%. Pursuant to the terms of the Revolving Credit Facility, the
interest rate the Company will pay on its outstanding loans will decrease by as much as 0.25% in the
event the Company achieves certain defined ratios. The Revolving Credit Facility contains financial
covenants that, among other things, require the Company to maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio
above a minimum level and a leverage ratio below a maximum level and to limit the amount of the
Company’s capital expenditures. In addition, the Revolving Credit Facility contains certain covenants
that, among other things, limit investments and asset sales, prohibit the payment of dividends (subject
to limited exceptions) and prohibit the Company from incurring material additional indebtedness. As
of January 1, 2005, the Company was in compliance with the covenants of the Revolving Credit
Facility. The Revolving Credit Facility is guaranteed by Warnaco and substantially all of the domestic
subsidiaries of Warnaco Inc. and the obligations under such guarantee, together with the Company’s
obligations under the Revolving Credit Facility, are secured by a first priority lien on substantially all
of the domestic assets of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries. As of January 1, 2005, the
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Company had repaid all amounts owing under the Revolving Credit Facility, had not borrowed under
the Revolving Credit Facility in Fiscal 2004 and had approximately $37.3 million of cash and cash
equivalents available as collateral against outstanding letters of credit of $61.1 million; cash, primarily
in foreign operations, of $28.3 million; and $151.2 million of borrowing capacity available under the
Revolving Credit Facility inclusive of the cash and cash equivalents available as collateral against the
outstanding letters of credit.

On November 12, 2003, the Revolving Credit Facility was amended to: (i) modify certain
definitions and covenants; (ii) permit certain asset sales; (iii) permit the use of cash balances to fund
acquisitions; and (iv) allow the Company to repurchase up to $10.0 million of the Company’s
outstanding Senior Notes.

On August 1, 2004, the Revolving Credit Facility was further amended to increase financial
flexibility and reduce commitment fees. Specifically, the Revolving Credit Facility was amended to: (i)
reduce the available borrowings on which the Company pays commitment fees from $275.0 million to
$175.0 million (the Company retained the right to increase the amount of borrowing available to a
maximum of $325.0 million, equal to the maximum amount of borrowing available prior to the
amendment); (ii) increase the amount of liens the Company can incur to $10.0 million; (iii) increase
the amount of indebtedness the Company can incur to $10.0 million; (iv) increase the Company’s
ability to make investments in foreign subsidiaries to $10.0 million; (v) permit investments in
investment grade securities; (vi) allow the Company to pay dividends, repurchase indebtedness and
repurchase common stock in an aggregate of $50.0 million, provided that after such payment or
repurchases the Company has $50.0 million of “cash on hand” (as defined in the Revolving Credit
Facility); and (vii) permit the cash portion of asset sales to be as low as 50 percent of the total sales
price (the remainder to be paid by note), prowded that there are no borrowings outstanding under the
Revolving Credit Facility.

The Company’s ability to pay dividends, repurchase indebtedness and repurchase common stock
is limited by certain provisions of the indenture governing the Senior Notes.

Liquidity

As of January 1, 2005, the Company had working capital of $434.2 million and had no borrowings
outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility. As of January 1, 2005, the Company had $37.3
million of cash available as collateral against $61.1 million of letters of credit outstanding. Total cash

and cash equivalents increased $12.1 million from $53.5 million as of January 3, 2004 to $65.6 million
as of January 1, 2005.

The Company’s total debt as of January 1, 2005 was $210.8 million, consisting primarily of the
Senior Notes.

The Company emerged from bankruptcy on February 4, 2003. Initial borrowings under the
Revolving Credit Facility were $39.2 million on February 4, 2003, all of which were repaid by January
3, 2004. As of January 3, 2004, the Company had $41.4 million of cash available to collateralize $66.2
million of letters of credit outstanding.

At January 3, 2004, debt had decreased $35.4 million to $211.1 million from $246.5 million at
February 4, 2003 (the date the Company emerged from bankriptcy). Cash at January 3, 2004 had
increased $32.8 million to $53.5 million from $20.7 million (not including restricted cash of $6.2
million) at February 4, 2003. The decrease in debt and increase in cash is the result of improved cash
flows from operations during the period February S, 2003 to January 3, 2004.

During Fiscal 2002, the Company operated under the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code, which
directly affected its cash flows. Operating under the protection of the Bankruptcy Court, the Company
made improvements in its operations and sold certain assets, thereby improving its cash position
subsequent to June 11, 2001 through February 4, 2003. The Company was not permitted to pay any
pre-petition liabilities without prior approval of the Bankruptcy Court, including interest or principal
on its pre-petition debt obligations. The Company had $2,486 million of pre-petition liabilities
outstanding at January 4, 2003, including $349.7 million of trade drafts and $164.8 million of accounts
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payable and accrued liabilities. From June 11, 2001 through January 4, 2003, the Company sold certain
personal property, certain owned buildings and land and other assets for $36.2 million, including $23.2
million from the sale of inventory associated with its closed outlet retail stores. Substantially all of the
net proceeds from these sales were used to reduce outstanding borrowings under the Amended DIP
or to provide collateral for outstanding trade and stand-by letters of credit. The Amended DIP
terminated on February 4, 2003.

In addition, during the first quarter of Fiscal 2002, the Company sold the businesses and
substantially all of the assets of GJM and Penhaligon’s. The sales of GIM and Penhaligon’s generated
aggregate net proceeds of $20.5 million and an aggregate net loss of $2.9 million. Proceeds from the
sale of GJM and Penhaligon’s were used to: (i) reduce amounts outstanding under certain debt
agreements of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries which were not part of the Chapter 11 Cases ($4.8
million); (ii) reduce amounts outstanding under the Amended DIP ($4.2 million); (iii) create an
escrow fund (subsequently returned in June 2002) for the benefit of pre-petition secured lenders ($9.4
million); and (iv) create an escrow fund (subsequently returned to the Company in February 2003) for
the benefit of the purchasers of GJM and Penhaligon’s for potential indemnification claims and for
any working capital valuation adjustments ($1.7 million).

The Company believes that cash available under its Revolving Credit Facility and cash to be
generated from future operating activities will be sufficient to fund its operations, including capital
expenditures, for the next three years. If the Company requires additional sources of capital, it will
consider reducing capital expenditures, seeking additional financing or selling assets to meet such
requirements.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes the cash flows from the Company’s operating, investing and
financing activities for Fiscal 2004, 2003 (as restated) and 2002. The cash flows for Fiscal 2003 (as
restated) include cash flows for the period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 combined with cash
flows for the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 (as restated).

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2004 2003 2002

(in thousands of dollars)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Continuing operations . ..............oovvven.. $ 54,816 $ 64,263 $ 222,381

Discontinued operations . ..................... (4.497) (5,601) 3,867
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities:

Continuing operations . . .........coovveennnn.. (46,383) (18,666) 16,451

Discontinued operations . . .................... 1,137 (586) (266)
Net cash provided by (used in) ﬁnancmg activities:

Continuing operations . ............oveevenene.. 637 (112,482) (176,273)

Discontinued operations .. .................... -— — (556)
Translation adjustments. . ....................... 6,421 12,504 8,863
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. . . $ 12,131 $ (60,568) § 74467

For Fiscal 2004, cash provided by operating activities from continuing operations was $54.8
million compared to $64.3 million in Fiscal 2003 and $222.4 million in Fiscal 2002. Cash provided by
operating activities from continuing operations in Fiscal 2004 reflects income from continuing
operations of $42.5 million. The $9.4 million decrease in cash flows from continuing operations in
Fiscal 2004 compared to Fiscal 2003 reflects a $44.9 million increase in net income (after adjusting for
the effect of non cash items) offset by a $54.4 million decrease in cash flows from operating assets and
liabilities. The decrease in cash flows from operating assets and liabilities primarily reflects the $39.9
million increase in working capital primarily as a result of a $55.8 million increase in inventory related
to the Chaps business (to support Chaps’ introduction to the mid-tier channel of distribution) and
increases in Calvin Klein jeans inventories as a result of an expected increase in shipments for the first
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quarter of 2005. Cash flows from continuing operations in Fiscal 2003 reflects improvements in
inventory management partially offset by the seasonal reduction in accounts payable primarily related
to the purchase of swimwear inventory and cash payments of severance and other items related to the
Company’s restructuring of its French manufacturing operations. In addition, cash interest payments
for Fiscal 2003 include the initial payment on the Senior Notes in December 2003 of $9.3 million and
the payment of interest on foreign debt in January 2003 of approximately $9.8 million. Cash provided
by operating activities in Fiscal 2002 reflects reductions in inventory and accounts receivable
amounting to $156.2 million. The sale of domestic outlet store inventory accounted for approximately
$23.2 million of cash flow in Fiscal 2002. Fiscal 2002 also includes the payment of professional fees
and expenses related to the Company’s bankruptcy of $58.1 million.

For Fiscal 2004, cash used in investing activities from continuing operations was $46.4 million
compared to $18.7 million in Fiscal 2003. Cash used in investing activities in Fiscal 2004 primarily
reflects the acquisition of the Ocean Pacific business for $40.0 million and additions to property, plant
and equipment of $29.6 million, partially offset by proceeds on the sale of assets of ABS of $15.2
million, collection of notes receivable of $6.4 million (primarily related to the sale of the White Stag
trademark to Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.) and sale of other assets of $2.5 million. Cash used in investing
activities in Fiscal 2003 primarily reflects capital expenditures of $29.4 million, partially offset by the
net proceeds from the sale of the Whire Stag trademark to Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. of $9.5 million. Cash
provided from investing activities for Fiscal 2002 includes capital expenditures of $11.0 million offset
by proceeds from the sale of GJM and Penhaligon’s of $20.6 million and other asset sales of $6.8
million.

Cash provided by investing activities from discontinued operations was $1.1 miilion in Fiscal 2004
compared to cash used in investing activities from discontinued operations of $0.6 million in Fiscal
2003 and $0.3 million in Fiscal 2002. Cash provided by investing activities from discontinued
operations in Fiscal 2004 primarily reflects net proceeds of $1.2 million received from the sale of real
property in the United Kingdom related to the Company’s Warner’s Europe operations.

Cash provided by financing activities for Fiscal 2004 primarily reflects proceeds from the exercise
of stock options of $3.0 million, partially offset by repayments of debt of $2.3 million. Cash used in
financing activities for both Fiscal 2003 and Fiscal 2002 primarily reflects the repayment of amounts
outstanding on the Revolving Credit Facility and other debt agreements. Financing activities for Fiscal
2003 include the gross proceeds of $210.0 million from the issuance of the Senior Notes in June 2003,
offset by the repayment of the principal balance of the Second Lien Notes of $200.9 million and the
payment of underwriting and professional fees associated with the issuance of the Senior Notes of
approximately $7.1 million. Cash used in financing activities for Fiscal 2003 includes the payment of
outstanding amounts on certain foreign debt agreements of $106.1 million in connection with the
Company’s emergence from bankruptcy on February 4, 2003.

Cash in operating accounts primarily represents lockbox receipts not yet cleared or available to
the Company, cash held by foreign subsidiaries and compensating balances required under various
trade, credit and other arrangements.

Pursuant to the terms of the Reorganization Plan, the Company distributed $106.1 million of cash
to its pre-petition secured creditors on February 4, 2003. The source of the cash distribution was
excess cash on hand of $75.5 million and borrowings of $39.2 million under the Revolving Credit
Facility. The Company also made $8.6 million of cash distributions for various administrative claims
and expeunses, including bank fees associated with the Revolving Credit Facility.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual commitments as of January 1, 2005:

Payments Due by Year

Contractual Obligations 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Total
(Dollars in thousands)

Revolving Credit Facility (a). $ - % - — 8% — 8% — 3 — $ —
Severance obligations (b).... 3,219 — — — — — 3,219
Employment contracts. ...... 3,474 2,833 1,535 —_ — — 7,842
IT software development

contract ........oouuen.. 4,785 — — — — — 4,785
IT maintenance contracts. ... 739 815 356~ 350 350 — 2,604
IT license contracts ......... 2,088 904 —_ — — — 2,992
Minimum royalties (c)....... 29,981 31,696 36,862 34,893 34978 459982 628,392
Trade Letters of credit (d). .. 61,097 — — — — — 61,097
Senior Notes (€)............ — — — — — 210,000 210,000
Purchase obligations (f) ..... 12,642 4,050 — — — — 16,692
Pension plan funding (g)..... 5,722 5,306 5,306 5,306 5,306 2,165 29,111
Operating leases (¢)......... 22,554 18460 15408 13881 127284 60,839 143,426
Capital leases .............. 333 333 133 — — — 799
Total...................... $146,634 $64,397 $59,594 $54.430 $52,918 $732,986 $1,110,959

(a) The Revolving Credit Facility matures on February 4, 2007. There were no amounts outstanding
under the Revolving Credit Facility as of January 1, 2005 and therefore, no maturity amount is
included in the commitments table.

(b) Reflects estimated severance and other obligations related to the Company’s restructuring
activities. See Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(c) See Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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(d) Trade letters of credit represent obligations to suppliers for inventory purchases. The trade letters
of credit generally have maturities of six months or less and will only be paid upon satisfactory
delivery of the inventory by the supplier. The Company also has contingent liabilities under
standby letters of credit in the amount of $19.1 million representing guarantees of performance
under various contractual obligations. These commitments will only be drawn if the Company fails
to meet its obligations under the related contract.

(e) The Senior Notes and related swap agreements mature on June 15, 2013. See — Capital Resources
and Liquidity — Financing Arrangements and Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(f) Represents contractual commitments for goods or services not received or recorded on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet. See Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(g) Estimates of total Pension Plan funding are subject to final adjustment based on the investment
performance of the Pension Plan’s assets, changes in actuarial assumptlons and other factors. See
Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Seasonality

The operations of the Company are somewhat seasonal. In Fiscal 2004, approximately 50.9% of
the Company’s net revenues were generated in the first half of the fiscal year. The Company’s
Swimwear business is seasonal; approximately 70.3% of the Swimwear Group’s net revenues were
generated in the first half of Fiscal 2004. The working capital needs of the Swimwear Group are
highest during the periods when the Company’s other businesses have their lowest working capital
requirements. Sales and earnings from the Company’s other groups and business units are generally
expected to be somewhat higher in the second half of the fiscal year.

The following sets forth the net revenues, operating income and net cash flow from operating
activities generated for each quarter of Fiscal 2004 and Fiscal 2003.

For the Three Months Ended For the Three Months Ended

April 3, July 3, October 2,  January 1, April 5,  July 5, October 4, Janwary 3,
2004 2004 2004 2005 2003 2003 2003 2004
(in millions of dolars)
Net revenues. . . ...... $393.3 $332.1 $324.4 $374.4 $423.5 $319.3 $293.7 $337.9
Operating income (loss) . 43.2 12.8 7.8 32.3 238 (10.5) 24) 18.1
Cash flow provided by
(used in% operating
activities . ... ...... 3.0 89.7 (41.6) (0.8) (37.1) 101.4 (13.7) 8.1
Inflation

The Company does not believe that the relatively moderate levels of inflation in the United
States, Canada and Western Europe have had a significant effect on its net revenues or its profitability
in any of the last three fiscal years. The Company believes that, in the past, it has been able to offset
such effects by increasing prices or instituting improvements in productivity. Mexico historically has
been subject to high rates of inflation; however, the effects of inflation on the operation of the
Company’s Mexican subsidiaries have not had a material effect on the results of the Company in any
of the last three fiscal years.

Deflation of Apparel Selling Prices

Management believes the apparel industry is undergoing significant changes in its manufacturing
and procurement business cycles through the lifting of import restrictions on certain products, overall
deflation in the selling prices of its products and department store and retailer demands for increased
profitability and accountability from the wholesale apparel industry. The Company expects to meet
these challenges by improving its procurement process through aggressive sourcing of product from
multiple vendors and locations, improving its efficiency through upgraded systems and improved
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procedures, maintaining a diverse mix of products that are offered at multiple price points across
multiple channels of distribution and maintaining a conservative capital structure.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company is not engaged in any off-balance sheet arrangements through unconsolidated
entities. -

New Accounting Standards

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No.
46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (“FIN 46™), an interpretation of Accounting Research
Bulletin No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements (“ARB 517). FIN 46 clarifies the application of
ARB 51 to certain entities in which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling
financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without
additional subordinated financial support from other parties. FIN 46 explains how to identify variable
interest entities and how an enterprise assesses its interests in a variable interest entity to decide
whether to consolidate that entity. It requires existing unconsolidated variable interest entities to be
consolidated by their primary beneficiaries if the entities do not effectively disperse risks among
parties involved. It also requires certain disclosures by the primary beneficiary of a variable interest
entity and by an enterprise that holds significant variable interests in a variable interest entity where
the enterprise is not the primary beneficiary. FIN 46 is effective for variable interest entities created
after January 31, 2003 and for variable interest entities in which an enterprise obtains an interest after
that date, and effective for the first fiscal year or interim period beginning after June 15, 2003 for
variable interest entities in which an enterprise holds a variable interest that it acquired before
February 1, 2003. In December 2003, the FASB published a revision to FIN 46 (“FIN 46R”) to clarify
certain provisions of FIN 46. FIN 46R was effective for the Company’s first quarter of Fiscal 2004.
FIN 46 and FIN 46R did not have a material affect on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

In May 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. 106-2, Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization
Act of 2003 (“FSP 106-2”) regarding SFAS No. 106, Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions (“SFAS 106”). FSP No. 106-2 discusses the effect of the Medicare Prescription
Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act (the “Act”) enacted in December 2003 and supersedes
FSP No. 106-1, which was issued in January 2004. FSP 106-2 considers the effect of the two new
features introduced in the Act in determining the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation
(“APBQO”) and net periodic postretirement benefit cost. The effect on the APBO will be accounted
for as an actuarial experience gain to be amortized into income over the average remaining service
period of plan participants. Companies may elect to defer accounting for this benefit or may attempt
to reflect the best estimate of the impact of the Act on their net periodic costs currently. FSP No.
106-2 was effective for the second half of Fiscal 2004. Based upon the provisions of the Company’s
postretirement benefit plans, the retirees eligible to participate in such plans, the participation rate of
such retirees and the contribution rates attributable to the participants in the plans, the Company does
not believe that the enactment of the Act was a “Significant Event” to its postretirement benefit plans
as defined in paragraph 73 of SFAS 106. The Company considered the effects of the Act in its
measurement of its postretirement benefit obligations as of January 1, 2005 and determined that the
Act had no effect on the Company’s postretirement benefit obligation and the related postretirement
benefits expense. Future changes to the Company’s postretirement benefit plan provisions will be
evaluated and the effects, if any, will be disclosed in accordance with FSP 106-2.

In October 2004, the FASB issued EITF No. 04-1, Accounting for Preexisting Relationships
between the Parties to a Business Combination (“EITF 04-1”). EITF 04-1 addresses the accounting for
preexisting relationships between the parties to a business combination such as settlement of a
preexisting relationship, acquisition of a right that the acquirer had previously granted to the acquired
entity and recognition of a settlement gain in conjunction with the effective settlement of a lawsuit or
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an executory contract in a business combination. EITF 04-1 is effective for business combinations
consummated and goodwill impairment tests performed in reporting periods beginning after October
13, 2004, Adoption of EITF (4-1 did not have an effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

In October 2004, the FASB issued EITF No. 04-10, Determining Whether to Aggregate Operating
Segments That Do Not Meet the Quantitative Thresholds (“EITF 04-107). EITF 04-10 provides
guidance on the aggregation criteria in paragraph 17 of SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of
an Enterprise and Related Information (“SFAS 131”) when determining whether operating segments
that do not meet the quantitative thresholds may be aggregated in accordance with paragraph 19 of
SFAS 131. EITF 04-10 is effective for fiscal years ending after October 13, 2004. The effective date of
EITF 04-10 is expected to coincide with the effective date of a FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) that will
provide additional guidance on segment disclosures. The Company will evaluate the effect of EITF
04-10 and the related FSP on its consolidated financial statements when the FSP is issued.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB No.
43, Chapter 4 (“SFAS 1517). SFAS 151 clarifies the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility
expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage). SFAS 151 is effective for inventory
costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. Earlier application is permitted for
costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after November 24, 2004. The Company believes the
provisions of SFAS 151 are consistent with its current accounting position and does not expect the
adoption of SFAS 151 to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (“SFAS
123R”). SFAS 123R requires compensation costs related to share-based payment transactions to be
recognized in the financial statements. With limited exceptions, the amount of compensation cost will
be measured based on the grant-date fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued. In
addition, liability awards will be remeasured each reporting period. Compensation cost will be
recognized over the period that an employee provides service in exchange for the award. SFAS 123R
replaces SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes APB No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. SFAS 123R is effective as of the first interim or annual
reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005. SFAS 123R requires companies to estimate the
forfeiture rate of stock based compensation awards. Since February 5, 2003, the Company has
recorded stock-based compensation expense based on actual forfeitures and is in the process of
evaluating the effect of SFAS 123R on its consolidated financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets, an
amendment of APB Opinion No. 29 (“SFAS 153”). SFAS 153 amends APB No. 29 to eliminate the
exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general
exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A
nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to
change significantly as a result of the exchange. SFAS 153 is effective for nonmonetary asset
exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. Earlier application is permitted for
nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after December 16, 2004. The
adoption of SFAS 153 is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FSP 109-1, Application of FASB Statement No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes,” to the Tax Deduction on Qualified Production Activities Provided by
the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (“FSP 109-1") and FSP 109-2, Accounting and Disclosure
Guidance for the Foreign Earnings Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of
2004 (“FSP 109-2”). FSP 109-1, which became effective upon issuance, provides guidance in
determining that a tax deduction on qualified production activities provided for in the American Jobs
Creation Act of 2004 should be accounted for as a special deduction in accordance with SFAS 109.
FSP 109-2, which became effective upon issuance, provides guidance and accounting for the special
one-time dividends received deduction of 85 percent of certain foreign earnings that are repatriated in
either an enterprise’s last tax year that began before the enactment date, or the first tax year that
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begins during the one-year period beginning on the date of enactment. The Company expects that all
profits earned by its foreign subsidiaries will be permanently invested and therefore the Company has
no current plans to repatriate any foreign earmngs that will qualify for the special one-time dividends
received deduction.

Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Disclosure

This Annual Report on Form 10-K may contain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning
of Rule 3b-6 of the Exchange Act, Rule 175 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and relevant
legal decisions. The forward-looking statements reflect, when made, the Company’s expectations or
beliefs concerning future events that involve risks and uncertainties, including general economic
conditions affecting the apparel industry, changmg fashion trends, pricing pressures which may cause
the Company to lower its prices, increases in the prices of raw materials the Company uses, changing
international trade regulation and elimination of quotas on imports of textiles and apparel, the
Company’s history of losses, the Company’s ability to protect its intellectual property rights, the
Company’s dependency on a limited number of customers, the Company’s dependency on the
reputation of its brand names, the Company’s exposure to conditions in overseas markets, the
competition in the Company’s markets, the comparability of financial statements for periods before
and after the Company’s adoption of fresh start accounting, the Company’s history of restated
financial statements, the Company’s future plans concerning guidance regarding its resulits of
operations, the effect of the settlement with the SEC, the effect of local laws and regulations,
shortages of supply of sourced goods or interruptions in the Company’s manufacturing, the Company’s
level of debt, the Company’s ability to obtain additional financing, the restrictions on the Company’s
operations imposed by its Revolving Credit Facility and the indenture governing the Senior Notes and
the Company’s ability to service its debt. All statements other than statements of historical fact
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are forward-looking statements. Although the Company
believes that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, it can give
no assurance that such expectations will prove to have been correct. The Company disclaims any
intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise. These forward-looking statements may contain the words
“believe,” “anticipate,” “expect,” “estimate,” “project,” “will be,” “will continue,” “will likely resuit,”
or other similar words and phrases. Forward-looking statements and the Company’s plans and
expectations are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those anticipated, and the Company’s business in general is sub]ect to certain risks
that could affect the value of its stock.

33 &« EEINTS

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

The Company is exposed to market risk related to changes in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates. Prior to the Petition Date, the Company selectively used financial instruments to
manage these risks.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company is subject to market risk from exposure to changes in interest rates based primarily
on its financing activities. As of January 1, 2005, the Company did not have any borrowings
outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility and had not borrowed under the Revolving Credit
Facility since the second quarter of Fiscal 2003. However, if the initial borrowings of $39.2 million at
February 4, 2003 had been outstanding for the entire 2003 fiscal year, a hypothetical adverse change in
interest rates of 100 basis points (i.e., an increase from the Company’s actual interest rate of 3.67% at
January 3, 2004 to 4.67%) would have resulted in an increase of approximately $0.4 million per year in
interest expense. A hypothetical adverse change in interest rates of 100 basis points would not have
had any effect on interest related to the Senior Notes as the interest rate on the Senior Notes is fixed.
See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Capital
Resources and Liquidity — Financing Arrangements and Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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In September 2003, the Company entered into the 2003 Swap Agreement, effectively converting
$50 million of its fixed rate Senior Notes to variable rate debt. In November 2004, the Company
entered into the 2004 Swap Agreement, effectively converting $25 million of its fixed rate Senior
Notes to variable rate debt. By entering into these swap agreements, the Company agreed to exchange
the difference between the fixed and variable interest rates on the $75 million notional amount
semi-annually. The 2003 and 2004 Swap Agreements in effect on January 1, 2005 meet the
requirements of SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as fair
value hedges of an aggregate principal amount of $75 million of the Company’s outstanding Senior
Notes. Accordingly, gains and losses arising from the changes in the fair market value of the swap
agreements are completely offset against changes in the fair market value of the Senior Notes. The
fair value gain on the 2003 Swap Agreement on January 1, 2005 was $0.1 million based on quoted
market prices. The fair market loss on the 2004 Swap Agreement was $0.3 million based on quoted
market prices. Both of the swap agreements expire in June 2013 (the date of which the Senior Notes
mature). A hypothetical adverse change in interest rates of 100 basis points as of January 1, 2005 (i.e.,
an increase from the Company’ actual interest rate of 7.03% to 8.03% for the 2004 Swap Agreement
and 6.8% to 7.8% for the 2003 Swap Agreement) would result in an increase in interest expense of
approximately $0.8 million, on an annualized basis, related to the notional amount of $75 million.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Company has foreign currency exposures related to buying, selling and financing in
currencies other than the functional currency in which it operates. These exposures are primarily
concentrated in the Company’s Canadian, Mexican and European operations which accounted for
approximately 25% of the Company’s total net revenues for Fiscal 2004. Certain foreign operations of
the Company purchase products from suppliers denominated in United States dollars. Total purchases
of products made by foreign subsidiaries denominated in United States dollars amounted to
approximately $119.5 million for Fiscal 2004. A hypothetical decrease of 10% in the value of these
foreign currencies relative to the United States dollar would have increased cost of goods sold {(which
would decrease operating income) by $12.0 miliion for Fiscal 2004.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The information required by Item 8 of Part II is incorporated by reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K. See Item 15 of Part IV.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of
the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on management’s
evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as
of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures
were effective.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Company has included
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (the “Management
Report™) in this Form 10-K. Deloitte & Touche LLP, the independent registered public accounting
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firm of the Company, has audited management’s assessment of, and the effectiveness of, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting {as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act). The Management Report appears on page F-1 and the report of
Deloitte & Touche LLP appears at pages F-2 to F-3 of this Form 10-K under the captions
“Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting” and “Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” and are incorporated herein by reference.

{¢) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
during the Company’s fourth fiscal quarter ended January 1, 2005 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART 111

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The information required by Item 10 of Part III is incorporated by reference from Executive
Officers of the Registrant in Item 1 of Part I included herein and from the Proxy Statement of The
Warnaco Group, Inc., relating to the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed with the SEC
within 120 days of the Fiscal 2004 year-end.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by Item 11 of Part III is incorporated by reference from the Proxy
Statement of The Warnaco Group, Inc., relating to the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be
filed with the SEC within 120 days of the Fiscal 2004 year-end.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Béneﬁcial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The information required by Item 12 of Part III is incorporated by reference from the Proxy
Statement of The Warnaco Group, Inc., relating to the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be
filed with the SEC within 120 days of the Fiscal 2004 year-end.

Item 13, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The information required by Item 13 of Part III is incorporated by reference from the Proxy
Statement of The Warnaco Group, Inc,, relating to the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be
filed with the SEC within 120 days of the Fiscal 2004 year-end.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by Item 14 of Part I11 is incorporated by reference from the Proxy
Statement of The Warnaco Group, Inc., relating to the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be
filed with the SEC within 120 days of the Fiscal 2004 year-end.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) 1. The Consolidated Financial Statements of The Warnaco Group, Inc.

Page

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting......... F-1
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ............. ... ... ..., F-2
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ........................ F-4
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004 (as restated) . . F-6
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended January 1, 2005, the period

February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 (as restated), the period January 5, 2003 to

February 4, 2003 and the year ended January 4,2003............. ... ... ... ... F-7
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficiency) and Comprehensive

Income (Loss) for the year ended January 1, 2005, the period February S, 2003 to

January 3, 2004 (as restated), the period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and

the year ended January 4, 2003 ... ...t e e F-8
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended January 1, 2005, the

period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 (as restated), the period January 5, 2003

to February 4, 2003 and the year ended January 4,2003 ......................... F-9—F-10
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . ............... . oo, F-11—F-77

2. Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule II. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves..................... A-1
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All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the
SEC which are not included with this additional financial data have been omitted because they are not
applicable or the required information is shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes

thereto.

3. List of Exhibits.

Exhibit No.

Description of Exhibit

2.1

22

23

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

31

32

4.1

Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated December 18, 2001, between Mullion International
Limited and Royal Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to The
Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed July 31, 2002).*

Deed of Variation, dated February 8, 2002, among Mullion International Limited, Royal
Holdings, Inc. and Cradle Penhaligons Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.4
to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed July 31, 2002).*

Stock and Asset Sale Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2001, by and among
Warnaco Inc., Warner’s (U.K.) Ltd., Warnaco (HK) Ltd. and Luen Thai Overseas
Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.5 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form
10-K filed July 31, 2002).*

Consent and Waiver, dated as of January 21, 2002, by and among Warnaco Inc., Warner’s
(UXK.) Ltd., Warnaco (HK) Ltd. and Luen Thai Overseas Limited (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.6 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed July 31, 2002).*

Consent and Waiver, dated as of February 1, 2002, by and among Warnaco Inc., Warner’s
(U.K.) Ltd., Warnaco (HK) Ltd. and Luen Thai Overseas Limited (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.7 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed July 31, 2002).*

First Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization of The Warnaco Group, Inc. and its
Affiliated Debtors in Possession Under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-Q
filed on November 18, 2002).*

Disclosure Statement with respect to the First Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization of
The Warnaco Group, Inc. and its Affiliated Debtors and Debtors in Possession Under
Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to The
Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed November 18, 2002).*

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 3, 2004, by and among Warnaco Inc.,
Ocean Pacific Apparel Corp. and Doyle & Boissiere Fund I, LLC, Anders Brag, Leo
Isotolo and Richard A. Baker (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to The Warnaco
Group, Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed November 10, 2004), %%

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of The Warnaco Group, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to the Form 8-A/A filed by The Warnaco Group,
Inc. on February 4, 2003).*

Bylaws of The Warnaco Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed by The Warnaco Group, Inc. on April 4, 2003).*

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 12, 2003, among Warnaco Inc., the
Guarantors (as defined therein) and the Initial Purchasers (as defined therein)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4
{(File No. 333-107788) filed by The Warnaco Group, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries on
August 8, 2003).*
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Exhibit No.

Description of Exhibit

42

43

4.4

10.1

10.2

103

10.4

10.5

Indenture, dated as of June 12, 2003, among Warnaco Inc., the Guarantors (as defined
therein) and the Trustee (as defined therein) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-107788) filed by The Warnaco
Group, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries on August 8, 2003).*

Rights Agreement, dated as of February 4, 2003, between The Warnaco Group, Inc. and
the Rights Agent, including Form of Rights Certificate as Exhibit A, Summary of Rights
to Purchase Preferred Stock as Exhibit B and the Form of Certificate of Designation for
the Preferred Stock as Exhibit C (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to the Form
8-A/A filed by The Warnaco Group, Inc. on February 4, 2003).*

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of February 4, 2003, among The Warnaco
Group, Inc. and certain creditors thereof (as described in the Registration Rights
Agreement) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s
Form 8-K filed February 10, 2003).*

Senior Secured Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of February 4, 2003, among
Warnaco Inc., The Warnaco Group, Inc., the Administrative Agent, the Lenders, the
Issuing Banks, the Syndication Agent and Salomon Smith Barney Inc. and J.P. Morgan
Securities, Inc., as joint lead managers and joint lead book managers (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.2 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form §-K filed February 10,
2003).*

Amendment No. 1, Consent and Waiver, dated as of November 12, 2003, to the Senior
Secured Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of February 4, 2003, among Warnaco
Inc., The Warnaco Group, Inc., the financial institutions from time to time party thereto
as lenders, the financial institutions from time to time party thereto as issuers, Citicorp
North America, as administrative agent and collateral agent for the Lenders and the
Issuers, JPMorgan Chase Bank, as syndication agent for the Lenders and the Issuers and
Bank of America, NA, The CIT Group/Commercial Services Inc., and Congress
Financial Corporation (Central), each as a co-documentation agent for the Lenders and
Issuers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Amendment No. 2 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-4/A (File No. 333-107788) filed by The Warnaco
Group, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries on December 18, 2003).*

Amendment No. 2, dated as of August 1, 2004, to the Credit Agreement, dated as of
February 4, 2003 (as amended by Amendment No. 1, Consent and Waiver dated as of
November 12, 2003), among Warnaco Inc., The Warnaco Group, Inc., the Lenders, the
Issuers, Citicorp North America, as Administrative Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, as
Syndication Agent and Bank of America, N.A., The CIT Group/Commercial Services,
Inc., and Congress Financial Corporation (Central), as Co-Documentation Agents
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-Q
filed November 10, 2004).*

Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of February 4, 2003, among Warnaco Inc., as a
grantor, the Guarantors and Citicorp North America, Inc., as administrative agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 8-K filed
February 10, 2003).*

Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of February 4, 2003, among the Administrative Agent,
the Indenture Trustee, the Collateral Trustee, Warnaco and the Guarantors
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 8-K filed
February 10, 2003).* '
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Exhibit No.

Description of Exhibit

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

1013

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

1018

10.19

10.20

Warnaco Employee Retirement Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to The
Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 33-4587)).*

The Warnaco Group, Inc. 2003 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Appendix D to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Proxy Statement filed April 29, 2003).*

The Warnaco Group, Inc. Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to
Appendix E to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Proxy Statement filed April 29, 2003).*

Summary of Key Domestic Employee Retention Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.51 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed July 31, 2002).*

Letter Agreement, dated April 30, 2001, between The Warnaco Group, Inc. and Alvarez
& Marsal, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.52 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s
Form 10-K filed July 31, 2002).*

Employment Agreement, dated as of June 11, 2001, between The Warnaco Group, Inc.
and Antonio C. Alvarez 1I (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.53 to The Warnaco
Group, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed July 31, 2002).*

Amended Employment Agreement, dated as of June 11, 2001, between The Warnaco
Group, Inc. and Antonio C. Alvarez II (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42 to
The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed July 31, 2002).*

Offer Letter and Employee Waiver, Release and Discharge of Claims pursuant to the
Key Domestic Employee Retention Plan for Stanley P. Silverstein, dated November 26,
2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form
10-K filed July 31, 2002).*

Agreement to Extend Amended Employment Agreement between The Warnaco Group,
Inc. and Antonio C. Alvarez II, dated July 16, 2002 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.54 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed July 31, 2002).*

Letter Agreement, dated January 29, 2003, by and between Alvarez & Marsal, Inc. and
The Warnaco Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed by The Warnaco Group, Inc. on April 4, 2003) *

Letter Agreement, dated March 18, 2003, by and between Alvarez & Marsal, Inc. and
The Warnaco Group, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed by The Warnaco Group, Inc. on April 4, 2003).*##

Employment Agreement, dated as of April 14, 2003, by and between The Warnaco
Group, Inc. and Joseph R. Gromek (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed by The Warnaco Group, Inc. on May 20, 2003).*

Employment Agreement, dated as of December 22, 2004, by and between The Warnaco
Group, Inc. and Joseph R. Gromek (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to The
Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 8-K filed December 22, 2004).*

Letter Agreement, dated as of September 11, 2003, by and between The Warnaco

Group, Inc. and Lawrence R. Rutkowski (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4/A (File No. 333-107788)
filed by The Warnaco Group, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries on October 30, 2003).*

Letter Agreement, dated as of April 21, 2004, by and between The Warnaco Group, Inc.
and Frank Tworecke (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to The Warnaco Group,
Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed August 6, 2004).%
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Description of Exhibit

1021

1022

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

Letter Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2004, by and between The Warnaco Group, Inc.
and Helen McCluskey (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to The Warnaco
Group, Inc.s Form 10-Q filed August 6, 2004).*

Amended and Restated License Agreement, dated as of January 1, 1996, between Polo
Ralph Lauren, L.P. and Warnaco Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to The
Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed November 14, 1997).*

Amended and Restated Design Services Agreement, dated as of January 1, 1996,
between Polo Ralph Lauren Enterprises, L.P. and Warnaco Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed November 14,
1997).*

License Agreement and Design Services Agreement Amendment and Extension, dated
as of September 19, 2003, by and among PRL USA, Inc., as successor to Polo Ralph
Lauren L.P, The Polo/Lauren Company, L.P,, Polo Ralph Lauren Corporation, as
successor to Polo Ralph Lauren L.P., and Warnaco Inc. and Warnaco of Canada
Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form
10-Q filed November 18, 2003).%#

License Agreement, dated as of August 4, 1994, between Calvin Klein, Inc. and Calvin
Klein Jeanswear Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Designer
Holdings, Ltd.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-02236)).*

Amendment to the Calvin Klein License Agreement, dated as of December 7, 1994
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Designer Holdings, Ltd.’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-02236)).*

Amendment to the Calvin Klein License Agreement, dated as of January 10, 1995
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Designer Holdings, Ltd.’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-02236)).*

Amendment to the Calvin Klein License Agreement, dated as of February 28, 1995
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Designer Holdings, Ltd.’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-02236)).*

Amendment to the Calvin Klein License Agreement, dated as of April 22, 1996
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to Designer Holdings, Ltd.’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-02236)).*

Amendment and Agreement, dated June 5, 2003, by and among Calvin Klein, Inc.,
Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation, Warnaco Inc., Calvin Klein Jeanswear Company, and
CKJ Holdings Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Amendment No. 2 to
the Registration Statement on Form S-4/A (File No. 333-107788) filed by The Warnaco
Group, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries on December 18, 2003) *##

Consent and Amendment No. 1 to the Facility Agreement, dated as of February 5, 2002
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-K
filed July 31, 2002).*

Speedo Settlement Agreement, dated November 25, 2002, by and between Speedo
International Limited and Authentic Fitness Corporation, Authentic Fitness Products,
Inc., The Warnaco Group, Inc. and Warnaco Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.28 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.s Form 10-K filed April 4, 2003).*
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Amendment to the Speedo Licenses, dated as of November 25, 2002, by and among
Speedo International Limited, Authentic Fitness Corporation and Authentic Fitness
Products, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.s
Form 10-K filed April 4, 2003).*##

Settlement Agreement, dated January 22, 2001, by and between Calvin Klein Trademark
Trust, Calvin Klein, Inc. and Calvin Klein and Linda Wachner, The Warnaco Group,
Inc., Warnaco Inc., Designer Holdings, Ltd, CKJ Holdings, Inc., Jeanswear Holdings
Inc., Caivin Klein Jeanswear Company and Outlet Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.57 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed July 31,

License Agreement, dated as of March 1, 2003, by and between Nautica Apparel, Inc.
and Authentic Fitness Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to The
Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed April 4, 2003).*##

Amended and Restated Master Agreement of Sale, dated as of September 30, 1998,
among Warnaco Inc., as Originator, and Gregory Street, Inc., as Buyer and Servicer
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-Q

Master Agreement of Sale, dated as of September 30, 1998, among Calvin Klein
Jeanswear Company, as Originator, and Gregory Street, Inc., as Buyer and Servicer
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-Q

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of September 30, 1998, among Gregory Street,
Inc., as Seller and initial Servicer and Warnaco Operations Corporation, as Buyer
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-Q

Parallel Purchase Commitment, dated as of September 30, 1998, among Warnaco
Operations Corporation, as Seller and certain commercial lending institutions, as the
Banks, and Gregory Street, Inc., as the initial Servicer and The Bank of Nova Scotia, as
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.s Form
10-Q filed November 16, 1998).*

Receivables Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 30, 1998, among Warnaco

. Operations Corporation, as Seller, Gregory Street, Inc., as Servicer, Liberty Street

Funding Corp., and Corporate Asset Funding Company, Inc. as Investors and The Bank
of Nova Scotia, as Agent, and Citicorp North America, Inc., as Co-Agent (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed November

Settlement Agreement, dated November 15, 2002, by and among Linda J. Wachner, the
Debtors, the Bank of Nova Scotia and Citibank, N.A. in their capacity as Debt
Coordinators for the Debtors’ Prepetition Secured Lenders and the Official Committee
of Unsecured Creditors of the Debtors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to
The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed April 4, 2003).*

Exhibit No.  Description of Exhibit
10.33
10.34
2002).4##
10.35
10.36
filed November 16, 1998).*
10.37
filed November 16, 1998).*
10.38
filed November 16, 1998).*
10.39
10.40
16, 1998).*
1041
10.42

Acquisition Agreement, dated as of March 14, 1994, by and among Calvin Klein, Inc.,
The Warnaco Group, Inc. and Warnaco Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6
to The Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed on May 24, 1994).*
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Exhibit No.

Description of Exhibit

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

12.1
211
23.1
311

31.2

321

Sublicense Agreement, dated as of November 2003, by and between Sweetface Fashion
Company, LLC and Warnaco Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to The
Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-K filed March 18, 2004). *##

License Agreement, dated as of June 21, 2004, by and between The Warnaco Group,
Inc. and Michael Kors (USA), Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to The
Warnaco Group, Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed August 6, 2004).*##

License Agreement, dated as of July 26, 2004, by and between Calvin Klein, Inc. and
Warnaco Swimwear Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to The Warnaco
Group, Inc.’s Form 10-Q filed November 10, 2004).*##

License Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2004, by and between The Warnaco
Group, Inc. and SAP America, Inc.t#

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.t
Subsidiaries of The Warnaco Group, Inc.}
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.}

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of The Warnaco Group, Inc. pursuant to Rule
13a- 14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.1

Certification of Chief Financial Officer of The Warnaco Group, Inc. pursuant to Rule
13a- 14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.1

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of The Warnaco
Group, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. (furnished herewith)

*%

= —

#

Previously filed.
The schedules to the Stock Purchase Agreement have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of
Regulation S-K. The Company will furnish copies of any of the schedules to the Securities and
Exchange Commission upon request.

Filed herewith. ‘

Certain portions of this exhibit omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to a request for confidential treatment.

Certain portions of this exhibit omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to a request for confidential treatment, which request was granted.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized on this 17th day of March, 2005.

THE WARNACO GROUP, INC.
By: s/ JOSEPH R. GROMEK
Name: Joseph R. Gromek

Title: President and Chief
Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated:

Signature Title Date
/s/ JOSEPH R. GROMEK Director, President and Chief March 17, 2005
(Joseph R. Gromek) Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer)
/s/ LAWRENCE R. RUTKOWSKI Executive Vice President and Chief March 17, 2005
(Lawrence R. Rutkowski) Financial Officer (Principal
Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ CHARLES R. PERRIN Non-Executive Chairman of the March 17, 2005
(Charles R. Perrin) Board of Directors
/s/ DAVID A. BELL Director March 17, 2005
(David A. Bell)
/s/ ROBERT A. BOWMAN Director March 17, 2005
(Robert A. Bowman)
/s/ RICHARD KARL GOELTZ Director March 17, 2005
(Richard Karl Goeltz)
/s/ SHEILA A. HOPKINS Director March 17, 2005
(Sheila A. Hopkins)
s/ CHERYL NIDO TURPIN Director . March 17, 2005

(Cheryl Nido Turpin)

70




MANAGEMENT’S ANNUAL REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as a process designed by, or
under the supervision of, the Company’s principal executive and principal financial officers and
effected by the Company’s board of directors, management and other personnel to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those
policies and procedures that:

e pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

¢ provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

* provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risks that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
as of January 1, 2005. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework.

Based on this assessment, management concluded that, as of January 1, 2005, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting was effective.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm has issued a report on our
assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. This report appears on pages
F-2 and F-3.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
The Warnaco Group, Inc.
New York, New York

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting on Page F-1, that The Warnaco Group, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
January 1, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management
is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the
supervision of, the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons
performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of January 1, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of January 1, 2005, based on the
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement
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schedule as of and for the year ended January 1, 2005 of The Warnaco Group, Inc. and subsidiaries
and our report dated March 17, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements
and financial statement schedule. ,

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

New York, New York
March 17, 2005

F-3



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
The Warnaco Group, Inc.
New York, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Warnaco Group, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004, (“Successor Company
balance sheets”), and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity
(deficiency) and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for the year ended January 1, 2003, and
the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 (“Successor Company operations”), the period January
3, 2003 to February 4, 2003, and the year ended January 4, 2003 (“Predecessor Company
operations”). Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item
15(a)2. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and
financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the Successor Company consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The Warnaco Group, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year ended January 1, 2005, and the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Further, in
our opinion, the Predecessor Company consolidated financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the results of its operations and its cash flows for the period January 5,
2003 to February 4, 2003, and the year ended January 4, 2003, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as
a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 16, 2003, the
Bankruptcy Court entered an order confirming the Company’s Reorganization Plan which became
effective on February 4, 2003. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements have been prepared
in conformity with AICPA Statement of Position 90-7, “Financial Reporting for Entities in
Reorganization Under the Bankruptcy Code,” for the Successor Company as a new entity with assets,
liabilities, and a capital structure having carrying values not comparable with prior periods as
described in Note 3.

As discussed in Note 23, the accompanying consolidated financial statements as of January 3,
2004 and for the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 have been restated.

As discussed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements, during the period February 5,
2003 to January 3, 2004, the Successor Company changed its method of accounting for defined benefit
pension plans.

As discussed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 5, 2002, the
Predecessor Company changed its method of accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets to
conform to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets”.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’ internal control over financial
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reporting as of January 1, 2005, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and
our report dated March 17, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

New York, New York
March 17, 2005
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THE WARNACO GROUP, INC.

' CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{Dollars in thousands, excluding per share data)

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cashandcashequivalents . . . ... i e e

Accounts receivable, less reserves of $54,943 and $57.436 as of January 1, 2005
and January 3, 2004, respectively. . . . ... .

Inventories. . . oo
Prepaid expenses and other CHITENt SSELS . . . . . oo v it ittt i e
Assets held forsale. . . ... o e
Assets of discontinued operations. . ... ... .. L
Deferred income taxes. . ... ... e e

Property, plant and equipment, NEt. . . ... ...

Other assets:

Licenses, trademarks and other intangible assets, net . . ........ ...t
Deferred financing costs, Det . .. ... ... e
Notes receivable . . . . . e e e e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable . . . ... s
Accrued Habilities . . ... ... L
Accrued pension oblgations. . . ... ... ..
Liabilities of discontinued operations . .. .. ... ... oottt e
Accrued income taxes payable . ... ...
Deferred InCOME taXeS. . . . o vttt i e e e e

Total current labilities . ... .. ... . e e e e

Long-term AEBL . ot

Deferred income taXes . . . . o .ttt e e e e e s

Retirement obligations . . . ... ... . e
Other Jong-term labilities . . .. ... ... .. ...
Commitments and contingencies: (See Notes 2, 4, 6, 9, 10, 15, 18, 19, 21 and 22)

Stockholders’ equity

Preferred stock :

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 20,000,000 (112,500 designated as Series A) authorized
and none issued or outstanding as of January 1, 2005 and January 3,2004 .. ... ... ..

Common stock : $0.01 par value, 112,500,000 shares authorized, 45,655,515 and 45,188,683
issued and outstanding as of January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004, respectively. ... .. ...

Additional paid-in capital. . ... .. .. e s
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME . . ..o v vt i e
Retained earnings (deficit) . . . ... ... ... L L

Treasury stock, at cost, 638 and 22,766 shares as of January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004,
TESPECUVELY . .o o e e e

Total stockﬁqldérs’ EQUILY . . v e e e
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . ... ... .. ... i i
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Successor
January 1, January 3,
2005 2004

(As Restated)

(See Note 23)
$ 65,588 $ 33457
219,805 209,491

335,651 279,839 .
43,137 48,574
1,547 1,202
2,618 27,125
727 9,670
669,073 629,358
106,937 106,533
305,505 271,523
11,566 12,837
6,995 15,895
5,568 1,516
4,589 5,419
43,671 47,929
377,894 355,119
$1,153,904 $1,091,010
$ 122,418 $ 96,074
83,244 91,804
5,400 18,710
1,450 7,440
20,590 21,048
1,746 —
234,848 235,076
210,799 211,132
67,744 58,946
45,326 50,588
18,238 14,656
456 452
518,591 509,117
15,561 11,591
42,354 (163)
(13) (385)
576,949 520,612
$1,153,904 $1,091,010




THE WARNACO GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

Successor Predecessor
For the Period For the Period
February 5, 2003 to | January §, 2003 to
Fiscal 2004  Janpuary 3, 2004 | February 4, 2003  Fiscal 2002
(As Restated)
(See Note 23)
NEt TEVEIUES . © o v v v v et oo e e n $ 1,424,181 $ 1,264,301 $ 110,120 $ 1,408,242
Costofgoodssold ........... ... .o it 951,198 872,170 67,283 1,002,816
Grossprofit. .« .o 472,983 392,131 42,837 405,426
Selling, general and administrative expenses . ....... 377,868 319,580 32,156 369,958
Pension (income) eXpense .. ..., (6,150) (6,488) — 5,399
Amortization of sales order backlog. .............. — 11,800 — —
ReStructuring ;ems. . . .. oo vt ii e 5,130 19,101 — —_—
Reorganization items ........ ..o, — — 29,805 114,495
Operating income (10sS) . . ..., 96,135 48,138 (19,124) (84,426)
Gain on cancellation of pre-petition indebtedness. . . . — — (1,692,696) —
Fresh start adjustments. . .................... — — (765,726) —
Other (income) loss . ..., (2,197} (2,817) 359 (62)
Interest expense, net (8). .. ... 19,821 20,641 1,751 19,972
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
provision for income taxes .................... 78,511 30,314 2,437,188 {104,336)
Provision forincome taxes . . ....... ... e ... 31,636 12,084 78,150 49,648
Income loss from continuing operations. . .......... 46,875 18,230 2,359,038 (153,984)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes .. ... {(4,358) (18,393) (501) (9,257)
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of taxes . — — — (801,622)
Netincome (10ss) . ..., $§ 42517  § (163) $ 2,358,537 § (964,863)
Basic income (loss) per common share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations ........ $ 103§ 0.40 $ 4452 % (2.91)
Loss from discontinued operations. ............. (0.10) (041) (0.01) (0.17)
Cumulative effect of accounting change . ......... — ~— — (15.1%)
Netincome (loss) ...... ..oy $ 093 $ (0.01) $ 4451 §  (1821)
Diluted income (loss) per common share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations ........ $ 1.02 $ 0.40 $ 4452 $ (2.91)
Loss from discontinued operations. . ............ (0.09) (0.40) (0.01) (0.17)
Cumulative effect of accounting change.......... — — — (15.13)
Netincome (0SS} . ..., $ 093 8§ — $ 4451 § (1821
Weighted average number of shares outstanding used
in computing income (loss) per common share:
BasiC ..t e 45,418,069 45,060,724 52,989,965 52,989,965
Diluted. .. ... 46,178,535 45,462,560 52,989,965 52,989,965

(a) Includes interest income of $1,905, $616, $46 and $3,568 for Fiscal 2004, the period February 5,

2003 to January 3, 2004, the period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002,

respectively. Contractual interest for the Predecessor was $15,019 and $180,237 for the period
January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002, respectively. ‘

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE WARNACO GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)

AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(Dollars in thousands)

PREDECESSOR
Balance at January 5,2002..........
Net loss
Foreign currency translation
adjustments .. . . ....... .. ... ...
Unrealized loss on marketable
securities,
net of tax
Unfunded minimum pension liability . . .
Comprehensive loss. .. ............
Restricted shares forfeited
Amortization of unearned stock
COmPensation. . . ... ...
Balance at January 4,2003..........
Netincome. . ...................
Foreign currency translation
adjustments. . .. ... ..o
Unrealized gain on marketable
securities, net of tax
Comprehensive income
Amortization of unearned stock
COMPENSAtON. . o . . v vv v v
Reorganization
Balance at February 4, 2003

SUCCESSOR
Balance at February 4, 2003
Net loss - as restated, see Note 23. .. ..
Foreign currency translation
adjustments
Unrealized gain on marketable
securities, net of tax

Comprehensive income - as restated,
see Note 23
Purchase of treasury stock related 1o
employee stock compensation plans . .
Stock issued in connection with
employee stock compensation plans . .
Compensation expense in connection
with employee stock options and
restricted stock. . ... ...l

Balance at January 3, 2004 - as restated,
see Note 23

Netincome.....................
Foreign currency translation
adjustments
Unrealized loss on marketable
securities,
net of tax
Comprehensive income
Purchase of treasury stock related to
stock compensation plans
Stock issued in connection with
employee stock compensation plans . .
Compensation expense in connection
with employee stock options and
restricted stock. . ... ... L.

Accamulated
Additional Other Retained Unearned
Common Paid-in Comprehensive FEarnings Treasury Stock

Stock Capital  Income/(Loss) (Deficit)  Stock Compensation  Total
$ 654  $ 909,054 $(53,016)  $(1,393,674)$(313,889) (413) $ (851,284)
(964,863) (964,863)
153 153
(195) (195)
(40,165) (40,165)
(1,005,070)
(115) - 115 —
258 258
654 908,939 (93,223) (2,358,537) (313,889) 40 (1,856,096)
: 2,358,537 2,358,537
244 244
308 308
2,359,089
8 8
(204) (405,841 92,671 313,889 3 547
450 503,098 — — — = 503,548
450 503,098 — — — 503,548
(163) (163)
11,556 11,556
35 35
11,428
(385) (385)
2 489 — 491
5,530 o 5530
452 509,117 11,591 (163) (385) = 520,612
42,517 42,517
3,988 3,988
(18) 18)
46,487
(1,030} (1,030)
4 2,353 1,402 3759
7,121 . 7121
$456 $ 518,591 § 15,561 $§ 423548 (13) = $ 576949

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE WARNACO GROUP, INC.

'CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Netincome (1088). ... .ot en s
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Loss from discontinued operations ................
Depreciation and amortization ...................
Non-cash restructuring items. .. ..................
Non-cash reorganization items. . ..................
Stock compensation. . ... .. i i il
Loss on sale of White Stag trademark .. ............
Amortization of deferred financing costs. . ..........
Loss {(gain) on sale of assets .. ....... ... .. .......
Gain on cancellation of pre-petition indebtedness . . ..
Fresh start adjustments ............ ... .00
Provision for receivable allowances. ...............
Inventory writedown . ...... . i
Net loss on sale of business units. . ................
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle,
netoftaxes. ........ ... i
Provision (benefit) for deferred income tax..........
Foreign exchange gain..........................
Landlord reimbursements .. ............ .. ... ...
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable. . ... ... . . i
Inventories...... .. ... ... i
Prepaid expenses and other assets. ................
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
Babilities. .. ... .. i
Accrued InCOME taXes .. ..o v v vt
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities from
CONHNUING OPETAtIONS. . . o v v e ir et
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities from
discontinued operations . .. ... . oo

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities . . ...

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds on disposal of assets and collection of notes
receivable . ..
Purchase of property, plant & equipment ...........
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired .. ........
Proceeds from sale of business units, net of cash
balances .. ..oh i

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities from
continuing OPerations. . . v ..vv vt it

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities from
discontinued OpPerations . . .........oveu it

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities. .. ...

(continued)
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Suecessor Predecessor
Period Period
February 5, January 5,
2003 To 2003 to
Fiscal January 3, February 4, Fiscal
2004 2004 2003 2002
(As Restated)
(See Note 23)

$ 42,517 $ (163) $ 2,358,537 $(964,863)
4358 18,393 501 9,257
32,456 43474 4,321 53,240
677 8,356 —_ —

—_ —_ 15,561 52,531
7,121 5,530 8 258
— 3,829 — —
2,268 1,682 463 8,508
(704) (1,035) — 170
— — (1,692,696) —_

— — (765,726) —_
151,564 142,302 8,323 176,816
28,926 18,374 3,456 39,112
_— — — 3,673

— — _— 801,622
20,520 (2,191) 77,584 53,347
(1,958) (5,211) — —
8,482 2,709 — —
(158,771) (160,971) (14,550) (97,851)
(84,650) 35,283 (28,254) 26,499
8,236 7,466 (6,640) 7,542
(12,072) (31,196) 14,567 52,901
5,846 1,903 274 (381)
54,816 88,534 (24,271) 222,381
(4497) (4,946) (655) 3,867
50,319 83,588 (24,926) 226,248
24,046 10,687 — 6,814
(29,644) (28,710) (643) (10,972)
(40,785) — —_ —
— — — 20,609
(46,383) (18,023) (643) 16,451
1,137 (484) (102) (266)
(45,246) (18,507} (745) 16,185




THE WARNACO GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(Dollars in thousands)

Cash flows from financing activities: :
Repayments of GECCdebt......................
Repayments of capital lease obligations ............
Payment of debt assumed on acquisition of subsidiary .
Repayments of Second Lien Notes .. ..............
Payment of deferred financing costs ...............
Proceeds from the issuance of Senior Notes due 2013 .
Borrowings (repayments) under revolving credit
facility. . ... ..
Proceeds from issuance of stock .............. ...,
Purchase of treasury stock. . ...... ... il
Repayments of pre-petitiondebt..................
Repayments under Amended DIP.................
Other . ..o

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities from
CONtiNUING OPerations. . .. ..o vv i
Net cash used in financing activities from discontinued
OPETAtIONS. « o\ vttt e

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities. ... ..

Translation adjustments. .. ......... .. ... .
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ., . ... ..
Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash, at

beginning of period ......... ... ... . ool

Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash, at
endofperiod..... ... ... . i

Successor Predecessor
Period Period
February 5, January §,
2003 To 2003 to
Fiscal January 3, February 4, Fiscal
2004 2004 2003 2002
{As Restated)
(See Note 23)
§ — $ (4,890) 3 (715) $ (3.458)
(333) (288) — (2,346)
(1,000) — —_— —
—_— (200,942) —_ —
(997) (9,233) —_ —
— 210,000 — —
— (39,200) 39,200 —
3,997 183 — —_
(1,030) (385) — —
— — (106,112) (14,554)
— —_ —_ (155,915)
— (100) — —
637 {44,855) (67,627) (176,273)
— — — (556)
637 (44,855) {67,627) {176,829)
6,421 12,525 1) 8,863
12,131 32,751 (93,319) 74,467
53,457 20,706 114,025 39,558
$65,588 $ 53437 $ 20,706 $ 114,025

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE WARNACO GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

Note 1—Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization: The Warnaco Group, Inc. (“Warnaco Group™) was incorporated in Delaware on
March 14, 1986 and, on May 10, 1986, acquired substantially all of the outstanding shares of Warnaco
Inc. (“Warnaco™). Warnaco is the principal operating subsidiary of Warnaco Group. Warnaco Group,
Warnaco and certain of Warnaco’s subsidiaries were reorganized under Chapter 11 of the U.S.
Bankruptey Code, 11 U.S.C. Sections 101-1330, as amended (the “Bankruptcy Code”), effective
February 4, 2003 (the “Effective Date”). See Note 3.

Nature of Operations: Warnaco Group and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) design,
source, manufacture, market and license a broad line of (i) intimate apparel (including bras, panties,
sleepwear, loungewear, shapewear and daywear for women and underwear and sleepwear for men);
(i1) sportswear for men, women and juniors (including jeanswear, knit and woven shirts, tops and
outerwear); and (iii) swimwear for men, women, juniors and children (including swim accessories and
fitness and active apparel). The Company’s products are sold under a number of highly recognized
owned and licensed brand names. The Company offers a diversified portfolio of brands across
multiple distribution channels to a wide range of customers. The Company distributes its products to
customers, both domestically and internationally, through a variety of channels, including department
and specialty stores, independent retailers, chain stores, membership clubs, mass merchandisers and
the internet. The Company also currently operates over 75 Calvin Klein® underwear retail stores
worldwide (consisting of approximately 45 stores directly operated by the Company and
approximately 30 stores operated under retail licenses or distributorship agreements).

Basis of Consolidation and Presentation: References in these consolidated financial statements to
the “Predecessor” refer to the Company prior to February 4, 2003. References to the “Successor”
refer to the Company on and after February 4, 2003 after giving effect to the implementation of fresh
start accounting.

The Company operates on a fiscal year basis ending on the Saturday closest to December 31. The
period January 4, 2004 to January 1, 2005 (“Fiscal 2004”) and the period February 5, 2003 to January
3, 2004 contained fifty-two weeks and forty-eight weeks, respectively, of operations of the Successor.
The period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and the period January 6, 2002 to January 4, 2003
{(“Fiscal 2002”) contained four weeks and fifty-two weeks, respectively, of operations of the
Predecessor.

All inter-company accounts have been eliminated in consolidation.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Predecessor for the period January 5,
2003 to February 4, 2003, and for Fiscal 2002 have been presented in accordance with American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position (“SOP”) 90-7, Financial Reporting by
Entities in Reorganization under the Bankruptcy Code (“SOP 90-7™). In the Chapter 11 Cases (as
defined in Note 3), substantially all unsecured liabilities and under-secured liabilities as of June 11,
2001 were subject to compromise or other treatment under the First Amended Joint Plan of
Reorganization of The Warnaco Group, Inc. and Its Affiliated Debtors and Debtors-In-Paossession
Under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code (the “Reorganization Plan”).

Pursnant to SOP 90-7, professional fees and other costs associated with the Chapter 11 Cases
were expensed as incurred and reported as reorganization items. Interest expense was reported only
to the extent that it was to be paid during the Chapter 11 Cases.

Upon emergence from bankruptcy on February 4, 2003, the Company adopted fresh start
reporting under the provisions of SOP 90-7. Pursuant to the provisions of SOP 90-7, (i) the Company’s
reorganization value of $750,000 was allocated to the fair value of the Company’s assets and liabilities;
(ii) the Company’s accumulated deficit was eliminated; and (iii) the Class A Common Stock, par value
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THE WARNACO GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

$0.01 per share, issued by the Predecessor (the “Old Common Stock™) was cancelled. In addition,
approximately $2,499,385 of the Company’s outstanding pre-petition debt and liabilities were
discharged. See Note 3.

Use of Estimates: The Company uses estimates and assumptions in the preparation of its
financial statements which affect (i) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and (ii) the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. Actual
results could materially differ from these estimates. The estimates the Company makes are based
upon historical factors, current circumstances and the experience and judgment of the Company’s
management. The Company evaluates its assumptions and estimates on an ongoing basis and may
employ outside experts to assist in its evaluations. The Company believes that the use of estimates
affects the application of all of the Company’s significant accounting policies and procedures.

Revenue Recognition: The Company recognizes revenue when goods are shipped to customers
and title and risk of loss have passed, net of estimated customer returns, allowances and other
discounts. The Company recognizes revenue from its consignment accounts and retail stores when
goods are sold to consumers, net of allowances for future returns. The determination of allowances
and returns involves the use of significant judgment and estimates by the Company. The Company
bases its estimates of allowance rates on past experience by product line and account, the financial
stability of its customers, the expected rate of retail sales and general economic and retail forecasts.
The Company reviews and adjusts its accrual rates each month based on its current experience.
During the Company’s monthly review, the Company also considers its accounts receivable collection
rate and the nature and amount of customer deductions and requests for promotion assistance. The
Company believes it is likely that its accrual rates will vary over time and could change materially if
the Company’s mix of customers, channels of distribution or product mix changes. The Company’s
current rates of accrual for sales allowances, returns and discounts range from 5.0% to 20.0%.
Revenues from the licensing or sub-licensing of certain trademarks are recognized when the
underlying royalties are earned.

Cost of Goods Sold: Cost of goods sold for the Successor consists of the cost of products
produced or purchased and certain period costs related to the product procurement and
manufacturing process. Product costs include: (i) material, direct labor and overhead (including the
costs incurred by external contractors); (ii) duty, quota and related tariffs; (iii) in-bound freight and
traffic costs, including inter-plant freight; (iv) procurement and material handling costs; (v) indirect
production overhead including inspection, quality control, sample making, production control and
planning, cost accounting and engineering; and (vi) in-stocking costs in the Company’s warehouse
(cost to receive, unpack and stock product available for sale in its distribution center). Period costs
included in cost of goods sold include: (a) royalty; (b) design and merchandising; (c) samples;

(d) manufacturing variances (net of amounts capitalized); (e) loss on seconds; (f) provisions for
inventory losses (including provisions for shrinkage and losses on the disposition of excess and
obsolete inventory), and (g) direct freight charges incurred to ship finished goods to customers. Costs
incurred to store, pick, pack and ship (excluding direct freight charges} inventory to customers are
included in shipping and handling costs and are classified in selling, general and administrative
(“SG&A”) expenses. The Company’s gross profit and gross margin may not be directly comparable to
those of its competitors as income statement classifications of certain expenses may vary by company.

The Predecessor included design, merchandising and certain other product related costs in its
determination of inventory value. Beginning on February 4, 2003, the Company expenses such costs as
incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalenzs: Cash and cash equivalents include cash in banks, demand deposits
and investments in short-term marketable securities with maturities of 90 days or less.
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THE WARNACO GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

Accounts Receivable: As of January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004, the Company had
approximately $271,920 and $260,142 of open trade invoices and other receivables and $2,828 and
$6,785 of open debit memos, net of credit memos, respectively. Based upon the Company’s analysis of
estimated recoveries and collections associated with the related invoices and debit memos, as of
January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004, the Company recorded $54,943 and $57,436 of accounts
receivable reserves, respectively.

The Company maintains reserves for estimated amounts that the Company does not expect to
collect from its trade customers. Accounts receivable reserves include amounts the Company expects
its customers to deduct for returns, allowances, trade discounts, markdowns, amounts for accounts that
£o out of business or seek the protection of the Bankruptcy Code and amounts related to charges in
dispute with customers. The Company’s estimate of the allowance amounts that are necessary includes
amounts for specific deductions the Company has authorized and an amount for other estimated
losses. Adjustments for specific account allowances and negotiated settlements of customer deductions
are recorded as deductions to revenue in the period the specific adjustment is identified. The provision
for accounts receivable allowances is affected by general economic conditions, the financial condition
of the Company’s customers, the inventory position of the Company’s customers and many other
factors. The determination of accounts receivable reserves is subject to significant levels of judgment
and estimation by the Company’s management. If circumstances change or economic conditions
deteriorate, the Company may need to increase the reserve significantly. The Company has purchased
credit insurance to help mitigate the potential losses it may incur from the bankruptcy, reorganization
or liquidation of some of its customers.

Inventories: The Company records purchases of inventory when it assumes title and the risk of
loss. The Company values its inventories at the lower of cost, determined on a first-in, first-out basis,
or market. The Company evaluates its inventories to determine excess units or slow-moving styles
based upon quantities on hand, orders in house and expected future orders. For those items for which
the Company believes it has an excess supply or for styles or colors that are obsolete, the Company
estimates the net amount that it expects to realize from the sale of such items. The Company’s
objective is to recognize projected inventory losses at the time the loss is evident rather than when the
goods are ultimately sold. The Company’s calculation of the reduction in carrying value necessary for
the disposition of excess inventory is highly dependent on its projections of future sales of those
products and the prices it is able to obtain for such products. The Company reviews its inventory
position monthly and adjusts its carrying value for excess or obsolete goods based on revised
projections and current market conditions for the disposition of excess and obsolete inventory. If
economic conditions worsen, the Company may have to decrease its carrying value of excess or
obsolete goods substantially.

At January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004, the Company had inventory with a carrying value of
approximately $53,500 and $18,500, respectively, that was potentially excess and/or obsolete. Based
upon the estimated recoveries related to such inventory, as of January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004, the
Company had reduced the carrying value of such inventory by approximately $22,400 and $11,000,
respectively, for excess, obsolete and other inventory adjustments. The carrying value of the
Company’s inventories were adjusted to fair value at February 4, 2003 in connection with the adoption
of fresh start reporting. Therefore, the carrying value of a portion of the inventory identified as excess
and/or obsolete at January 3, 2004 reflects the reductions to record inventory at fair value at
February 4, 2003.

Long-lived Assets: As of February 4, 2003, the Company adopted fresh start reporting and, as a
result, its long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment were recorded at their fair values
based upon the preliminary appraised values of such assets. Adjustments to the preliminary appraised
values were recorded as adjustments to goodwill. The Company used the work of an independent
third party appraisal firm to assist it in determining the fair values of its property, plant and

F-13



THE WARNACO GROUP, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dellars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

equipment. The Company and the independent third party appraiser determined the fair value of the
Company’s property, plant and equipment using the planned future use of each asset or group of
assets, quoted market prices for assets where a market existed for such assets, the expected future
revenue and profitability of the business unit utilizing such assets and the expected future life of such
assets. In its determination of fair value, the Company also considered whether an asset would be sold
either individually or with other assets and the proceeds the Company expected to receive from such a
sale. Long-lived assets in existence at February 4, 2003 are recorded at their fair values net of
accumulated depreciation since February 4, 2003. Long-lived assets acquired after February 4, 2003
are recorded at historical costs, net of accomulated depreciation. Assumptions relating to the expected
future use of individual assets could affect the fair value of such assets and the depreciation expense
recorded related to such assets in the future.

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for possible impairment when events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. Assumptions and estimates used
in the evaluation of impairment may affect the carrying value of long-lived and intangible assets,
which could result in impairment charges in future periods. In addition, depreciation and amortization
expense is affected by the Company’s determination of the estimated useful lives of the related assets.
The estimated useful lives of fixed assets and finite lived intangible assets are based on their
classification and expected usage, as determined by the Company.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: Goodwill represents the amount by which the Company’s
reorganization value exceeded the fair value of its tangible assets and identified intangible assets less
its liabilities allocated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations
(“SFAS 141”), as of February 4, 2003 and the excess of purchase price over fair value of net assets
acquired in business combinations under the purchase method of accounting. Pursuant to the
provisions of SFAS No. 142, Business Combinations (“SFAS 142”), goodwill is not amortized and is
subject to an annual impairment test which the Company performs in the fourth quarter of each fiscal
year. Goodwill was allocated to various reporting units, which are either the operating segment or one
reporting level below the operating segment. The Company’s reporting units for purposes of applying
the provisions of SFAS 142 are: Warner's®/Olga®/Body Nancy Ganz*™/Bodyslimmers®, Calvin Klein
underwear, Lejaby®, Calvin Klein jeans, Chaps® and Swimwear. SFAS 142 requires the Company to
compare the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying amount on an annual basis to determine if
there is potential impairment. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an
impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the implied fair value of the goodwill within the
reporting unit is less than its carrying value. If the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its fair value,
an impairment loss is recognized. Fair values for goodwill and intangible assets are determined based
on discounted cash flows, market multiples or appraised values, as appropriate.

Intangible assets primarily consist of licenses and trademarks. The fair value of such licenses and
trademarks owned by the Company at February 4, 2003 was based upon the preliminary appraised
values of such assets as determined by the Company and an independent third party appraiser.
Adjustments to the preliminary appraised amounts were recorded as adjustments to goodwill. Licenses
and trademarks in existence at February 4, 2003 are recorded at their fair values net of accumulated
amortization since February 4, 2003. Licenses and trademarks acquired after February 4, 2003 are
recorded at cost net of accumulated amortization. The majority of the Company’s license and
trademark agreements cover periods of time in excess of forty years. The estimates and assumptions
used in the determination of the value of indefinite lived intangible assets will not have an effect on
the Company’s future earnings unless a future evaluation of trademark or license value indicates that
such asset is impaired. Identifiable intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS 142, intangible
assets with indefinite lives are not amortized. See Note 13,
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THE WARNACO GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

The Company did not identify any impairments of goodwill or intangible assets for Fiscal 2004 or
the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment as of January 1, 2005 and
January 3, 2004 is stated at estimated fair value, net of accumulated depreciation, for the assets in
existence at February 4, 2003 and at historical costs, net of accumulated depreciation, for additions
during the period February 5, 2003 to January 1, 2005. Property, plant and equipment in existence at
February 4, 2003 was stated at fair value as determined by the Company together with the assistance
of a third party appraiser. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are summarized
below:

Buildings ...... ... 20-40 years
Building improvements (including leasehold

IMPrOVEMENIS) ..\ttt et 2-20 years
Machinery and equipment ......... ... . i, 3-10 years
Furniture and fixtures (including store fixtures)......... 4-10 years
Computer hardware. ........... ..., 3-5 years
Computer software ......... ... i, 3-7 years

Depreciation and amortization expense is based on the estimated useful lives of depreciable
assets and is provided using the straight line method. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
lesser of the useful lives of the assets or the lease term. Depreciation and amortization expense
related to property, plant and equipment was $29,226, $27,678 (as restated, see Note 23), $4,243, and
$52,318 for Fiscal 2004, the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, the period January 5, 2003 to
February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002, respectively.

Computer Software Costs: Internal and external costs incurred in developing or obtaining
computer software for internal use are capitalized in property, plant and equipment in accordance with
SOP 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use, and
related guidance, and are amortized on a straight-line basis, over the estimated useful life of the
software (3 to 7 years). General and administrative costs related to developing or obtaining such
software are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes: Deferred income taxes are determined using the liability method. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial reporting and tax basis
of assets and liabilities and are measured by applying enacted tax rates and laws to taxable years in
which such differences are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is established to reduce the
amount of deferred tax assets to an amount that the Company believes, based upon objectively
verifiable evidence, is realizable. The only objectively verifiable evidence the Company is currently
able to use in determining the need for a valuation allowance is the future reversals of existing
temporary differences. The future recognition of deferred tax assets, through a reduction in valuation
allowances that existed at February 4, 2003, will first reduce goodwill. Should the recognition of
deferred tax assets result in the elimination of goodwill, any additional deferred tax asset recognition
will reduce other intangible assets. Pursuant to SOP 90-7, benefits realized from pre-confirmation net
operating loss carryforwards should first reduce goodwill and other intangible assets until exhausted
and thereafter should be reported as a direct addition to additional paid-in-capital.

Pension Pilan: The Company has a defined benefit pension plan (the “Pension Plan”) covering
certain full-time non-union domestic employees and certain domestic employees covered by a
collective bargaining agreement. The determination of the total liability attributable to benefits owed
to participants covered by the Pension Plan is determined by the Pension Plan’s third party actuary
using assumptions provided by the Company. The assumptions used can have a significant effect on
the amount of pension liability recorded by the Company. The Pension Plan actuary also determines
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NOTES TO CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thonsands, excluding per share amounts)

the annual cash contribution to the Pension Plan. The Pension Plan was under-funded as of January 1,
2005 and January 3, 2004. The Pension Plan and the Company’s Reorganization Plan contemplate that
the Company will continue to fund its minimum required contributions and any other premiums due
under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”) and the United
States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”™). Effective January 1, 2003, the
Pension Plan was amended and, as a result, no future benefits accrue to participants in the Pension
Plan. As a result of the amendment, the Company has not recorded pension expense for current
service costs in 2003 or Fiscal 2004 and will not record pension expense for current service in any
future period. As of January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004, the Company recorded a Pension Plan
liability equal to the amount that the present value of projected benefit obligations (discounted using
an interest rate of approximately 5.5% and 5.3%, respectively) exceeded the fair value of Pension Plan
assets as determined by the Pension Plan trustee. The Company’s cash contribution to the Pension
Plan for 2004 was $12,286 and is expected to be approximately $25,400 in the aggregate from Fiscal
2005 through Fiscal 2009. The amount of estimated cash contributions that the Company will be
required to make to the Pension Plan could increase or decrease depending on the actual return
earned by the assets of the Pension Plan and changes in the amount of projected benefit obligation as
determined by the Pension Plan actuary. The accrued long-term Pension Plan liability and accruals for
other post retirement benefits are classified as other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet at January 1, 2005. Contributions to the Pension Plan to be paid in Fiscal 2005 of $5,400 are
classified as accrued liabilities at January 1, 2005.

On October 5, 2003 (the beginning of the fourth quarter of 2003), the Company changed its
method of accounting for the Pension Plan to a method that accelerates the recognition of gains or
losses on Pension Plan assets and the Pension Plan’s projected benefit obligations (“Accelerated
Method”). The Company previously deferred gains and losses on Pension Plan assets and liabilities in
excess of the expected rate of return and amortized the deferred amount into operations over the
remaining estimated service life to the extent such gains and losses exceeded 10% of the projected
benefit obligation. The Company also deferred the recognition of certain changes in the Pension Plan’s
projected benefit obligations (“Deferred Method”). The Company believes that the Accelerated
Method is preferable to the Deferred Method because the recorded pension liability, using the
Accelerated Method, will approximate fair value. Pursuant to SFAS No. 87, Employers’ Accounting
for Pensions, each quarter the Company recognizes interest cost on projected benefit obligations offset
by the expected return on Pension Plan assets. In addition, the Company obtains reports from the
Pension Plan actuary and Pension Plan trustee to measure Pension Plan assets and liabilities at
year-end. The Company records the effect of actual gains and losses exceeding the expected return on
Pension Plan assets and any other changes in the Pension Plan projected benefit obligations
determined by the actuary in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. This change will result in
additional volatility in pension expense/income in future periods. Therefore, the Company reports
pension expense/income on a separate line of its statement of operations in each period. See Note 10.

Stock-Based Compensation: Effective February 5, 2003, the Company adopted the fair value
method of accounting for stock options for all options granted by the Company after February 4, 2003
pursuant to the prospective method provisions of SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, Transition and Disclosure (“SFAS 148”). The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton
model to calculate the fair value of stock option awards. The Black-Scholes-Merton model requires
the Company to make significant judgments regarding the assumptions used within the
Black-Scholes-Merton model, the most significant of which are the stock price volatility assumption,
the expected life of the option award and the risk-free rate of return. In determining the stock price
volatility assumption used, the Company considered the volatility of the stock prices of selected
companies in the apparel industry, the nature of those companies, the Company’s stock price volatility
since its emergence from bankruptcy and other factors. For options granted during Fiscal 2004 and for
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the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, the Company used a weighted average stock price
volatility assumption of approximately 35%. The Company based its estimate of the expected life of a
stock option of five years upon the vesting period of 36-42 months and the option term of ten years
for issued and outstanding options. The Company’s risk-free rate of return assumption for options
granted in Fiscal 2004 and for the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 was equal to the quoted
yield for five-year U.S. treasury bonds as of the date of grant. Compensation expense related to stock
option grants is determined based on the fair value of the stock option on the grant date and is
recognized over the vesting period of the grants ona straight line basis. Compensation expense
related to restricted stock grants is determined based on the fair value of the underlying stock on the
grant date and recognized over the vesting period of the grants on a straight-line basis.

Prior to February 5, 2003, the Company followed the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 123"}, The Company accounted for stock-based
compensation for employees using the intrinsic value method as prescribed by Accounting Principles
Board (“APB”) Opinion No: 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB 257), and related
interpretations. Under APB 25, no compensation expense was recognized for employee share option
grants because the exercise price of the options granted equaled the market price of the underlying
shares on the date of grant (the “intrinsic value method”). Compensation expense related to restricted
stock grants, prior to February 4, 2003, was recognized over the vesting period of the grants.

The following table illustrates the effect that stock-based compensation would have had on net
income (loss) and net income (loss) per share of the Predecessor if such compensation had been
included in its net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share for the period January 5, 2003 to
February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002, respectively:

Predecessor
For the Period
January 5, 2003 to Fiscal
February 4, 2003 2002
Net income (loss) asreported ...t $ 2,358,537 $ (964,863)

Add: Stock-based employee compensation cost included in

reported net income (loss), net of related income tax

effects .. e 8 258
Less: Stock-based employee compensation cost, net of income

tax effects, that would have been included in the

determination of net income (loss) if the fair value

method had been applied to all awards ................. (252) (7,254)

Net income (loss) — proforma...........coooviiieen i, . $ 2,358,293 $ (971,859)
Income (loss) per share:

Basic and diluted — as reported . .............. ... ... $ 44.51 $  (18.21)

Basic and diluted — proforma..................ovennn.. $ 44.50 $ (1839

Weighted average number of shares outstanding:
Basicand diluted ......... ... .. 52,989,965 52,989,965

F-17



THE WARNACO GROUP, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

Total stock-based compensation expense of the Successor for periods presented after February 4,
2003 was as follows:

For the Period

Fiscat February 5, 2003 to
2004 _January 3, 2004
Stock-based compensation expense before income taxes:
SEOCK OPHIONS. .« oot e $4,489 $3,255
Restricted stock grants ... 2,632 2,275
20172 Y 7,121 5,530
Income tax benefit:
Stock OPtIoNS. . . oottt 1,840 1,302
Restricted stock grants ......... ... . i i i 1,079 910
FOtal . L e e 2,919 2,212
Stock-based compensation expense after income taxes:
Stock Options. . ... 2,649 1,953
Restricted stock grants . ........ ... . i 1,553 1,365
Total ..o e $4,202 $3,318

The fair values of these stock options were estimated at the date of grant using a
Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Successor Predecessor
For the Period For the Period
Fiscal February 5, 2003 to January S, 2003 to Fiscal
2004 January 3, 2004 February 4, 2003 2002
Weighted average risk free rate of l
TELUIN .ottt 3.32% 2.55% n/a n/a
Dividend yield (a) ................. — —_ n/a n/a
Expected volatility of the market
price of the Company’s common
stock ... 35.0% 35.0% n/a n/a
Expected option life. . .............. 5 years 5 years n/a n/a

(a) The Company is restricted from paying dividends under the terms of the Revolving Credit Facility
and the terms of the indenture governing the Senior Notes. The dividend restrictions under the
terms of the Revolving Credit Facility were modified on August 1, 2004. See Note 15.

The Predecessor did not grant any stock-based compensation or stock options during the period
January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 or in Fiscal 2002,

Advertising Costs: Advertising costs are included in SG&A expenses and are expensed when the
advertising or promotion is published or presented to consumers. Cooperative advertising allowances
provided to customers are charged to operations as incurred and are also included in SG&A expenses.
The amounts charged to operations for advertising, marketing and promotion expenses (including
cooperative advertising, marketing and promotion expenses) for Fiscal 2004, the periods February 5,
2003 to January 3, 2004 and January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002 were $85,972,
$66,393, $7,403 and $105,666, respectively. Cooperative advertising expense for Fiscal 2004, the periods
February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 and January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002 were
$18,406, $17,509, $1,420 and $31,564, respectively.

F-18



THE WARNACO GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

Shipping and Handling Costs: Costs to store, pick and pack merchandise and costs related to
warehousing and distribution activities (with the exception of freight charges incurred to ship finished
goods to customers) are expensed as incurred and are classified in SG&A expenses. Direct freight
charges incurred to ship merchandise to customers are expensed as incurred and are classified in cost
of goods sold. The amounts charged to SG&A for shipping and handling costs for Fiscal 2004, the
periods February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002 were
$45,195, $38,002, $3,508 and $65,190, respectively.

Leases: The Company recognizes rent expense for operating leases on a straight-line basis
(including the effect of reduced or free rent and rent escalations) over the initial lease term. The
difference between the cash paid to the landlord and the amount recognized as rent expense on a
straight-line basis is included in deferred rent and classified within other long-term liabilities. Cash
reimbursements received from landlords for leasehold improvements and other cash payments
received from landlords as lease incentives are recorded as deferred rent and classified as other
long-term liabilities. Deferred rent related to landlord incentives is amortized using the straight-line
method over the initial lease term as an offset to rent expense.

Marketable Securities: Marketable securities are stated at fair value based on quoted market
prices. Marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale with any unrealized gains or losses, net
of tax, included as a component of stockholders’ equity and included in accumulated other
comprehensive income.

Assets Held for Sale:  The Company classifies assets to be sold as assets held for sale. Assets held
for sale are reported at estimated fair values less selling costs. Assets held for sale at January 1, 2005
and January 3, 2004 include certain property, plant and equipment identified for disposition.

Notes Receivable: Notes receivable represents the long-term portion of amounts due from third
parties evidenced by long-term note agreements, net of allowances for doubtful accounts. Notes
receivable earn interest at rates from 8% to 12%. Interest income from notes receivable is included in
interest expense, net. The current portion of notes receivable is classified with other current assets.

Deferred Financing Costs: Deferred financing costs represent legal, other professional and bank
underwriting fees incurred in connection with the issuance of debt. Such fees are amortized over the
life of the related debt using the interest method. Amortization of deferred financing costs is included
in interest expense, net.

Financial Instruments: The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for
speculation or for trading purposes and has not done so since the Petition Date (as defined in Note 3).
The Company utilizes interest rate swaps to hedge certain exposures related to its long-term debt. A
number of major international financial institutions are counterparties to the Company’s outstanding
letters of credit and existing interest rate swap agreements. The Company monitors its positions with,
and the credit quality of, these counterparty financial institutions and does not anticipate
nonperformance of these counterparties. Management believes that the Company would not suffer a
material loss in the event of nonperformance by these counterparties.

Start-Up Costs: Pre-operating costs relating to the start-up of new product lines and businesses
are expensed as incurred.

Other Liabilities: Other long-term liabilities consist primarily of deferred rent.

Comprehensive Income (Loss): Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income (loss),
unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities (net of tax) and cumulative translation adjustments.
Because such cumulative translation adjustments are considered a component of permanently invested
earnings of foreign subsidiaries, no income taxes are provided on such amounts.

Translation of Foreign Currencies: Cumulative translation adjustments arise primarily from
consolidating the net assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign operations at current rates of
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exchange. Assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign operations are recorded at current rates of
exchange at the balance sheet date and translation adjustments are applied directly to stockholders’
equity and are included as part of accumulated other comprehensive income. Gains and losses related
to the translation of current amounts due from foreign subsidiaries are included in other income
(expense) and are expensed in the period incurred. Translation gains and losses related to long-term
and permanently invested inter-company balances are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
income. Income and expense items for the Company’s foreign operations are translated using monthly
average exchange rates.

Reclassifications: Certain prior period items have been reclassified to conform to the current
period presentation, including certain freight charges and royalty expenses in the consolidated
statement of operations. These reclassifications were not material to the consolidated financial
statements. Freight charges and royalty expenses were reclassified from selling, general and
administrative expenses to cost of goods sold.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements: In Yanuary 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities (“FIN 46”), an
interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements
(“ARB 51”). FIN 46 clarifies the application of ARB 51 to certain entities in which equity investors
do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk
for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other
parties. FIN 46 explains how to identify variable interest entities and how an enterprise assesses its
interests in a variable interest entity to decide whether to consolidate that entity. It requires existing
unconsolidated variable interest entities to be consolidated by their primary beneficiaries if the entities
do not effectively disperse risks among parties involved. It also requires certain disclosures by the
primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity and by an enterprise that holds significant variable
interests in a variable interest entity where the enterprise is not the primary beneficiary. FIN 46 is
effective for variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003 and for variable interest entities in
which an enterprise obtains an interest after that date, and effective for the first fiscal year or interim
period beginning after June 15, 2003 for variable interest entities in which an enterprise holds a
variable interest that it acquired before February 1, 2003. In December 2003, the FASB published a
revision to FIN 46 (“FIN 46R”) to clarify certain provisions of FIN 46. FIN 46R was effective for the
Company’s first quarter of Fiscal 2004. FIN 46 and FIN 46R did not have a material affect on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. 106-2, Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements Related 1o the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization
Act of 2003 (“FSP 106-2”) regarding SFAS No. 106, Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions (“SFAS 106”). FSP No. 106-2 discusses the effect of the Medicare Prescription
Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act (the “Act”) enacted in December 2003 and supersedes
FSP No. 106-1, which was issued in January 2004. FSP 106-2 considers the effect of the two new
features introduced in the Act in determining the accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation
(“APBO”) and net periodic post-retirement benefit cost. The effect on the APBO will be accounted
for as an actuarial experience gain to be amortized into income over the average remaining service
period of plan participants. Companies may elect to defer accounting for this benefit or may attempt
to reflect the best estimate of the impact of the Act on their net periodic costs currently. FSP 106-2
was effective for the second half of Fiscal 2004. Based upon the provisions of the Company’s
post-retirement benefit plans, the retirees eligible to participate in such plans, the participation rate of
such retirees and the contribution rates attributable to the participants in the plans, the Company does
not believe that the enactment of the Act was a “Significant Event” to its postretirement benefit plans
as defined in paragraph 73 of SFAS 106. The Company considered the effects of the Act in its
measurement of its post-retirement benefit obligations as of January 1, 2005 and determined that the
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Act had no effect on the Company’s post-retirement benefit obligation and the related post-retirement
benefits expense. Future changes to the Company’s post-retirement benefit plan provisions will be
evaluated and effects, if any, will be disclosed in accordance with FSP 106-2.

In October 2004, the FASB issued EITF No. 04-1, Accounting for Preexisting Relationships
between the Parties to a Business Combination (“EITF 04-1”). EITF 04-1 addresses the accounting for
preexisting relationships between the parties to a business combination such as settlement of a
preexisting relationship, acquisition of a right that the acquirer had previously granted to the acquired
entity and recognition of a settlement gain in conjunction with the effective settlement of a lawsuit or
an executory contract in a business combination. EITF 04-1 is effective for business combinations
consummated and goodwill impairment tests performed in reporting periods beginning after
October 13, 2004. Adoption of EITF 04-1 did not have an effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In October 2004, the FASB issued EITF No. 04-10, Determining Whether to Aggregate Operating
Segments That Do Not Meet the Quantitative Thresholds (“EITF 04-107). EITF 04-10 provides
guidance on the aggregation criteria in paragraph 17 of SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of
an Enterprise and Related Information (“SFAS 131”) when determining whether operating segments
that do not meet the quantitative thresholds may be aggregated in accordance with paragraph 19 of
SFAS 131. EITF 04-10 is effective for fiscal years ending after October 13, 2004. Adoption of
EITF 04-10 did not have an effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The effective
date of EITF 04-10 is expected to coincide with the effective date of a FASB Staff Position (“FSP”)
that will provide additional guidance on segment disclosures. The Company will evaluate the effect of
EITF 04-10 and the related FSP on its consolidated financial statements when the FSP is issued.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB
No. 43, Chapter 4 (“SFAS 1517). SFAS 151 clarifies the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle
facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage). SFAS 151 is effective for
inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. Earlier application is
permitted for costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after November 24, 2004. The Company
believes the provisions of SFAS 151 are consistent with its current accounting position and does not
expect the adoption of SFAS 151 to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment
(“SEAS 123R"”). SFAS 123R requires compensation costs related to share-based payment transactions
to be recognized in the financial statements. With limited exceptions, the amount of compensation cost
will be measured based on the grant-date fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued. In
addition, liability awards will be remeasured each reporting period. Compensation cost will be
recognized over the period that an employee provides service in exchange for the award. SFAS 123R
replaces SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes APB No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. SFAS 123R is effective as of the first interim or annual
reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005. SFAS 123R requires Companies to estimate the
forfeiture rate of stock based compensation awards. Since February 5, 2003, the Company has
recorded stock-based compensation expense based on actual forfeitures and is in the process of
evaluating the effect of SFAS 123R on its consolidated financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets, an
amendment of APB Opinion No. 29 (“SFAS 153”). SFAS 153 amends APB No. 29 to eliminate the
exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general
exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A
nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to
change significantly as a result of the exchange. SFAS 153 is effective for nonmonetary asset
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exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. Earlier application is permitted for
nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after December 16, 2004. The
adoption of SFAS 153 is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FSP 109-1, Application of FASB Statement No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes,” to the Tax Deduction on Qualified Production Activities Provided by
the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (“FSP 109-17) and FSP 109-2, Accounting and Disclosure
Guidance for the Foreign Earnings Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of
2004 (“FSP 109-2"). FSP 109-1, which became effective upon issuance, provides guidance in
determining that a tax deduction on qualified production activities provided for in the American Jobs
Creation Act of 2004 should be accounted for as a special deduction in accordance with SFAS 109,
FSP 109-2, which became effective upon issuance, provides guidance and accounting for the special
one-time dividends received deduction of 85 percent of certain foreign earnings that are repatriated in
either an enterprise’s last tax year that began before the enactment date, or the first tax year that
begins during the one-year period beginning on the date of enactment. The Company expects that all
profits earned by its foreign subsidiaries will be permanently invested and therefore the Company has
no current plans to repatriate any foreign earnings that will qualify for the special one-time dividends
received deduction.

Note 2—Acquisitions

Ocean Pacific: On August 19, 2004 (“Date of Acquisition”) the Company acquired 100% of the
outstanding common stock of Ocean Pacific Apparel Corp. (collectively, with its subsidiaries “Ocean
Pacific”) for $40,000 in cash and the assumption of $1,000 in debt owed to a prior significant
shareholder of Ocean Pacific. The assumed debt was repaid simultaneously with the closing. The
terms of the acquisition agreement require the Company to make certain contingent payments to the
seller if (i) wholesale net revenues (both directly earned by the Company and directly earned by the
Company'’s licensees) exceed a defined threshold for Fiscal 2007 and (ii) the operating profits of
certain defined direct operations of the Company exceed 5% of wholesale net revenues for Fiscal 2007
and Fiscal 2008. The contingent payments are based upon the amounts earned by the Company in
excess of the applicable thresholds. The defined thresholds represent significant growth in Ocean
Pacific’s business compared to 2004. No contingent payments are required if the defined thresholds are
not exceeded by the Company. Any contingent payments ultimately made by the Company will be
recorded as an increase in the purchase price of Ocean Pacific and an increase in goodwill.

Ocean Pacific, based in Irvine, California, is a surf and beach lifestyle brand which operates
through a network of licensees worldwide and offers a broad array of apparel and accessories for men,
women, young men, juniors, and kids under its Op®, Ocean Pacific®, and Op Classics® labels. The
Company believes opportunities exist to expand Ocean Pacific’s business with current licensing
partners and in conjunction with the Company’s core competencies of swimwear, sportswear and
intimate apparel.

The results of Ocean Pacific’s operations have been included in the Company’s consolidated
statement of operations (as part of the Company’s Swimwear Group) since the Date of Acquisition
and the acquired assets and liabilities have been included in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet
at January 1, 2005. Unaudited pro forma information related to this acquisition is not included since
the impact of this transaction is not material to the consolidated results of operations or balance sheet
of the Company.
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Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the Date of Acquisition were as follows:

Assets

Accounts TeCeivabDle. . . oot i i e e e $ 1,645
Prepaid and other current assets. ...t 1,234
Property, plant and equipment ............ .. oo i 286
Licenses and trademarks (a) . ..... .ot i 35,861
GoodWll (B) ... e 17,664
71 ¢ T-5 PP 143

T0tal ASSEES .« vttt et e e e 56,833

Liabilities

Related party debt owed to sharebolder........................... 1,000
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other current liabilities .. ... 2,888
Non-current deferred taxes ....... ...ttt 12,448

Total Habilitles ... .o\t e e 16,336
Cost of acquisition (C). .. .vvv vttt i e $40,497

(a) Intangible assets include various trademarks of Ocean Pacific and certain license agreements, the
terms of which grant the Company the right to receive royalties from licensees for periods ranging
from 1 to 21 years. During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2004, the Company finalized its valuation
of the licenses and trademarks which resulted in an increase in licenses and trademarks of $4,833
and a corresponding reduction in goodwill. Any contingent payments ultimately recorded by the
Company will be recorded as an increase in the purchase price of Ocean Pacific and as an
increase in goodwill in accordance with SFAS 141, The valuation of certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities will not be finalized until the Company completes its income tax return for 2004.

(b) Goodwill recorded in connection with this acquisition is classified in the Swimwear Group.

(¢) The cost of acquisition reflects the purchase price of $40,000 and additional costs incurred by the
Company associated with the acquisition of $678 net of cash acquired of $181.

Distribution Facility: In April 2004, the Company entered into an agreement to terminate its
joint venture agreement in regards to a distribution facility located in the Netherlands. The Company
acquired the remaining outstanding shares of the company formed under the joint venture for $288,
net of cash acquired of $104. The final valuation of certain deferred tax accounts will not be
determined until the Company and its Dutch subsidiaries file their 2004 income tax return.

Note 3—Bankruptcy and Fresh Start Reporting

Chaprter 11 Cases: On June 11, 2001 (the “Petition Date”), Warnaco Group, 36 of its 37 U.S.
subsidiaries and one of its Canadian subsidiaries, Warnaco of Canada Company (each a “Debtor” and,
collectively, the “Debtors™), each filed a voluntary petition for relief under the Bankruptcy Code in
the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the “Bankruptcy Court”)
(collectively, the “Chapter 11 Cases™). The remainder of Warnaco Group’s foreign subsidiaries were
not debtors in the Chapter 11 Cases, nor were they subject to foreign bankruptey or insolvency
proceedings.

On November 9, 2002, the Debtors filed the Reorganization Plan. On January 16, 2003, the
Bankruptcy Court entered (i) its Findings of Fact to and Conclusions of Law Re: Order and Judgment
Confirming The First Amended Joint Plan of The Warnaco Group, Inc. and Its Affiliated Debtors and
Debtors-In-Possession Under Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the United States Code, dated November 8,
2002, and (ii) an Order and Judgment Confirming The First Amended Joint Plan of The Warnaco
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Group, Inc. and Its Affiliated Debtors and Debtors-In-Possession Under Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the
United States Code, dated November 8, 2002, and Granting Related Relief (the “Confirmation
Order”).

In accordance with the provisions of the Reorganization Plan and the Confirmation Order, the
Reorganization Plan became effective on the Effective Date and the Company entered into a $275,000
Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”). The Revolving Credit
Facility provides for a four-year, non-amortizing revolving credit facility. In accordance with the
Reorganization Plan, on the Effective Date, the Company issued $200,942 of New Warnaco Second
Lien Notes due 2008 (the “Second Lien Notes”) to certain pre-petition creditors and others in a
transaction exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“Securities Act™), pursuant to Section 1145(a) of the Bankruptcy Code. The Second Lien Notes were
secured by a second priority security interest in substantially all of the Debtors’ domestic assets and
guaranteed by Warnaco Group and Warnaco’s domestic subsidiaries. On June 12, 2003, the Company
repaid the Secord Lien Notes and the accrued interest thereon, in full, with the proceeds of the
offering of Warnaco’s 8%% Senior Notes due 2013 (the “Senior Notes”). See Note 15.

Set forth below is a summary of certain material provisions of the Reorganization Plan. Among
other things, as described below, the Reorganization Plan resulted in the cancellation of the Old
Common Stock issued prior to the Effective Date. The holders of Old Common Stock did not receive
any distribution cn account of the Old Common Stock under the Reorganization Plan. The Company,
as reorganized under the Reorganization Plan, issued 44,999,973 shares of common stock, par value
$0.01 per share (the “New Common Stock™), in reliance on the exemption from registration afforded
by Section 1145 of the Bankruptcy Code, which were distributed to pre-petition creditors as described
below. In addition, 5,000,000 shares of New Common Stock were reserved for issuance pursuant to
management incentive stock awards, including options. On March 12, 2003, subject to approval by the
stockholders of the Company’s proposed 2003 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Stock Incentive Plan™), the
Company authorized the grant of 750,000 shares of restricted stock and options to purchase 3,000,000
shares of New Common Stock at the fair market value of the New Common Stock on the date of
grant. On May 28, 2003, the stockholders of the Company approved the Stock Incentive Plan. The
Company received no proceeds from the issuance of the New Common Stock and the Second Lien
Notes; however, approximately $2,499,385 of indebtedness was extinguished in connection with such
issuances.

The following is a summary of distributions made pursuant to the Reorganization Plan:

(a) the Old Common Stock, including all stock options and restricted shares, was extinguished
and holders of the Old Common Stock received no distribution on account of the Old
Common Stock;

(b) general unsecured claimants received 2.55% (1,147,050 shares) of the New Common Stock, .
which the Company distributed in April 2003;

(c) the Company’s pre-petition secured lenders received their pro rata share of $106,112 in cash,
Second Lien Notes in the principal amount of $200,000 and 96.26% of the New Common
Stock (43,318,350 shares);

{d) holders of claims arising from or related to certain of the Predecessor’s preferred securities
received 0.60% of the New Common Stock (268,200 shares);

(e) pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement, as modified by the Reorganization Plan,
Antonio C. Alvarez II, the former President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
received an incentive bonus in an aggregate amount of $5,873, consisting of $1,950 in cash,
Second Lien Notes in the principal amount of $942 and 0.59% of the New Common Stock
(266,400 shares valued at $11.19 per share); and

(f) in addition to the foregoing, allowed administrative and certain priority claims were paid in
full in cash.
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Reorganization Value: In conjunction with the preparation of the Reorganization Plan, the
Company considered many factors in determining its reorganization value, including the amount and
nature of its monetary assets, estimated earnings and cash flow to be generated by the Company in
the future, the enterprise value of apparel companies selling similar products based on quoted market
prices and the value of recently completed transactions for the purchase and sale of companies or
parts of companies in the apparel industry. All of these factors involved the use of judgments and
estimates, the most significant of which involve estimates of future earnings and cash flow that the
Company will generate. The Company also engaged an independent third party appraisal and
consulting firm (the “BEV Appraiser”) to assist the Company in preparing a valuation analysis of the
reorganized Company. The BEV Appraiser utilized a combination of the market approach and income
approaches. The BEV Appraiser based upon its discussions with the Company, made certain
assumptions in its work. The weighted average long-term debt interest rate was assumed to be 7.81%
and the weighted average cost of capital was assumed to be 13.80%. The appraiser used three years of
financial projections in its evaluation and determined the terminal value based upon the Company’s
weighted average cost of capital and expected free cash flow using a 5.00% growth rate per annum.
The determination of the Company’s projected income and free cash flow required the use of
significant judgments and estimates by the Company. Changes in economic conditions and many other
factors will have a significant effect on the Company’s ability to earn the income or generate the free
cash flow assumed in its projections. In addition, the cost of equity or debt financing and the changes
in general economic conditions will have a significant effect on the Company’s ability to finance and
fund its operations and the cost associated with its borrowing activities. As a result, variations in the
amounts of income and cash flow actually earned by the Company will have a significant effect on its
business enterprise value (“BEV”).

The Company also allocated the overall business enterprise value to its various business units.
The determination of the value of each of the Company’s business units was based upon the estimated
earnings and cash flow to be generated by those business units. The Company also considered the
type and amount of assets held by each of those units. In addition, the Company offered several of its
business units for sale as part of its reorganization under the Bankruptcy Code. The Company
considered the prices offered for those business units in allocating its BEV to its business units. The
Company allocated the value of each business unit to the individual assets and liabilities held by each
business unit based on the fair value of the specific assets. The Company used the work of third party
appraisers 1o assist it in allocating such fair value.

Based upon the analysis of the BEV Appraiser and considering the factors noted above, the
Company determined that the BEV of the reorganized Company was between $730,000 and $770,000.
Based upon the timing of the Debtors’ emergence from bankruptcy, market conditions at the time of
emergence and the net assets of the Company at the Effective Date, the Company determined its
reorganization equity value of $503,548 by subtracting the Company’s debt of $246,452 on the
Effective Date from the mid-point ($750,000) of the BEV valuation range.

Fair Value of Certain Long-Term Tangible and Intangible Assets: In order to implement the
provisions of SFAS 141, the Company engaged an independent third party to appraise its various
business units and long-term tangible and intangible assets and to assist the Company in allocating the
reorganization value of the Company to its various assets and liabilities at February 4, 2003. The
Company engaged an independent third party appraisal and consulting firm (the “Asset Appraiser”)
separate from the BEV Appraiser to assist the Company in determining the fair value of the
Company’s long-term tangible assets and identifiable intangible assets. Based upon the reorganization
value of the Company, the Asset Appraiser provided detailed analysis of certain of the Company s
long-term tangible and intangible assets. See Note 13.

Fresh Start Reporting: The Debtors’ emergence from bankruptcy proceedings on February 4,
2003 resulted in a new reporting entity and adoption of fresh start reporting as of that date in
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accordance with SOP 90-7. The consolidated balance sheet as of February 4, 2003 (provided below)
gives effect to adjustments in the carrying value of assets and liabilities to fair value in accordance
with the provisions of SOP 90-7 and SFAS 141.

The following table reflects the implementation of the Reorganization Plan and the adjustments
recorded to the Company’s assets and liabilities to reflect the implementation of the Reorganization
Plan and the adjustments of such assets and liabilities to fair value at February 4, 2003, based upon
the Company’s reorganization value of $750,000 (as included in the Reorganization Plan and as
approved by the Bankruptcy Court).

Reorganization adjustments resulted primarily from the:

(a) distribution of cash of $106,112 (including accrued interest of $14,844) to the Company’s
pre-petition secured lenders;

(b) forgiveness of the Debtors’ pre-petition debt;

(c) issuance of New Common Stock and Second Lien Notes pursuant to the Reorganization
Plan;

(d) payment of various administrative and other claims associated with the Company’s
emergence from bankruptey;

(e) adjustment of property, plant and equipment carrying values to fair value; and

(f) adjustment of the carrying value of the Company’s various trademarks and license
agreements to fair value.

The Company determined the preliminary values of its assets and liabilities after considering the
work of the BEV Appraiser and the Asset Appraiser, as well as other valuation estimates.

The table below reflects reorganization adjustments for the discharge of indebtedness, issuance of
New Common Stock, issuance of Second Lien Notes and the fresh start adjustments and the resulting
fresh start consolidated balance sheet.
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Predecessor
February 4, Discharge of Issuance of  Fresh Start Successor
2003 Indebtedness New Securities Adjustments February 4, 2003
ASSETS :
Current assets:

Cash ... $ 96224 $ (75,533)a) $ —  $ 15(f) § 20,706

Restrictedcash. . . ......... ... .. ... ... 6,100 100(f) 6,200

Accounts receivable .. ........... ... . ... 190,390 150,390

Inventories. . . ......... e 370,527 (22,494)(h) 348,033

Prepaid expenses and other current assets. . . . . 53,548 ’ 53,548

Assets held forsale. . ................... 1,485 1,485

Current assets of discontinued operations . . . . .

Deferred income taxes ... ... .. ... ... 2,972 4,427(e) 7,399
Current assets . . ..o v vt i 721,246 {75,533) ~ {17,952) 627,761
Property, plant and equipment. . .. .. ... ...... 153,394 ‘ (24,037)(e) 129,357
Other assets: . .

Licenses, trademarks and other intangible

ASSELS . . e e 86.904 274,603(e) 361,507

Deferred financing costs .. ............... 859 4,427(d) 5,286

Other asseliS. . . v v vt i i et e e 2,703 2,703

Goodwill . ....... . ... ... — (515,659)(b)  503,548(c) (213,510)(e) (225,621)

3,193(e) 3,193
197,019(d) 114(f) 197,133
2,801(g) 2,801
22,494(h) 22,494
Total otherassets. .. ..., oo ... 90,466 (515,659) 704,994 89,695 369,496
$ 965,106 $ (591,392) § 704994 § 47,706 $ 1,126,614
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS®' EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)
Liabilities not subject to compromise:

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt. . . ... ... $ 5,050 $ 5,050
Debtor-in-possession revolving credit facility . — —
Revolving credit facility . . . ............. — 30,579(a) 1,950(ad) 2.244(f) 34,773
4,427(d) 4427

Accounts payable ......... .. .. ..., .., 123,235 (859)(f) 122,376
Accrued liabilities . .. ..., ... .. ..., 109,530 — (1,950)(d) (1,156)(f) 106,424
(2,981)(d) 2,801(g) (180)

Current liabilities of discontinued operations . (942)(d) (942)
Accrued income taxes payable ... ..... ... 28,140 — 28,140
Total current liabilities . . .......... ... 265,955 30,579 504 3,030 300,068

Long-term debt:

Second Lien Notes due 2008, .. .......... — — 200,942(d) —_ 200,942

Capital lease obligations. . .............. 1,260 1,260

Liabilities subject to compromise. . .. ......... 2,499,385 (106,112)(a) — — 2,393,273

(2,393,273)(b) (2,393,273)

Deferred income taxes . .. .......... ... ... 4,964 44.676(e) 49,640

Other long-term labilities. . ... ............. 71,156 71,156
Stockholders’ equity (deficiency):

Common Stock, $0.01 par value . .. ......... 654 {654)(b) 450(c) — 450

Additional paid-in capital .. .............. 908,939 (908,939)(b)  503,098(c) — 503,098

Accumulated other comprehensive loss. .. ... . (92,671) 92,671(b) — — —

Deficit. . ... o (2,380,615) 2,380.615(b) — — —

Treasury stock, at cost. . ................. (313,889) 313,889(b) — — -~

Unearned stock compensation . .. .......... (32) 32(b) — — —

Total stockholders’ equity (deficiency) . . . . .. (1,877,614) 1,877,614 503,548 — 503,548
$ 965,106 $ (591,192) § 704,994 $ 1,126,614

$ 47706
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(a) Utilized excess cash of $75,533 and borrowed $30,579 under the Revolving Credit Facility to pay
$106,112 (including accrued interest of $14,844) to the Company’s pre-petition secured creditors;
such amounts were included in liabilities subject to compromise.

(b) Reflects the discharge of pre-petition indebtedness of $2,393,273 (not including $106,112 in cash
paid to pre-petition secured lenders) and cancellation of all outstanding shares of Old Common
Stock ($654), including all options and restricted stock, additional paid-in capital ($908,939),
treasury stock ($313,889), unearned stock compensation ($32) and elimination of accumulated
other comprehensive loss (892,671) and deficit (32,380,615). A corresponding amount of $515,659
was recorded as a decrease in goodwill.

(c) Reflects the issuance of 44,999,973 shares of New Common Stock and recognition of
reorganization equity value of $503,548 pursuant to the provisions of the Reorganization Plan. A
corresponding amount of $503,548 was recorded as an increase in goodwill.

(d) Reflects the issuance of $200,000 principal amount of Second Lien Notes to creditors pursuant to
the terms of the Reorganization Plan, payment of $1,950 in cash bonus to the Company’s former
Chief Executive Officer pursuant to the terms of the Reorganization Plan and the payment of
$4,427 of deferred financing costs. The Company also issued $942 in Second Lien Notes and
266,400 shares of common stock (representing value of $2,981) to its former Chief Executive
Officer in payment of a bonus pursuant to the terms of the Reorganization Plan. The total
accrued bonus to the former Chief Executive Officer was $5,873. A corresponding amount of
$197,019 was recorded as an increase in goodwill.

(e) Reflects $24,037 adjustment to fixed assets to their fair value of $129,357 as determined by the
Asset Appraiser, $277,796 to intangible assets to reflect their fair value of $364,700 as determined
by the Asset Appraiser, offset by the allocation of negative goodwill of $3,193 to indefinite lived
intangible assets, the recognition of an initial deferred income tax liability of $49,640 and an
adjustment of $4,427 to recognize deferred tax assets of $7,399 related to the preliminary fair
value adjustments noted above, The deferred tax balance as of February 4, 2003 reflects an
initial valuation allowance of $89,319 which was established in connection with fresh start
reporting. A corresponding amount of $138,959 was recorded as the initial decrease in goodwill.
The Company recorded a deferred income tax liability of $49,640.

(f) Borrowed $2,244 under the Revolving Credit Facility to pay certain administrative and priority
claims aggregating $859 and $1,156, unaccrued tax claims of $114, the translation escrow account
(subsequently released to the Company) of $100 and to provide additional cash funds at closing
of $15. A corresponding amount of $114 was recorded as an increase in goodwill.

(g) Reflects the recording of an unfavorable contract commitment of $2,801 related to one of the
Company’s distribution facilities. A corresponding amount of $2,801 was recorded as an increase
in goodwill.

(h) Reflects adjustments of $22,494 to adjust inventory to its fair value of $348,033. A corresponding
amount of $22,494 was recorded as an increase in goodwill.

Note 4—Discontinued Operations

During the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, as part of its ongoing restructuring
activities, the Company entered into an agreement to sell its A.B.S. by Allen Schwartz® (“ABS™)
business unit and announced its intention to close its 44 remaining Speedo Authentic Fitness® retail
stores. In addition, in the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company announced its intention to rationalize
its Warner’s European operation through a sale of the business. A description of discontinued
operations is presented below:
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Sale of ABS: In November 2003, the Company entered into an agreement to sell the assets of its
ABS business unit. The sale of the ABS business unit was finalized on January 30, 2004, The sales
price was $15,368 in cash plus the assumption of approximately $2,000 in liabilities. In the fourth
quarter of 2003, the Company recorded a loss related to the sale of its ABS business unit of $3,143,
which was included in loss from discontinued operations. The loss included an impairment charge of
$3,019, before income taxes, related to the write-down of the ABS trademark to net realizable value.
Cash proceeds from the sale, net of related expenses, were $15,179.

Closure of 44 Speedo Authentic Fitness Retail Stores: During the fourth quarter of 2003, the
Company announced its intention to close its 44 remaining Speedo Authentic Fitness retail stores. As
of January 1, 2005, the Company had ceased all operations related to its 44 stores. During Fiscal 2004,
the Company recorded, as part of loss from discontinued operations, charges of $2,639 related to
future operating lease commitments and landlord settlements, net of possible sublease rental income.

Rationalization of Warner’s Europe Operations: During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company
announced its plan to exit its Warner’s business in Europe. On May 21, 2004, the Company entered
into a licensing agreement for its Warner’s business in Europe. According to the terms of the
agreement, the licensee pays royalties based upon sales. The licensee is not required to pay minimum
royalties until Fiscal 2007 and no royalties have been earned to date.

Summarized operating results for the discontinued operations are as follows:

Successor Predecessor
For the Period For the Period
February 5, 2003 January 5, 2003

Fiscal 2004 to January 3, 2004 to February 4, 2003 Fiscal 2002

Netrevenues...........ccovvuune.n. $17.499 § 65,237 $5,994 $86,992
Loss before provision for income

17:3. LI €3 (6,336) (18,369) (501) (4,991)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes. . (1,978) 24 — 4,266
Loss from discontinued operations . .. $(4,358) $(18,393) $ (501) $(9,257)

(a) Includes the loss on the sale of the ABS business unit of $3,143 for the period February S, 2003
to January 3, 2004. In addition, loss before provision for income taxes for the period February 5,
2003 to January 3, 2004 includes restructuring charges of $9,826 related to the Warner’s
operation in Europe and the closure of the Company’s 44 remaining Speedo Authentic Fitness
retail stores.
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The assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations at January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004
are presented in the consolidated balance sheets as follows:

January 1, January 3,

2005 (a) 2004 (b)

Accounts receivable, net .. ... . . i $1,735 $ 4,103
InVentOrIEs, Mt ..ottt i i i e e i e 40 7,808
Prepaid expenses and other current assets................ 504 1,284
Property, plant and equipment, net...................... 280 2,563
Intangible and other assets ................. ..ot 59 11,367
Assets of discontinued operations...............o...u. $2,618 $27,125
Accounts payable ......... .. oo i $ 130 $ 2,333
Accrued labilities. . ... ... 1,320 5,107
Liabilities of discontinued operations . ................... $1,450 $ 7.440

(a) Assets at January 1, 2005 relate to the Warner’s business in Europe and liabilities at January 1,
2005 relate to the Warner’s business in Europe and the Speedo Authentic Firness retail stores.

(b) Assets and liabilities at January 3, 2004 relate to the Warner’s business in Europe, the Speedo
Authentic Fitness retail stores and the ABS business unit.

Note 5—Reorganization Items (Predecessor)

In connection: with the Chapter 11 Cases, the Company initiated several strategic and
organizational changes to streamline its operations, focus on its core businesses and return it to
profitability. Many of the strategic actions including the closure and consolidation of certain European
facilities, are long-term in nature. Certain severance obligations, lease terminations and other
obligations will not be fully paid until the second quarter of Fiscal 2005. In connection with these
actions, the Company had closed all of its domestic outlet retail stores by January 4, 2003 and certain
of its Speedo Authentic Fitness retail stores. As of January 4, 2003, the Company closed 204 of the
283, or 72%, of the retail stores it operated at the beginning of Fiscal 2001. In Fiscal 2002, the
Company closed 118 stores. In the first quarter of 2003, the Company closed three additional Speedo
Authentic Fitness retail stores. The closing of the domestic outlet retail stores and the sale of the
related inventory generated net proceeds of approximately $23,200 in Fiscal 2002.

In the first quarter of Fiscal 2002, the Company sold the assets of GIJM Manufacturing Ltd.
(“GIM”) and Penhaligon’s Ltd. (*Penhaligon’s”) for net proceeds of approximately $20,459 in the
aggregate. The net loss on the sale of GIM and Penhaligon’s was approximately $2,897 and is included
in reorganization items in Fiscal 2002.

During Fiscal 2002, the Company sold certain personal property, vacated buildings, surplus land
and other assets generating net proceeds of approximately $6,814. The losses related to the
write-down of these assets were approximately $3,656 for Fiscal 2002. The Company vacated certain
leased premises and rejected those leases (many related to its former Retail Stores Group) under the
provisions of the Bankruptcy Code.

During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2002, the Company completed a strategic review of its
Intimate Apparel operations in Europe and formalized a plan to consolidate its European
manufacturing operations and to restructure certain other manufacturing, sales, and administrative
operations in Europe. The Company incurred severance, outplacement, legal, accounting and other
expenses associated with the consolidation covering approximately 350 employees. Through February
4, 2003, the Company had accrued $14,698 related to the minimum level of benefits to be paid to
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terminated employees in addition to legal fees and other shutdown expenses in connection with the
European consolidation. In the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, the Company recorded an
additional $1,723 for obligations due under the consolidation plan. The costs incurred after February
4, 2003 are recorded as part of “restructuring items” of the Successor in the consolidated statement of
operations. The cost of the consolidation was approximately $17,400.

As a direct result of the Chapter 11 Cases, the Company has recorded certain liabilities, incurred
certain legal and professional fees and written-down certain assets. The transactions recorded were
consistent with the provisions of SOP 90-7.

Reorganization items included in the consolidated statement of operations for the periods
Yanuary 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002 were $29,805 and $114,495, respectively. Included
in reorganization items are certain non-cash asset impairment provisions and accruals for items were
paid in cash. Subsequent to February 4, 2003, to the extent that the Company incurred reorganization
items in respect of the Chapter 11 Cases, such items have been recorded in SG&A expenses. Included
in SG& A expenses for Fiscal 2004 and the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 are legal and
professional fees and certain employee-related costs relating to the Chapter 11 Cases of $662 and
$5,012, respectively.

Reorganization items were as follows:

Predecessor
Period January 5,
2003 to
February 4, 2003 Fiscal 2002
Legal and professional fees........................oo.s. $ 4,468 $ 27,734
Employee contracts and retention......................, 14,540 25,571
GECC lease settlement ..............oiiiiiiinnnnnnn.. —_— 22,898
Write-off of fixed assets related to retail stores closed ..... — 13,250
Facility shutdown costs . .........oviiiiineer e, 2) 7,603
Lease terminations ... ...oovv e ineriinanenna. 10,098 9,352
Sales of Penhaligon’s, GIM and Ubertech................ — 3,673
Employee benefit costs related to plant closings........... — 3,068
Aviation and other assets ...ttt it 631 1,176
Losses from write-offs and sales of fixed assets ........... 70 170
$29,805 $114,495
Cash portion of reorganization items .................... $14,244 $ 58,121
Non-cash portion of reorganization items ................ $15,561 $ 56,374

The Reorganization Plan was consummated on February 4, 2003. Pursuant to the Reorganization
Plan, unsecured pre-petition claimants received their pro rata share of 1,147,050 shares of New
Common Stock. The shares were distributed to each individual claimant in 2003.

Note 6—Restructuring Items

During Fiscal 2004 and the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, the Company incurred
restructuring charges of $5,130 and $19,101, respectively, primarily related to the continuation of
activities commenced in prior periods associated with the closure and consolidation of certain
facilities, the January 2004 sale of the Company’s manufacturing facility in Honduras and the February
2004 sale of the Company’s San Luis, Mexico manufacturing facility.

Closure and/or Consolidation of Facilities: The Company closed two sewing plants (one located
in each of Puerto Cortes, Honduras and Los Angeles, California), one cutting and warehousing facility
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in Thomasville, Georgia, distribution facilities in Secaucus, New Jersey, distribution facilities in
Canada, a technical production support center in Van Nuys, California and certain manufacturing and
sales offices in Europe. The Company also completed the consolidation of its executive offices in New
York City. In addition, the Company incurred severance and contract termination costs related to the
shutdown, in January 2005, of two retail outlet stores in the United Kingdom.

Sale of Manufacturing Facility in Villanueva, Honduras: During the fourth quarter of 2003, the
Company entered into an agreement to sell its manufacturing operations located in Villanueva,
Honduras. The manufacturing operations sold consisted of one cutting center and four sewing
facilities. The sale was finalized in January 2004 and in connection with the sale the Company entered
into a one-year production agreement with the buyer, pursuant to which the Company guaranteed
open purchase order obligations to certain suppliers of the buyer. The Company’s obligation to enter
into such guarantees expired on July 1, 2004. The production agreement with the buyer allows the
Company to set off its payment obligations to the buyer against any payments the Company has made
to a supplier pursuant to the related guarantee in the event the buyer defaults on its payment
obligations to the supplier. At January 1, 2005, the amount of future payments that the Company
could be obligated to make related to guarantees of open purchase orders existing prior to July 1,
2004 was approximately $828. The Company’s payment obligation to the buyer was $153 at January 1,
2005. The estimated fair value of the guarantees was not material to the Company’s consolidated
financial statements at January 1, 2005.

Sale of Manufacturing Facility in San Luis, Mexico: During the first quarter of Fiscal 2004, the
Company entered into an agreement to sell its manufacturing operation located in San Luis, Mexico.
The manufacturing operation sold consisted of a combined cutting and sewing facility. The sale was
finalized in March 2004. In connection with the sale, the Company entered into an 18-month
production agreement with the buyer. The Company has no obligation to guarantee open purchase
arders for the buyer.

A summary of restructuring charges is as follows:
For the Period
February 5§, 2003

to January 3,
. Fiscal 2004 2004

Employee termination costs and related items (a)......... $3,315 $ 7,957
Facility shutdown costs, loss (gain) on disposal/write-down

of property, plant and equipment (b) .................. 857 8,517

Inventory write-down (€).......... ..o i — 2,120

Lease and contract termination costs (d)................. 750 2,500

Legal and professional fees........... ... ..o ool 208 127

$5,130 $21,221

Cash portion of restructuring items................... ... $4.453 $12,865

Non-cash portion of restructuring items.................. $ 677 § 8356

(a) For Fiscal 2004, includes severance and other benefits payable to approximately 672 employees.
Severance related costs were paid to employees whose jobs were eliminated as part of
restructuring initiatives initiated in Fiscal 2003 ($2,263), the sale, in the first quarter of Fiscal
2004, of the Company’s San Luis, Mexico manufacturing facility (§992) and the January 2005
shutdown of two retail outlet stores in the United Kingdom ($60). During Fiscal 2004, the
Company reduced its accrual for employee termination costs by $660, which had been previously
accrued.
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For the period February S, 2003 to January 3, 2004 relates to severance and other benefits
payable to approximately 1,656 terminated employees. Substantially all payments to such
employees were complete by the end of Fiscal 2004.

(b) For Fiscal 2004, as relates to closed facilities, includes a net gain of $742 on the sale of property,
plant and equipment and write downs of certain items of property, plant and equipment totalling
$667.

For the period February 4, 2003 to January 3, 2004 relates to the write-down or abandonment of
certain property plant and equipment to net realizable value.

(c) For the period February 5, 2003 to January 4, 2003, the Intimate Apparel group recorded an
inventory write-down primarily related to its former manufacturing facility in Honduras which it
sold in January, 2004. Inventory markdowns are included in cost of goods sold as period costs.
See Note 1.

(d) For the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, relates to an amount paid to terminate the
Company’s third-party distribution agreement for Calvin Klein jeans.

Restructuring charges have been recorded in the consolidated statement of operations for Fiscal

2004 and for the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 as follows:

For the Period
February 5, 2003

Fiscal 2004 to January 3, 2004
Costof goodssold ... vniiiii i $§ — $ 2,120
Restructuring ems ... ...oovt it 5,130 19,101
$5,130 $21,221

Changes in liabilities related to restructuring and reorganization items are summarized below:

Lease and
Employee  Facility Legal and Contract
Termination Shutdown Professional Termination

Costs Costs Fees Costs Total

Balance at February 4,2003 .................. $ 14220 $2842  $1,206 $§ — $18268
Charges for the period February 5, 2003 to

January 3,2004 ... ... 7,957 8,517 127 2,500 19,101
Cash reductions for the period February 5, 2003

to January 3,2004 ........ ... L (11,571)  (5,122) (897) (2,500)  (20,090)
Non-cash reductions and currency effects for the

period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 . .. (56) (5,628) — — (5,684)
Reclassified to discontinued operations. ... ..... — (373) (16) — (389)
Balance at January 3,2004 ................... 10,550 236 420 —_ 11,206
Charges for Fiscal 2004. ...................... 3,315 932 208 750 5,205
Cash reductions for Fiscal 2004................ (11,091) (1,162) (603) (175)  (13,031)
Effect of foreign currencies................... (155) (2) — (2) (159)
Balance at January 1,2005 (a) ................ $ 2619 % 4 $ 25 $ 573 % 3221

(a) The Company expects that substantially all of the liabilities related to restructuring items will be
paid by the second quarter of Fiscal 2005.
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Note 7—Related Party Transactions

The Company leased certain real property from an entity controlled by a former employee. All
rights and obligations related to this lease were transferred to the new owners of the ABS business
unit in the first quarter of Fiscal 2004. See Note 4. Rent expense related to this lease for Fiscal 2004,
the period February S, 2003 to January 3, 2004, the period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and
Fiscal 2002 was $40, $496, $45 and $470, respectively, and is included in income (loss) from
discontinued operations.

In 2001, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with Alvarez & Marsal, Inc.
(“A&M”). Under this agreement, several individuals who held executive positions with the Company
(including Antonio C. Alvarez II, former President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and
James P. Fogarty, former Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company) provided
services as advisors to the Company. The A&M consulting agreement was terminated on June 11,
2001 and certain A&M employees became employees of the Company.

In connection with the Company’s emergence from Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection, it entered
into a second consulting agreement with A&M on January 29, 2003, which was supplemented by a
March 18, 2003 letter agreement (collectively, the “A&M Agreement”), pursuant to which Mr.
Alvarez and Mr. Fogarty continued serving the Company as Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, respectively, and certain other A&M affiliated persons continued serving the
Company in a consulting capacity. The A&M Agreement was effective as of February 4, 2003. Mr.
Alvarez and Mr. Fogarty provided transitional assistance to the Company during 2003. The A&M
Agreement provided that the Company would pay A&M on account of Mr. Alvarez’s service as
follows: (i} $125 per month until commencement of employment of a permanent Chief Executive
Officer (the “New CEO™); (ii) $125 per month for 15 days after the commencement of employment of
the New CEO; and (iii) after the period described in (ii) above, $.750 per hour of transition services
provided by Mr. Alvarez. The A&M Agreement further provides that the Company would pay A&M
on account of Mr. Fogarty’s service at a rate of $.475 per hour. Moreover, A&M was eligible to
receive the following incentive compensation under the terms of the agreement: (i) additional
payments upeon the consummation of certain transactions (including $210 which was paid to A&M
following the consummation of the offering of the Senior Notes and an aggregate of $1,218 which was
paid in connection with the consummation of certain other transactions), and (ii) participation in the
Company’s incentive compensation program for the periods Mr. Alvarez and Mr. Fogarty served as
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, respectively. Mr. Alvarez, Mr. Fogarty and A&M
are bound by certain confidentiality, indemnification and non-solicitation obligations under the terms
of the A&M Agreement. Prior to entering into these transactions, the Company determined that the
terms of these transactions were as favorable to it as could be obtained with unrelated third parties.
During the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, the Company incurred expenses totaling
$3,524 in connection with services performed by A&M. All amounts had been paid as of January 1,
2005.

In connection with the repayment of the Second Lien Notes with the proceeds of the offering of
the Senior Notes, Mr. Alvarez received accrued interest and outstanding principal in the amount of
$951 related to the Second Lien Notes. In addition, amounts, including accrued interest, were paid to
affiliates of some of the initial purchasers of the Senior Notes on account of Second Lien Notes then
owned by such affiliates.

Mr. Alvarez is a co-founding Managing Director and Mr. Fogarty is a Managing Director of
A&M.

In April 2003, the Company recruited Joseph R. Gromek to be its President and Chief Executive
Officer. Following an orderly transition, Mr. Alvarez returned to A&M. In September 2003, the
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Company hired Lawrence R. Rutkowski to be its Senior Vice President—Finance and Chief Financial
Officer. Following an orderly transition, Mr. Fogarty returned to A&M.

The Company believes that the terms of the relationships and transactions described above are at
least as favorable to the Company as could have been obtained from an unrelated third party.

Note 8—Business Segments and Geographic Information

Business Segments: The Company operates in three business segments: (i) Intimate Apparel
Group; (ii) Sportswear Group; and (iii) Swimwear Group.

The Intimate Apparel Group designs, manufactures, sources and markets moderate to premium
priced intimate apparel and other products for women and better to premium priced men’s underwear
and loungewear under the Warner’s, Olga, Body Nancy Ganz/Bodyslimmers, J.Lo by Jennifer Lopez®,
Axcelerate engineered by Speedo, Calvin Klein, Lejaby and Rasurel® brand names. The Intimate
Apparel Group also currently operates over 75 Calvin Klein underwear retail stores worldwide
(consisting of approximately 45 stores directly operated by the Company, including one on-line store,
and approximately 30 stores operated under retail licenses or distributorship agreements).

The Sportswear Group designs, sources and markets moderate to premium priced men’s and
women’s sportswear under the Calvin Klein and Chaps brands.

The Swimwear Group designs, licenses, sources, manufactures and markets mass market to
premium priced swimwear, fitness apparel, swim accessories and related products under the Speedo®,
Anne Cole®, Cole of California®, Catalina®, Lifeguard®, Nautica®, Michael Kors®, Ocean Pacific and
Calvin Klein brand names. The Swimwear Group also operates one online store.

Certain prior period items have been reclassified between the business groups and unallocated
corporate expenses to conform to the current period presentation, including certain information
technology related expenses, certain performance and stock based compensation expenses and
amortization of certain intangible assets.
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Information by business group, excluding discontinued operations, is set forth below:

Successor
Fiscal 2004
Net revenues
Operating income (1oss)
Depreciation and amortization . ...
Restructuring items
Capital expenditures

For the Period February 5, 2003 to

January 3, 2004
Net revenues
Operating income (loss)
Depreciation and amortization . ...
Restructuring items
Capital expenditures

Predecessor
For the Period January 5, 2003 to
February 4, 2003
Net revenues
QOperating income (Joss)
Depreciation and amortization . . . .
Reorganization items
Capital expenditures

Fiscal 2002
Net revenues
Operating income (loss)
Depreciation and amortization . ...
Reorganization items
Capital expenditures

Successor Balance Sheet

Total Assets:
January 1, 2005
January 3, 2004

..................

..................

Property, Plant and Equipment:
January 1, 2005
January 3, 2004

The Company does not include corporate departmental expenses, reorganization items,

Intimate

Apparel Sportswear Swimwear

Corporate /

Group Group Group  Group Total Other Items Total
$588,256 $455,601 $380,324 $1,424,181 § — $1,424,181
55,361 53,757 58,147 167,265  (71,130) 96,135
7,454 5,884 4,168 17,506 14,950 32,456
—_ — — — 5,130 5,130
9,853 5,587 2,320 17,760 14,100 31,860
$537,507 $402,682 $324,112 $1,264,301 $ — §$1,264,301
53,554 26,222 43,926 123,702 (75,564) 48,138
8,988 2,495 4,359 15,842 27,632 43,474
— — — — 19,101 19,101
6,921 3,386 2,760 13,067 17,025 30,092
$ 35306 $ 37,834 § 36,980 § 110,120 $ — $ 110,120
2304 5542 8975 16821  (35945) (19,124)
1,102 939 495 2,536 1,785 4,321
— — — — 29,805 29,805
149 202 10 361 282 643
$614,155 3483461 $310,626 $1,408242 § — $1,408,242
47,078 20,185 30,036 97,299 (181,725)  (84,426)
15,874 9,188 6,156 31,218 22,022 53,240
— — — — 114,495 114,495
6,341 2,292 1,246 9,879 10,164 20,043
$303,484 $254,728 $356,288 § 914,500 $ 239,404 $1,153,904
300,634 244,676 292,184 837,494 253,516 1,091,010

$ 17,545 § 8875 § 15917

16,993 14,166 20,942 52,101

54,432

$§ 42337 § 64,600 § 106,937

106,533

restructuring items and depreciation and amortization of corporate assets in its determination of
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segment operating income (loss). Corporate departmental expenses include general corporate
overhead and certain shared corporate services. The Company evaluates the business groups’ results
without allocating these corporate/other items. Other companies may allocate these costs to their
operating divisions and, as a result, the operating results of the Company’s operating groups may not
be directly comparable to the results of other companies. The table below summarizes corporate/other
expenses for each period presented:

Successor Predecessor

For the Period For the Period

February 5, 2003 January 5, 2003

to January 3, to February 4,
Fiscal 2004 2004 2003 Fiscal 2002
Unallocated corporate expenses .......... $51,050 $28,831 $ 4,355 $ 45,208
Reorganization items. . .................. — — 29,805 114,495
Restructuring items .. ......coveviunnnnnn 5,130 19,101 —_ —_

Depreciation and amortization of

COTpOTate assets .......ovvviiiununan, 14,950 27,632 1,785 22,022
Corporate/other expenses. ............... $71,130 $75,564 $35,945 $181,725

A reconciliation of Group operating income (loss) to income (loss) from continuing operations
before provision (benefit) for income taxes for Fiscal 2004, the period February 5, 2003 to January 3,
2004, the period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002 is as follows:

Successor Predecessor
For the Period For the Period
February 5, 2003 January 5, 2003
to January 3, to February 4,
Fiscal 2004 2004 2003 Fiscal 2002
Group operating income. ................ $167,265 $123,702 $ 16,821 $ 97,299
Corporate/other items. .................. (71,130) (75,564) (35,945) (181,725)
Operating income (Joss) ................. 96,135 48,138 (19,124) (84,426)
Gain on cancellation of pre-petition
indebtedness . .............. ..o L — — (1,692,696) —
Fresh start adjustments.................. — — (765,726) —
Other (income) loss..................... (2,197) (2,817) 359 (62)
Interest expense, net.................... 19,821 20,641 1,751 19,972
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before provision for income taxes....... $ 78,511 $ 30,314 $ 2,437,188 $(104,336)
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Geographic Information: Included in the consolidated financial statements are the following
amounts relating to geographic locations:

Successor Predecessor

For the Period For the Period

February 5, 2003 January 5, 2003

to January 3, to February 4,

Fiscal 2004 % 2004 % 2003 % Fiscal 2002 %o
Net revenues:

United States ..... $1,033,543 72.6% $ 946,341 749% $ 82,824 75.2% $1,097,633 78.0%
Canada .......... 91,655 6.4% 79,463 6.3% 5,813 5.3% 82,196 5.8%
Europe .......... 236,320 16.6% 197,857 15.6% 17,847 16.2% 181,877 12.9%
Mexico .......... 33,595 2.4% 17,709 1.4% 1,849 1.7% 25,971 1.8%
Asia. . ..., 29,068 2.0% 22,931 1.8% 1,787 1.6% 20,565 1.5%

$1,424,181  100.0% $1,264,301 100.0% $110,120 100.0% $1,408,242 100.0%

January 1, 2005 January 3, 2004
Property, plant and equipment, net:
United States . ..., $ 74,318 69.5% $ 98,125 92.1%
Allother..... ..., 32,619 30.5% 8,408 7.9%
$106,937 100.0% $106,533 100.0%

Information about Major Customers: No single customer accounted for 10% or more of the
Company’s net revenues for Fiscal 2004 or for the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004. One
customer, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., accounted for approximately 16.1% of the Company’s net revenues
for the period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003. One customer, Federated Department Stores,
accounted for approximately 10.5% of the Company’s net revenues in Fiscal 2002.

v

Note 9—Income Taxes

The following presents the United States and foreign components of income from continuing
operations before income taxes, discontinued operations and cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle:
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Successor Predecessor
For the For the
Period Period
February 5, January 5,
2003 to 2603 to
‘ January 3, February 4,
Fiscal 2004 2004 2003 Fiscal 2002
Income (loss) from continuing operations:
DOMESHC © e eeeeeeeeee e, $28,858  $(13351) $2,440,938  $(104,644)
FOTEIEN .+« e e e e oo 49,653 43,665 (3,750) 308
Total .. ..o $78,511 $ 30,314 $2,437,188  $(104,336)

The following presents the components of the Company’s total income tax provision from
continuing operations:

Successor Predecessor

For the For the
Period Period

February 5, January 3,
2003 to 2003 to

January 3, February 4,

Fiscal 2004 2004 2003 Fiscal 2002
Current:

Federal. .. ..o $  — 5§ - $ — $§ —

Stateandlocal ................ ... ... ....... 910 1,000 — 600

Foreign............ ..o 10,206 13,275 566 9,483

Total current tax provision.................. $11,116 $14,275 $ 66  $10,083
Deferred: ‘

Federal........ .. ... . i i $10,254 $ 1,751 $ 521,421 $ 530

State and local ...... ... ... ...t 2,106 452 112,133 230

Foreign............... e 6,575 (4,290; (9,186; (5,784)

Valuation allowance increase {decrease) ........ 1,585 (104 (546,784 44,589
Total deferred tax provision..................... 20,520 (2,191) 77,584 39,565
Provision for income taxes . ......voienranrnn.n $31,636 $12,084 $ 78,150 $49,648

The following presents the reconciliation of the provision for income taxes to United States
federal income taxes computed at the statutory rate:
Successor Predecessor
For the For the
Period Period
February 5, January 5,
2003 to 2003 to
January 3, February 4,
Fiscal 2004 2004 2003 Fiscal 2002
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes

and cumulative effect of change in accounting /

principle. .. ... $78,511 $30,314 $2,437,188  $(104,336)
Income tax expense (benefit) computed at U.S.

SLAtutOTy Tate ...ttt $27.479 $10,610 $ 853,016 $ (36,518)
State income taxes, net of federal benefit....... 1,960 944 72,887 713
Foreign taxes in excess of (less than) the U.S.

StAtutory rate . ...t (598) (6,312) 1,879 3,590
Net U.S. tax on distribution of foreign earnings . — 7,106 —_— 32,846
Fresh start adjustments. ...................... — — (303,251) —
Other,net ... it 1,210 (160) 403 4,428
Increase (decrease) in vatuation allowance and

losses not benefited........................ 1,585 {104) (546,784) 44,589
Provision for income taxes.................... $31,636 $12,084 $ 78,150 $ 49,648
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The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004
were as follows:

January 1, 2008 January 3, 2004
Deferred tax assets: v
TOVENTOTY & vttt ettt et et $ 12,086 $ 19,673
Pension and post-retirement benefits .. ............... .. ... 17,847 29,944
Advertising credits . ... ... i e 13,558 13,558
Reservesand accruals .. ..o i e 29,312 43,575
Net operating loSSes. . .ot 142,596 34,054
Other oo e 2,161 1,416
217,560 142,220
Valuation allowance. ............cooeeiiiiininniiineaan. (165,835) (131,109)
Subtotal ... e 51,725 11,111
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization .............covviiineen.... 106,270 55,303
O her L e 8,650 3,568
SUBLOLAL L vt e e e 114,920 58,871
Deferred tax liability -net ......... ... oo $ (63,195) $ (47,760)

Successor Company: The Company recorded a valuation allowance to reflect the estimated
amount of deferred tax assets that may not be realized. The valuation allowance increased to $165,835
(of which $30,552 relates to foreign entities) at January 1, 2005 from $131,109 (of which $39,099
relates to foreign entities) as recorded on January 3, 2004. A portion of the valuation allowance in the
amount of approximately $157,932 (of which $23,936 relates to foreign entities) and approximately
$124,950 (of which $34,227 relates to foreign entities) at January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004,
respectively, relates to deferred tax assets which were recorded in fresh start accounting. The
realization of such amount in future years will be allocated to reduce goodwill and other non current
intangible assets.

Under U.S. tax law, a company that realized cancellation of debt income (“COD”) while in
bankruptcy is entitled to exclude such income from taxable income for U.S. tax reporting purposes. A
company that excludes COD will be required to reduce certain tax attributes in an amount equal to
the COD excluded from taxable income. If the attribute reduction is applied on a consolidated basis,
all of the Company’s U.S. consolidated net operating loss carryovers generated prior to Fiscal 2004
would be eliminated and certain of its other U.S. tax attributes will be substantially reduced or
eliminated. However, by applying the attribute reduction rules on a separate company basis, the
Company was able to retain U.S. net operating loss carryforwards generated prior to Fiscal 2004. As a
result of completing its Fiscal 2003 U.S. income tax return, the Company was able to quantify its NOL
carryforward as $246,235, which can be used to reduce U.S. taxable income, if any, by approximately
$23,415 per year. There can be no assurance that the Company’s position with respect to separate
company attribute reduction will be sustained upon review by the Internal Revenue Service. Any tax
benefit from the utilization of consolidated U.S. net operating losses that existed as of February 4,
2003 will reduce goodwill when realized and will not affect the Company’s future results of operations.

On the Effective Date of the Plan, an “ownership change” (as defined in Internal Revenue Code
Section 382 (“Section 382”)) occurred with respect to the Company’s stock. Section 382 would limit
the Company’s future ability to utilize any tax attributes that remain after the tax attribute reduction
described above, which may include subsequently recognized “built-in” losses and deductions, if any,
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existing as of the date of the ownership change. The Company’s ability and the ability of its
subsidiaries to utilize remaining net operating losses generated after the ownership change will not be
affected by the ownership change.

Through the Company’s acquisition of Ocean Pacific, it acquired an additional net operating loss
carryforward of $2,637. The majority of the Ocean Pacific U.S. net operating loss carryforward is
subject to an annual limitation of $435 as a result of a previous ownership change.

At January 1, 2005, the Company had U.S. net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$307,228. If the U.S. net operating losses remain unused, they shall expire as follows:

Fiscal Year Amount
2009, ... $ 967
2012 - 2017, ..o 2,050
2018-2024. ... .. L 304,211

$307,228

At January 1, 2005, the Company had foreign net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$98,466. If the foreign net operating losses remain unused, they shall expire as follows:

Fiscal Year Amount
2005 -2014. .. .o 11,750
Indefinite .................... 86,716

98.466

Through the Company’s acquisition of Ocean Pacific, it acquired foreign tax credit carryforwards
of $5 and $205, which expire in 2012 and 2013, respectively. A full valuation was established for the
foreign tax credit carryforwards. The Company also has state tax credit carryforwards of $711 which
will expire in years 2005 through 2009. Since the Company believes that it is more likely than not that
it will be able to utilize these state tax credits, it has not recorded a valuation allowance against them.

Tax benefits associated with the exercise of employee stock options and other employee stock
programs of $768 in Fiscal 2004 and $249 for the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, were
allocated to shareholders’ equity. A corresponding valuation allowance for deferred taxes has been
recorded for Fiscal 2004 and for the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004. The associated
benefit will be credited to equity when realized.

As of January 1, 2005, the total amount of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries was
approximately $80,278. The Company’s intention is to permanently reinvest these earnings and
thereby indefinitely postpone their remittance. Accordingly, no provision has been made for foreign
withholding taxes or U.S. income taxes which may become payable if undistributed earnings were paid
as dividends to the Company.

On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “AJC Act”) was signed into
law. The AJC Act provides for a special one-time dividends received tax deduction of 85 percent of
certain foreign earnings that are repatriated in either a company’s last tax year that began before the
enactment date, or the first tax year that begins during the one-year period beginning on the date of
enactment. The AJC Act would require the payment of U.S. tax on the portion of the dividend not
subject to the dividends received deduction, even though the Company has U.S. net operating loss
carryforwards. All of the Company’s foreign earnings are permanently reinvested for Fiscal 2004,
However, the Company will re-evaluate the opportunity to utilize the 85 percent dividends received
deduction in Fiscal 2005. The Company is awaiting further clarifying guidance from the U.S. Treasury
Department on certain provisions of the AJC Act. As a result, the Company has not yet evaluated
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how the AJC Act’s one-time repatriation provisions will affect its overseas earnings currently
considered permanently reinvested as defined under APB Opinion No. 23, Accounting for Income
Taxes — Special Areas for 2005. The income tax effects of any potential repatriation in Fiscal 2005
cannot currently be estimated.

The Company and its subsidiaries’ income tax returns are routinely examined by U.S,, state, and
foreign tax authorities. The tax years under examination vary by jurisdiction. The Company regularly
assesses the potential outcomes of both ongoing and future examinations for the current or prior years
to insure the Company’s provision for income taxes is sufficient. The Company recognizes liabilities
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due and believes its reserves are adequate in
relation to the potential assessments.

Predecessor Company: The provision for income taxes of $78,150 for the period January 5, 2003
to February 4, 2003 consists of a deferred income tax provision of $77,584 related to the increase in
the carrying value of certain assets to fair value recorded in connection with the Company’s adoption
of fresh start reporting and accrued income taxes on foreign earnings of $566.

Upon the adoption of fresh start accounting at February 4, 2003, the Company recorded a
valuation allowance of 389,319 to reduce deferred tax assets to an amount that the Company believes,
based upon objectively verifiable evidence, is realizable. The future recognition of such amount will
first reduce goodwill. Should the recognition of net deferred tax assets result in the elimination of
goodwill, any additional deferred tax asset recognition will reduce other noncurrent intangible assets.
Deferred tax assets recognized in excess of the carrying value of intangible assets will be treated as an
increase to additional paid-in capital.

The Company has also established a valuation allowance against certain foreign net operating loss
carry forwards to reduce them to the amount that will, more likely than not, be realized.

Note 10—Employee Retirement Plans

The Company has a defined benefit Pension Plan, which covers substantially all fuli-time domestic
employees. The Pension Plan is noncontributory and benefits are based upon years of service. The
Company also has defined benefit health care and life insurance plans that provide post-retirement
benefits to retired employees (“Other Benefit Plans”). The Other Benefit Plans are, in most cases,
contributory with retiree contributions adjusted annually.

On October 5, 2003 (the beginning of the fourth quarter of 2003), the Company changed its
method of accounting for the Pension Plan to a method that accelerates the recognition of gains or
losses which are changes in the amount of either the projected benefit obligations or plan assets
resulting from experience different than assumed and from changes in assumptions (“Accelerated
Method”). The Company previously deferred gains and losses and amortized the deferred amount into
operations over the remaining estimated service life to the extent such gains and losses exceeded 10%
of the Pension Plan’s projected benefit obligations (“Deferred Method”). The Company believes that
the Accelerated Method is preferable because the recorded pension liability, using the Accelerated
Method, will approximate fair value. Pursuant to SFAS 87, each quarter the Company recognizes
interest cost offset by the expected return on Pension Plan assets. In addition, the Company obtains a
report from the Pension Plan trustee and Pension Plan actuary to measure Pension Plan assets and
liabilities at year-end. The Company records the impact of actual gains and losses that differ from the
expected return on Pension Plan assets and any other changes determined by the actuary in the fourth
quarter of each year based upon the year-end measurement. This change results in additional volatility
in pension expense or income. Therefore, the Company reports pension expense or income on a
separate line of its statement of operations.

Pension expense under the Company’s prior method of accounting would have been $1,320 and
$2,447 for Fiscal 2004 and for the period February S, 2003 to January 3, 2004, respectively. A summary
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of the as reported and pro forma results assuming the Company had not changed the method of
accounting is as follows:

Successor
For the period February 5,
Fiscal 2004 2003 to January 3, 2004
As Reported Pro Forma As Reported Pro Forma
Pension (income) expense .................... $(6,150) $ 1,320 $(6,488) $ 2,447
Net income (1088). .. ..oveviiiiii i, 42,517 35,047 (163) (9,098)
Net income (loss) per diluted share............ $§ 093 $ 076 $ — $ (0.20)

Effective January 1, 2003 the Pension Plan was amended such that participants in the Pension
Plan will not earn any additional pension benefits after December 31, 2002. The amendment to the
Pension Plan resulted in a curtailment gain of $8,897 in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2002. As a result
of the curtailment, the Company’s pension liability was reduced by $8,897. The curtailment gain
reduced the unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss component of the Company’s accrued pension
liability, which was recorded in other comprehensive loss in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2002. The
accumulated benefit obligation for the Pension Plan was equal to the projected benefit obligation at
January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004 due to the curtailment of plan benefits at December 31, 2002.

A reconciliation of the balance of plan benefit obligations follows:

Pension Benefit Plan Other Benefit Plans
January 1, January 3, January 1, January 3,
2005 2004 2005 2004
Change in projected benefit obligations:
Benefit obligation at beginning of period . . ... $161,677 $156,870 $5,868 $4.521
Adjustment to beginning of period
projected benefit obligation (a)............ — 5,132 — —
SEIVICE COSL. .ttt it —_ — 229 228
INterest COSt . v v it et it e s 8,338 9,269 270 269
Change in actuarial (gain) loss (b)........... (3,192) — (498) 1,002
Benefitspaid................. ..ol (10,387) (9,594) (636) (152)
Benefit obligation at end of period .......... $156,436 $161,677 $5,233 $5,868

(a) The Company recorded additional projected benefit obligation based upon the receipt of the final
actuarial valuation report. A corresponding adjustment was recorded to increase goodwill. See
Note 13.

(b) The Pension Benefit Plan’s actuarial gain in Fiscal 2004 is primarily related to the change in the
discount rate.

F-43



THE WARNACO GROUP, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

A reconciliation of the change in the fair value of plan assets is as follows:

Pension Benefit Plan QOther Benefit Plans
January 1, January 3, January 1, January 3,
2005 2004 2005 200
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period . $ 97,245 $ 81,762 $ — $ —
Actual return (loss) on plan assets............. 11,296 15,757 — —
Employer’s contributions ............ ..ol 12,286 9,320 636 152
Benefitspaid. ... (10,387) (9,594) (636) (152)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period....... $110,440 $ 97,245 $ — 3} —
Funded status..........covvireennninennnnn. $(45996)  $(64.432) $(5,233) $(5.868)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss ............... — — 503 1,002
Net amount recognized/Retirement obligations. . $(45,996)  $(64,432) $(4,730) $(4,866)

The components of net periodic benefit (income) cost is as follows:

Pension Benefit Plan Other Benefit Plans
Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor
For the Period{For the Period For the Period | For the Period
February 5, January 5, February 5, January 5,
2003 to 2003 to 2003 to 2003 to

Fiscal  January 3, February 4, Fiscal Fiscal January 3, February 4, Fiscal

2004 2004 2003 2002 2004 2004 2003 2002
Service €ost. . .. .a .. § — 3 — $— $ 2,845 $229 $228 $ 9 $ 223
Interestcost . .......,...... 8,338 9,269 — 9,155 270 269 24 259
Expected return on plan assets . . (6,934) (5,154) — 8,797) — — — —
Gain on plan assets in excess . . .
of expected return . . ... ... ... (4,362) (10,603) — —_ - — — —
Amortization of prior service

COSt. v et e — — — 49) — — (34) (33)

Net actuarial (gain) loss (a). . ... (3,192) — = 2245 — — i (107)
Net benefit (income) cost . . . . .. $(6,150) $ (6,488) $— $ 5,399 $499 $497 $ (1) $ 342

(a) The net actuarial gain in Fiscal 2004 is primarily related to the change in the discount rate.

The Pension Plan’s weighted average asset allocations are as follows:

Targeted January 1, January 3,
Asset Allocation 2005 2004

Asset Category:
Equity securities . ... i 40% 42% 43%
Debt securities. . ... ... i e 20% 16% 18%
Real estate. .. ... e 5% 7% 6%
(0 5 =7 O _35% _35% _33%
Total ..o e 100% 100% 100%
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The Company’s investment strategy for the Pension Plan’s assets is to invest in a diversified
portfolio of assets managed by various fund and money managers. No individual manager accounts for
more than 15% of overall Pension Plan assets at January 1, 2005. The Company’s goal is to provide
for steady growth in the Pension Plan’s assets, exceeding the Company’s expected return on plan
assets of 7%. Individual fund managers are evaluated against a relevant market index and against
other managers with similar investment goals. Underperforming investments are reallocated to other
investments and fund managers. The portfolio is balanced annually to maintain the Company’s
targeted allocation percentages by type of investment. The targeted allocation percentages are
guidelines; actual investments may differ from the targeted allocations.

The Company expects to contribute approximately $5,400 to the Pension Plan in Fiscal 2005 and
approximately $20,000 from 2006 through 2009. The amount of cash contributions the Company is
required to make to the Pension Plan could increase or decrease depending on the performance of the
Pension Plan’s assets and other factors which are not in the control of the Company.

Future benefit payments are expected to be:

Pension Post
Benefit Retirement
__Plan _Benefits
2005, $ 9,700 $ 520
2006, . .. 9,600 490
2007, . 9,600 480
2008, .. 9,700 470
2009, ... 9,900 480
2010-2014 . ... 52,700 2,440

The weighted-average assumptions used in the actuarial calculations for the Pension Plan and
Other Benefit Plans were as follows:

Successor Predecessor

February 5, 2003 to { January 5, 2003 to
Fiscal 2004  January 3, 2004 February 4, 2003  Fiscal 2002

DiscountRate .............. ... o iiia.. 5.50% 5.30% 5.30% 5.30%
Expected return on plan assets. . .............. 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 9.50%
Average rate of compensation increase......... N/A N/A N/A 5.00%

The Company’s discount rate assumption for both the Pension Plan and Other Benefit Plans was
5.5% for Fiscal 2004 and 5.3% for the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, the period January
5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002. The Company considers changes in the interest rate for
ten-year United States Treasury Bonds and other long-term low risk bond rates as indicative of its
discount rate. The Company’s expected rate of return in the table above only applies to Pension Plan
assets and reflects the Company’s expectation of the long-term rate of return on the Pension Plan’s
assets. The Company evaluates its discount rate and long-term rate of return assumptions annually.

The Company evaluates its assumptions related to the expected return on plan assets in the
fourth quarter of each fiscal year and revises the expected return on plan assets for future valuations
as required. In the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2002, the Company revised the expected return on plan
assets for future valuations to 7% effective with the Pension Plan’s 2003 year. The Company’s review
in the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2004 did not result in a change in the estimated return assumption for
future periods. The rate of compensation increase is not applicable because Pension Plan participants’
benefits have been frozen. The Company’s Pension Plan and Other Benefit Plans measurement date is
December 31°.
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For measurement purposes, the weighted average annual assumed rate of increase in the per
capita cost of covered benefits (health care trend rate) related to Other Benefit Plans is as follows:

Successor
January 1, 2005 January 3, 2004
Health care cost trend rate assumed next year ....... 10.5% 11.0%
Rate at which the trend rate is assumed to decline
(the ultimate trend rate) ........................ 5.0% 5.0%
Year trend rate reaches the ultimate rate............ 2015 2015

A one-percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following

effects:
One Percentage One Percentage
Point Increase Point Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost components ......... $ 54 $ (46)
Effect on health care component of the accumulated
post-retirement benefit obligation.......................... $438 $(379)

In December 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003
was passed into law. The Act provides for a subsidy for certain costs related to prescription drug
benefits to sponsors of post retirement healthcare plans that provide prescription drug benefits to
retirees. FSP No.106-2 defines the accounting treatment for changes in post retirement benefit
liabilities and post retirement benefits expense that are necessitated by the provisions of the Act. FSP
No0.106-2 was effective for the three months ended October 2, 2004. Based upon the provisions of the
Company’s post retirement benefit plans, the retirees eligible to participate in such plans, the
participation rate of such retirees and the contribution rates attributable to the participants in the
plans, the Company does not believe that the enactment of the Act was a “Significant Event” to its
post retirement benefit plans as defined in paragraph 73 of SFAS No. 106, Employers Accounting for-
Post Retirement Benefits Other Than Pensions, and as a result, the Act did not have a material effect
on the Company’s post retirement benefit obligation or expense. The Company may amend its existing
post retirement plans so that benefits payable under the plans will qualify for reimbursement under
the Act in the future. Such amendments, if any, will be reflected in future valuations of the Company’s
post retirement benefit obligation and determination of the related post retirement benefits expense.

The Company also sponsors a defined contribution plan for substantially all of its domestic
employees. Employees can contribute to the plan, on a pre-tax basis, a percentage of their qualifying
compensation up to the legal limits allowed. The Company makes matching contributions to the
defined contribution plan. The maximum Company contribution on behalf of any employee was
$4.200, $4.200 and $1.800 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Employees vest in the Company
contribution over four years. Company contributions to the defined contribution plan were $1,458,
$918, $83 and $552 for Fiscal 2004, the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, the period January
3, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002, respectively.

The Company has statutorily defined retirement obligations in certain foreign countries. The
following table summarizes the liability for these statutory obligations as of January 1, 2005 and
January 3, 2004.
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January 1, January 3,
2005 2004
Accrued liabilities ............ e $ 351 $ 332
Other long-term liabilities . ................... 3,697 3,963
$4,048 $4,295

The Company contributed to multi-employer defined benefit pension plans on behalf of union
employees of two manufacturing facilities and contributes to a multi-employer defined benefit pension
plan on behalf of union employees of a warehouse and distribution facility, which amounts are not
significant for the periods presented. The Company closed the two manufacturing facilities in Fiscal
2002 and recorded a termination liability of $2,317 related to the multi-employer plans associated with
the closed plants during Fiscal 2002. The accrued liability of $2,317 was settled as part of the
Company’s emergence from bankruptcy on February 4, 2003.
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Note 11—Inventories

January 1, 2005 January 3, 2004
Finished goods. ... $259,451 $197,438
Work in process /intransit. ...t 45,384 45,043
Rawmaterials .. ... i 30,816 37,358

$335,651 $279,839

Note 12—Property, Plant and Equipment

January 1, 2005 January 3, 2004
Land and land improvements.................cooue.... $ 1,260 $ 1,538
Building, building improvements and leasehold

IMProvements ........c.ouuiniiniiiinennierennennns ’ 33,687 31,066
Furniture and fixtures ......... .. it 32,159 21,140
Machinery and equipment. . ... 20,114 22,266
Computer hardware and software . ...................... 64,549 58,752
Construction In Progress . ....ovvvrvve et oo, 8,053 2,171
‘ $159,822 $136,933

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization......... (52,885) (30,400)
Property, plant and equipment, net...................... $106,937 $106,533

Note 13—Intangible Assets and Goodwill

The following tables set forth intangible assets at January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004 and the
activity in the intangible asset accounts during Fiscal 2004 and the period February 5, 2003 to
January 3, 2004:

January 1, 2005 January 3, 2004
Gross Gross
Carrying  Accumulated Carrying  Accumulated
Amount  Amortization Net Amount  Amortization Net
Finite lived intangible assets:
Licenses for a term (Company as ‘ :
licensee) ..............o it $104,030 § 6,140 $ 97,890 $104,030 $ 3,334  $100,696
Licenses for a term (Company as
licensory (). .......cooovnnn. 5,861 425 5,436 — — —
Sales order backlog .............. 11,800 11,800 — 11,800 11,800 —
Other ... ... i it 662 662 — 662 662 —

122,353 19,027 103,326 116,492 15,796 100,696
Indefinite lived intangible assets:

Trademarks (a) .................. 156,679 — 156,679 125,327 — 125,327
Licenses in perpetuity ............ 45,500 — 45,500 _ 45,500 — 45,500
202,179 — 202,179 170,827 — 170,827

Intangible assets ................... $324,532  $19,027  $305,505 $287,319 $15,796  $271,523
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Licenses Finite lived

in Intangible Sales Order Favorable
Trademarks Perpetuity  Assets Backiog Lease Total
Balance at February 4,2003 ........... $199,307 $45500 $104,100 $ 12,600 $ — $361,507
Adjustments to preliminary fair
value (&) ...... ..o (31,307) — — — 662  (30,645)
Amortization eXpense. .............. — — (3,334) (11,800) (662) (15,796)
Translation adjustments............. 2,527 (70) — —_— 2,457
Sale of White Stag trademark (b)..... (32,000) — — — —  (32,000)
Reclassification of items to assets held
for sale of discontinued operations . _(13,200) — — {800) —  (14,000)
Balance at January 3,2004 ............ 125,327 45,500 100,696 — — 271,523
Acquisition of Ocean Pacific (c)...... 30,000 5,861 35,861
Amortization eXpense. .............. — — (3,231) — — (3,231)
Translation adjustments............. 1,352 — — — — 1,352
Balance at January 1,2005 ............ $156,679 $45,500 $103,326 $ — § — $§305,505

(a) During the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, adjustments to the preliminary fair value
of intangible assets resulted in a reduction in the carrying value of the Company’s trademarks.

(b) During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company sold its White Stag trademark to Wal-Mart
Stores, Inc. for $28,700. Pursuant to the sales agreement, the Company received $10,000 in cash in
December of 2003 and a note receivable for $18,700. The note, including interest, is payable on or
before March 2, 2007. The Company recorded a loss on the sale of the Whire Stag trademark of
$3,829 which has been included in other income (expense) in the consolidated statement of
operations for the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004. The current portion of the note
receivable of $6,300 is included in other current assets, and the long-term portion of $6,928 is
included in notes receivable.

(¢) Following the acquisition of Ocean Pacific on August 19, 2004 (See Note 2), the Company
recorded $30,000 related to the fair value of indefinite lived trademarks acquired. In addition, the
Company recorded $5,861, representing the fair value of finite lived intangible assets related to
license agreements which grant the Company the right to receive royalties for a fixed term. The
amortization periods related to these finite lived intangible assets are equal to the estimated
duration of each individual license and range from one to 21 years. The weighted average term of
these agreements is approximately five years.

The following table summarizes the Company’s weighted average amortization period related to
each class of finite lived intangible asset:

Weighted Average
Amortization Period

Finite lived intangible assets:

Licenses for a term (Company as licensee) ... 16 - 42 years
Licenses for a term (Company as licensor). . .. 64 months
Sales order backlog (fully amortized) ........ 6 months
Other (fully amortized) .................... 11 mounths
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The following table summarizes the Company’s estimated amortization expense for intangible
assets for the next five years:

2005 .. e $3,843
2006 .. 3,812
2007 .o 3,747
2008 .. 3,527
2000 . 3,389

The following table summarizes the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for Fiscal 2004
and for the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004

Intimate

Apparel Sportswear Swimwear
Group Group Group Total
Balance at February 4,2003.............. $ — $ — S $ —_—
Adjustment:
Fixed Assets — fair vatlue (a) .......... 4,220 5,084 2,350 11,654
Trademarks and licenses in perpetuity —
fairvalue (a)....................... — 31,307 — 31,307
Favorable lease — fair value ........... _ — 264 264
Deferred income taxes (@) . ............ 17,902 {25,799) 7,256 (641)
Pension Plan liabilities — fair value (b} . — —_ 5,132 5,132
Other ... s 213 — ’ — 23
Goodwill balance at January 3, 2004 (c) . .. 22,335 10,592 15,002 47,929
Adjustment:
Acquisition of Ocean Pacific (d)........ —_ —_ 17,664 17,664
Acquisition of joint venture (e)......... 370 — — 370
Income taxes (f).................. ..., (9.525) {4,516) {8,251) (22,292)
Goodwill balance at January 1, 2005 ...... $13,180 $ 6,076 $24 415 $ 43,671

(a) The Company performed a detailed review of the preliminary work of the Asset Appraiser during
2003. During the course of the review, the Company made adjustments and corrections to reduce
preliminary appraisals to fair value for intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and other
assets and to reflect deferred income tax liability, as appropriate.

(b) Goodwill was adjusted to reflect final actuarial valuation of the Company’s pension plan projected
benefit obligation.

(¢) Goodwill at January 3, 2004 reflects adjustments of $47,929 to the preliminary estimates of the fair
value of fixed and intangible assets and accrued liabilities and the related deferred income taxes
and valuation allowance as a result of changes in the preliminary fair values of fixed assets,
trademarks and accrued liabilities and the classification of intangible assets. The reductions in
fixed and intangible assets resulted in a corresponding increase in the valuauon allowance related
to deferred taxes, which increased goodwill.

(d) Following the acquisition of Ocean Pacific on August 19, 2004 (See Note 2), the Company
recorded $17,664 related to goodwill associated with the acquisition. Approximately $1,713 related
to the acquired geodwill and other intangible assets is expected to be deductible for income tax
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purposes over the next four years. Ocean Pacific is included in the Company’s Swimwear Group.
Any contingent payments ultimately recorded by the Company will be recorded as an increase in
the purchase price of Ocean Pacific and as an increase in goodwill.

(e) Following the acquisition of the remaining shares of the Company’s 50% owned joint venture,
WAS Logistics, located in Holland, the Company recorded $370 related to its preliminary estimate
of goodwill associated with the acquisition. The final valuation of certain deferred tax accounts
will not be determined until the Company files its 2004 income tax return.

(f) Relates primarily to deferred tax adjustments due to basis differences resulting from the filing of
the Company’s 2003 U.S. corporate income tax return, offset by the decrease in the valnation
allowance as a result of the realization of certain deferred tax assets.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 142, which eliminated the amortization of goodwill and
certain other intangible assets with indefinite lives effective for the Company’s 2002 fiscal year. SFAS
142 addresses financial accounting and reporting for intangible assets and acquired goodwill. SFAS 142
requires that indefinite lived intangible assets be tested for impairment at least annually. Intangible
assets with finite useful lives are to be amortized over their useful lives and reviewed for impairment -
in accordance with SFAS 144. ‘

Under the provisions of SFAS 142, goodwill is deemed potentially impaired if the net book value
of a business reporting unit exceeds the fair value of that business reporting unit. As of January 5,
2002, the Company had incurred losses in each of its two previous fiscal years and had filed for
bankruptey. As a result, the Company’s BEV had decreased. Intangible assets are deemed impaired if
the carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the assets. The Company determined its BEV in
connection with the preparation of the Reorganization Plan. The Company allocated the BEV to its
various reporting units and determined that the value of certain of the Company’ intangible assets
and goodwill were impaired. As a result, the Company recorded a charge of $801,622 (net of income
tax benefit of $53,513) as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting from the adoption of SFAS
142 on January 6, 2002. .

Note 14—Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income as of January 1, 2003 and January
3, 2004 are summarized below:

January 1, January 3,

2005 2004
Foreign currency translation adjustments ..................... $15,544 $11,556
Unrealized gain on marketable securities, net ................. 17 35
Total accumulated other comprehensive income ............... $15,561 $11,591

Note 15—Debt
Debt was as follows:

January 1, January 3,

‘ 2005 2004
874% Senior Notes due 2013, ..ottt e $210,000 $210,000
Capital lease obligations . ........... .. i i 799 1,132

$210,799 $211,132
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Financing Agreements
Senior Notes

On June 12, 2003, Warnaco completed the sale of $210,000 aggregate principal amount of Senior
Notes at par value, which notes mature on June 15, 2013 and bear interest at 8%4% payable
semi-annually on December 15 and June 15 of each year. No principal payments prior to the maturity
date are required. The Senior Notes are unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, by Warnaco
Group and substantially all of Warmnaco’s domestic subsidiaries (all of which are 100% owned, either
directly or indirectly, by Warnaco). The Senior Notes are effectively subordinate in right of payment
to existing and future secured debt (including the Revolving Credit Facility) and to the obligations
(including trade accounts payable) of the subsidiaries that are not guarantors of the Senior Notes. The
guarantees of each guarantor are effectively subordinate to that guarantor’s existing and future
secured debt (including guarantees of the Revolving Credit Facility) to the extent of the value of the
assets securing that debt. There are no restrictions that prevent the guarantor subsidiaries from
transferring funds or paying dividends to the Company. The indenture pursuant to which the Senior
Notes were issued contains covenants which, among other things, restrict the Company’ ability to
incur additional debt, pay dividends and make restricted payments, create or permit certain liens, use
the proceeds of sales of assets and subsidiaries’ stock, create or permit restrictions on the ability of
certain of Warnaco’s subsidiaries to pay dividends or make other distributions to Warnaco or to
Warnaco Group, enter into transactions with affiliates, engage in certain business activities, engage in
sale and leaseback transactions and consolidate or merge or sell all or substantially all of its assets.
The Company was in compliance with the covenants of the Senior Notes at January 1, 2005.
Redemption of the Senior Notes prior to their maturity is subject to premiums as set forth in the
indenture. Proceeds from the sale of the Senior Notes were used to repay the outstanding principal
balance on the Second Lien Notes of $200,942 and accrued interest thereon of $1,987. The proceeds
were also used to pay underwriting fees, legal and professional fees and other expenses associated
with the offering in an aggregate amount of approximately $7.071. In connection with the offering of
the Senior Notes, the Company entered into a registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers
of the Senior Notes, which, among other things, required Warnaco and the guarantors to complete a
registration and exchange of the Senior Notes. In accordance with the registration rights agreement,
the Company completed the registration and exchange of the Senior Notes in the first quarter of
Fiscal 2004.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

On September 18, 2003, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement (the “2003
Swap Agreement”) with respect to the Senior Notes for a total notional amount of $50,000. The 2003
Swap Agreement provides that the Company will receive interest of 87% and pay a variable rate of
interest based upon six month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 4.11% (6.8% at
January 1, 2005). The 2003 Swap Agreement expires on June 135, 2013 (the date on which the Senior
Notes mature). The Company designated the 2003 Swap Agreement as a fair value hedge of the
changes in fair value of $50,000 aggregate principal amount of the $210,000 aggregate principal
amount of Senior Notes outstanding. As of January 1, 2005, the fair value of the 2003 Swap
Agreement was a gain of $81. As of January 3, 2004, the fair value of the 2003 Swap Agreement was
a loss of $536, recorded as part of long-term debt, which was offset by a corresponding gain on the
hedged debt.

On November 5, 2004, the Company entered into a second interest rate swap agreement (the
“2004 Swap Agreement”) with respect to the Company’s Senior Notes for a total notional amount of
$25,000. The 2004 Swap Agreement provides that the Company will receive interest of 874% and pay a
variable rate of interest based upon six months LIBOR plus 4.34% (7.03% at January 1, 2005). The
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2004 Swap Agreement expires on June 15, 2013 (the date on which the Senior Notes mature). The
Company designated the 2004 Swap Agreement as a fair value hedge of the changes in fair value of
$25,000 aggregate principal amount of the $210,000 aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes
outstanding. As of January 1, 2003, the fair value of the 2004 Swap Agreement was a loss of $310.

As a result of the 2003 and 2004 Swap Agreements, the weighted average effective interest rate
of the Senior Notes was reduced to 8.16% as of January 1, 2005.

As of January 1, 2005, the net fair value of the swap agreements (a loss of $229) was recorded as
part of long-term debt, which was offset by a corresponding gain on the hedged debt. No hedge
ineffectiveness is recognized in the consolidated statement of operations, as the provisions of the 2003
and 2004 Swap Agreements match the provisions of the hedged debt.

Revolving Credit Facility as amended

On the Effective Date, the Company entered into the Revolving Credit Facility. The Revolving
Credit Facility, as amended, provides for a four-year, non-amortizing revolving credit facility. The
Revolving Credit Facility, as amended, includes provisions that allow the Company to increase the
maximum available borrowing from $175,000 to $325,000. Borrowings under the Revolving Credit
Facility bear interest at Citibank N.A.s base rate plus 1.25% (6.50% at January 1, 2005) or at LIBOR
plus 2.25% (approximately 4.81% at January 1, 2005). The Company enters into contracts to elect the
LIBOR option when it expects borrowing to be outstanding for more than 30 days. The remaining
balances bear interest at the base rate plus 1.25%. Pursuant to the terms of the Revolving Credit
Facility, the interest rate the Company will pay on its outstanding loans will decrease by as much as
0.25% in the event the Company achieves certain defined ratios. The Revolving Credit Facility
contains financial covenants that, among other things, require the Company to maintain a fixed charge
coverage ratio above a minimum level and a leverage ratio below a maximum level and to limit the
amount of the Company’s capital expenditures. In addition, the Revolving Credit Facility contains
certain covenants that, among other things, limit investments and asset sales, prohibit the payment of
dividends (subject to limited exceptions) and prohibit the Company from incurring material additional
indebtedness. As of January 1, 2005, the Company was in compliance with the covenants of the
Revolving Credit Facility. The Revolving Credit Facility is guaranteed by Warnaco Group and
substantially all of the domestic subsidiaries of Warnaco and the obligations under such guarantee,
together with the Company’s obligations under the Revolving Credit Facility, are secured by a first
priority lien on substantially all of the domestic assets of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries.
As of January 1, 2005, the Company had repaid all amounts owing under the Revolving Credit
Facility and had approximately $37,324 of cash and cash equivalents available as collateral against
outstanding letters of credit of $61,097; cash, primarily in foreign operations of $28,264 and $151,227
of borrowing capacity available under the Revolving Credit Facility inclusive of the cash and cash
equivalents available as collateral against the outstanding letters of credit.

On November 12, 2003, the Revolving Credit Facility was amended to: (i) modify certain
definitions and covenants; (i1} permit certain asset sales; (iii) permit the use of cash balances to fund
acquisitions; and (iv) allow the Company to repurchase up to $10,000 of the Company’s outstanding
Senior Notes.

On August 1, 2004, the Revolving Credit Facility was further amended to increase financial
flexibility and reduce commitment fees. Specifically, the Revolving Credit Facility was amended to: (i)
reduce the available borrowings from $275,000 to $175,000 on which the Company pays commitment
fees (the Company retained the right to increase the amount of borrowing available to a maximum of
$325,000, equal to the maximum amount of borrowing available prior to the amendment); (ii) increase
the amount of liens the Company can incur to $10,000; (iii) increase the amount of indebtedness the
Company can incur to $10,000; (iv) increase the Company’s ability to make investments in foreign
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subsidiaries to $10,000; (v) permit investments in investment grade securities; (vi) allow the Company
to pay dividends, repurchase indebtedness and repurchase common stock in an aggregate of $50,000,
provided that after such payment or repurchases the Company has $50,000 of “cash on hand” (as
defined in the Revolving Credit Facility); and (vii) permit the cash portion of asset sales to be as low
as fifty percent of the total sales price (the remainder to be paid by note), provided that there are no
borrowings outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility.

The Company’s ability to pay dividends, repurchase indebtedness and repurchase common stock
is limited by certain provisions of the indenture governing the Senior Notes.

On August 19, 2004, the Company assumed $1,000 of debt as part of the acquisition of Ocean
Pacific. The debt was paid in full simultaneously with the closing of the acquisition.

Second Lien Notes

In accordance with The Reorganization Plan, on the Effective Date, the Company issued $200,942
Second Lien Notes to certain pre-petition creditors and others in a transaction exempt from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act pursuant to Section 1145(a) of the Bankruptcy Code.
The Second Lien Notes were scheduled to mature on February 4, 2008 subject to, in certain instances,
earlier repayment in whole or in part. The Second Lien Notes bore an annual interest rate which was
the greater of (i} 9.5% plus a margin (initially 0%, and beginning on August 4, 2003, 0.5% would have
been added to the margin every six months); and (ii) LIBOR plus 5.0% plus a margin (initially 0%,
and beginning on August 4, 2003, 0.5% would have been added to the margin every six months). The
indenture pursuant to which the Second Lien Notes were issued contained certain covenants that,
among other things, limited investments and asset sales and prohibited the Company from paying
dividends (subject to limited exceptions) and incurring material additional indebtedness. The Second
Lien Notes were guaranteed by most of the Company’s domestic subsidiaries and the obligations
under such guarantee, together with the Company’s obligations under the Second Lien Notes, were
secured by a second priority lien on substantially the same assets which secured the Revolving Credit
Facility. On June 12, 2003, the Company repaid all outstanding principal and accrued interest on the
Second Lien Notes of $202,929 with the proceeds from the Company’s offering of the Senior Notes.

GECC Settlement

On June 12, 2002, the Bankruptey Court approved the Company’s settlement of certain operating
lease agreements with General Electric Capital Corporation (“GECC”). The leases had original terms
from three to seven years and were secured by certain equipment, machinery, furniture, fixtures and
other assets. GECC’s claims under the leases totaled approximately $51,152. Under the terms of the
settlement agreement GECC received $15,200, all of which had been repaid as of January 3, 2004. The
remaining amount of the GECC claim of approximately $35,952 was included in liabilities subject to
compromise at of January 4, 2003. The Company recorded approximately $22,898 as reorganization
items in 2002 related to the GECC leases. Lease expenses related to the GECC leases were $0, 30, $0,
and $8,228 for Fiscal 2004, the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, the period January 5, 2003
to February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002, respectively.

The assets acquired pursuant to the terms of the settlement agreement were recorded at their
estimated fair value, which was estimated to be equal to the present value of payments due to GECC
under the terms of the settlement agreement. Such assets are being depreciated using the straight-line
method over their estimated remaining useful lives of two to four years.

Debtor-In-Possession Financing

On June 11, 2001, the Company entered into a Debtor-In-Possession Financing Agreement
(“DIP”) with a group of banks, which was approved by the Bankruptcy Court in an interim amount of
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$375,000. On July 9, 2001, the Bankruptcy Court approved an increase in the amount of borrowing
available to the Company to $600,000. The DIP was subsequently amended on August 27, 2001,
December 27, 2001, February 5, 2002 and May 15, 2002. In addition, certain extensions were granted
under the DIP on April 12, 2002, June 19, 2002, July 18, 2002, August 22, 2002 and September 30,
2002 (the DIP, subsequent to such extensions and amendments, is referred to as the “Amended DIP”).
The amendments and extensions, among other things, amended certain definitions and covenants,
permitted the sale of certain of the Company’s assets and businesses, extended deadlines with respect
to certain asset sales and filing requirements with respect to a Reorganization Plan and reduced the
size of the facility to reflect the Debtor’s revised business plan. On October 8, 2002, the Company
voluntarily reduced the amount of borrowing available to the Company under the Amended DIP to
$275,000. Borrowing under the Amended DIP bore interest at either LIBOR plus 2.75% or at the
Citibank N.A. Base Rate plus 1.75%.

All outstanding borrowings under the Amended DIP were repaid as of January 4, 2003. The
weighted average interest rate was 6.5% for Fiscal 2002. The Amended DIP was secured by
substantially all of the domestic assets of the Company. The Amended DIP terminated on the
Effective Date and was replaced by the Revolving Credit Facility.

Pre-Petition Debt

The Company was in default of substantially all of its U.S. pre-petition credit agreements as of
January 4, 2003. All pre-petition debt of the Debtors was classified as liabilities subject to compromise
in the consolidated balance sheet at January 4, 2003. In addition, the Company stopped accruing
interest on all domestic pre-petition credit facilities and outstanding balances on the Petition Date.
The Company continued to accrue interest on certain foreign credit agreements that were subject to
standstill and inter-creditor agreements. Such interest of approximately $14,844 was paid pursuant to
the Reorganization Plan on February 4, 2003. Such interest was included in liabilities subject to
compromise at January 4, 2003.

Note 16—Stockholders’ Equity
Successor Company

Preferred Stock

The Company has authorized an aggregate of 20,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value
$0.01 per share, of which 112,500 shares are designated as Series A preferred stock, par value $0.01
per share. There were no shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding at either January 1, 2005 or
January 3, 2004.

Common Stock

The Company has authorized an aggregate of 112,500,000 shares of Common Stock, of which
44,999,973 shares were issued pursuant to the terms of the Reorganization Plan. A further 8,807
shares and 25,210 shares were issued to the Company’s directors during Fiscal 2004 and the period
February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, respectively, as partial compensation for serving as members on
the Board of Directors of the Company. The total number of shares of New Common Stock issued
and outstanding at January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004 was 45,655,515 and 45,188,683, respectively.

2003 Stock Incentive Plan

The Board of Directors and Compensation Committee thereof are responsible for administration
of the Company’s stock incentive plan and determined, subject to the provisions of the pians, the
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number of shares to be issued, the terms of awards, the sale or exercise price, the number of shares
awarded and the rate at which awards vested or became exercisable. The Company has reserved
5,000,000 shares of New Common Stock for stock-based compensation awards. The Company granted,
net of cancellations, 196,275 and 654,750 shares of restricted stock during Fiscal 2004 and for the
period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, respectively. Substantially all the grants of restricted stock
in Fiscal 2004 vest annually with respect to 1/3 of the shares on each anniversary of the grant date
beginning in 2005 provided that the grantee is employed by the Company on each date. The fair
market value of the New Common Stock on the date of the grants during Fiscal 2004 ranged from
$16.30 to $20.91 per share. Substantially all the grants of restricted stock for the period February 5,
2003 to January 3, 2004 vest, with respect to 25% of the shares, six months after the grant date and,
with respect to an additional 25% of such shares, each anniversary after the first vesting date for a
period of three years. The fair market value of the New Common Stock on the date of the grants for
the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 ranged from $9.55 to $16.95 per share which
represented the fair market value at the date of grant.

A summary of option stock awards outstanding under the stock incentive plan is as follows:

For the period February §, 2003

Fiscal 2004 to January 3, 2004

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Exercise Exercise

Options Price Options Price

Outstanding at beginning of period . ........... 2,602,000  $10.85 —
Granted. ... ... oo e 1,588,000(a) 18.35 2,906,000(b) $10.80
Exercised............ .. i (377,500) 10.56 (17,000) 1045
Cancelled. ..... ... o o i (348,000) 12.23 (287,000) 10.43
Outstanding at end of period ................. 3,464,500 14.28 2,602,000 10.85
Options exercisable at end of period........... 864,250  $10.63 637,000 $10.25

(a) Substantially all options granted during Fiscal 2004 vest annually with respect to one-third of the
shares on each anniversary of the grant date beginning in 2005 provided that the grantee is
employed by the Company on each date. Exercise prices ranged from $16.30 to $20.91 per share,
which represented the fair market value of the New Common Stock at the date of grant. The
options have a 10 year term.

(b) Substantially all options granted during the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 vest, with
respect to 25% of the shares, six months after the grant date, and with respect to an additional
25% of such shares, each anniversary after the first vesting date for a period of three years. The
options have a 10 year term.
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Summary information related to options outstanding at January 1, 2005 is as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted

Outstanding Average Weighted Exercisable Weighted
at Remaining Average at Average
January 1, Contractual Exercise January 1, Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices 2005 Life (Years) Price 2005 Price
$9.55-811.82. . ... $1,716,000 8.2 $10.14 796,000 $10.11
$11.83-81409................ 5,000 84 12.75 3,000 12.89
$1410-$1637. ...t 20,000 8.7 15.60 4,000 15.43
$1638-$1864. ... 1,195,100 9.1 17.60 57,500 16.80
$1865-32091.......... .. ... 528,400 9.6 20.18 3,750 20.91
$3,464,500 873 $14.28 $864,250 $10.63

The following represents the reconciliation of the number of shares of New Common Stock and

treasury stock issued and outstanding as of January 1, 2005:
January 1, 2005

Common Stock:

Balance at January 3,2004 . ......... .. o oot 45,188,683
Shares issued to directors .. ... v i 8,807
Shares issued upon exercise of stock options, net of

cancellations . ... ..o i e 313,400
Shares issued under restricted stock grants, net of

Ccancellations . ..ottt e 144,625
Balance at January 1,2005............ .. o 45,655,515

Treasury Stock:

Balance at January 3,2004 . ..., ... ... i 22,766
Purchases of Common Stock (a).......cooiiiiiiinn. 50,158
Shares issued under restricted stock grants, net of

cancellations ... ... e (8,186)
Shares issued upon exercise of stock options, net of

cancellations . ... i (64,100)
Balance at January 1,2005........ ... ..o o it 638

(a) Purchases of Common Stock represent shares surrendered by employees in satisfaction of certain
payroll tax obligations associated with the vesting of restricted stock.

On the Effective Date, pursuant to the Reorganization Plan and a rights agreement (the “New
Rights Agreement”), the Company distributed one Right (a “Right”) for each outstanding share of
New Common Stock to stockholders of record at the Effective Date and authorized the issuance of
one Right for each share of New Common Stock issued thereafter and prior to the Distribution Date
(as defined in the New Rights Agreement). Each Right entitles the registered holder to purchase from
the Company one one-thousandth of a share (a “Unit”) of Series A Preferred Stock, par value $0.01
per share, at a purchase price of $45.00 per Unit, subject to adjustment. Subject to the terms and
conditions of the New Rights Agreement, if not earlier redeemed upon the approval of the holders of
55% of the New Common Stock, the Rights only become exercisable upon the occurrence of certain
events as set forth in the New Rights Agreement.
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Note 17—Income (Loss) per Common Share

Successor Predecessor
For the Period For the Period

February 5, 2003 to | January 5, 2003 to
Fiscal 2004 January 3, 2004 | February 4, 2003 Fiscal 2002

Numerator for basic and diluted income (loss)
per common share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle ........... ... ... ... $§ 46875 §$ 18,230 § 2,359,038 $§ (153,984)

Basic:
Weighted average number of shares
outstanding used in computing income

{loss) per common share ................. 45,418,069 45,060,724 52,989,965 52,989,965
Income (loss) per common share from

continuing operations .................... $ 1.03 § 0.40 $ 4452 § (2.91)

Diluted:

Weighted average number of shares

outstanding . . .. ... .o 45,418,069 45,060,724 52,989,965 52,989,965
Effect of dilutive securities:
Employee stock options .. .............o.u 544,972 219,318 — —
Unvested employees’ restricted stock ........ 215,494 182,518 — —
Weighted average number of shares and share

equivalents outstanding .................. 46,178,535 45,462,560 52,989,965 52,989,965

Income (loss) per common share from
CONtiNUINg OPerations . ................... $ 1.02  § 0.40 $ 4452 § (2.91)

Options to purchase shares of common stock at an exercise price greater than the average market
price of the underlying shares are anti-dilutive and therefore not included in the computation of
diluted income per common share from continuing operations. The effect of dilutive securities on the
diluted income (loss) per share from continuing operations for Fiscal 2004 and the period February 53,
2003 to January 3, 2004, under the treasury method, included options to purchase 2,975,700 and
2,356,000 shares of New Common Stock and 534,525 and 491,250 shares of unvested restricted stock,
respectively. The effect of dilutive securities was not included in the computation of diluted income
(loss) per share from continuing operations for the period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 or
Fiscal 2002 because the effect would have been anti-dilutive. Dilutive securities for Fiscal 2002
included options to purchase 3,692,363 shares of Old Common Stock, unvested restricted stock of
5,200 shares, 5,200,000 shares issuable pursuant to the Equity Agreements and incremental shares
issuable on the assumed conversion of the certain Predecessor preferred securities of 1,653,177.

At January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004 there were 3,464,500 and 2,356,000 outstanding
in-the-money options, respectively.
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Note 18—Lease and Other Commitments

The Company is a party to various lease agreements for equipment, real estate, furniture, fixtures
and other assets, which expire on various dates through 2016. Under these agreements, the Company
is required to pay various amounts including property taxes, insurance, maintenance fees, and other
costs. The following is a schedule of future minimum rental payments required under non-cancelable
operating leases with terms in excess of one year, as of January 1, 2005:

Rental payments

Year Rea) Estate Equipment
2005 .o\ e e $19,342 3212
2006 .. 15,394 3,066
2007 .o e e 13,180 2,228
2008 12,012 1,869
2000 .. 11,394 890
2010 and thereafter.............. ... .. ...... 56,578 4,261

Rent expense included in the consolidated statements of operations for Fiscal 2004, the period
February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, the period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002
was $23,512, $25,159, $1,760 and $38,401, respectively.

The Company has license agreements with the following minimum guaranteed royalty payments
as of January 1, 2005:

Minimum
Year Royalty (a)
2005 L $ 29,981
2006 .. e 31,696
2007 .o e 36,862
2008 .o 34,893
2009 .. 34,978
2010 and thereafter .. ... i 459,982

(a) Includes all minimum royalty obligations. Some of the Company’s license agreements have no
expiration date or extend beyond 20 years. The duration of these agreements for the purposes of
this item are assumed to be 20 years. Variable based minimum royalty obligations are based upon
payments for the most recent fiscal year. Certain of the Company’s license agreements also
require the Company to pay a specified percentage of net revenue (ranging from 2-3%) to the
licensor for advertising and promotion of the licensed products.

Although the specific terms of each of the Company’s license agreements vary, generally such
agreements provide for minimum royaity payments and/or royalty payments based upon a percentage
of net sales. Such license agreements also generally grant the licensor the right to approve any designs
marketed by the licensee.

The Company has entered into employment agreements with certain members of management.
Minimum obligations pursuant to such agreements total $3,474, $2,833 and $1,535 in Fiscal 2003, 2006
and 2007, respectively.

Pursuant to agreements entered into, the Company is contractually obligated to purchase finished
goods and production services totalling approximately $12,600 and $4,000 in Fiscal 2005 and Fiscal
2006, respectively.
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The Company has entered a software development contract for the installation of an enterprise
wide information processing solution. The contract requires the Company to pay certain license fees
and consulting fees to the software supplier. The Company has the right to cancel the development
effort with thirty days written notice. Total amounts due under the license and development contracts
are $6,812 and $904 in Fiscal 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Note 19—Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating its fair value
disclosures for financial instruments.

Accounts Receivable: The carrying amount of the Company’s accounts receivable approximates
fair value.

Notes Receivable: The carrying amount of the Company’s notes receivable approximates fair
value, as the notes bear interest at market rates based upon the risk associated with the debtor.

Accounis Payable: The carrying amount of the Company’s accounts payable are approximately
equal to their fair value because accounts payable are short-term in nature and the carrying value is
equal to the settlement value.

Senior Notes: The Senior Notes mature on June 15, 2013 and bear interest at 874% payable
semi-annually beginning December 15, 2003. The fair value of the Senior Notes is based upon quoted
market prices for the Senior Notes.

Interest Rate Swaps: The fair value of the outstanding interest rate swaps is based upon the cost
to terminate the contracts.

Letters of Credit: Letters of credit collateralize the Company’s obligations to third parties and
have terms ranging from 30 days to one year. The face amounts of the letters of credit are a
reasonable estimate of the fair value since the value for each is fixed over its relatively short maturity.

The carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

January 1, 2005 January 3, 2004

Carrying Fair Carrving Fair

_Amount_ _ Value Amount _Value
Accounts receivable................ $219,305 $219,805 $209,491 $209,491
Note receivable. ................... 13,993 13,993 18,700 18,700
Accounts payable . ................. 122,418 122,418 96,074 96,074
Senior Notes . ....c.ovvvvivenn.... 209,771 231,000 209,464 216,300
Interest rate swaps (loss) ........... (229) (229) (536) (536)
Letters of credit ................... — 61,097 _ 66,186

Foreign Currency-Risk Management. The Company’s international operations are subject to
certain risks, including currency fluctuations and government actions. The Company closely monitors
its operations in each country so that it can respond to changing economic and political environments
and to fluctuations in foreign currencies. The Company did not have any foreign currency hedge
contracts outstanding at January 1, 2005 or January 3, 2004.
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Note 20—Cash Flow Information

The following table sets forth supplemental cash flow information for Fiscal 2004, the period
February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004, the period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002:

Successor Predecessor
For the Period For the Period
Fiscal February 5, 2003 January 5, 2003 Fiscal
2004 to January 3, 2004 | to February 4, 2003 2002
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest, net of interest income received. .. ... $19,287 $18,257 $14,844 $ 6,228
Income taxes, net of refunds received........ (2,746) 13,282 273 (7,519)
Supplemental non-cash investing and financing
activities:
Accounts payabie for purchase of fixed assets. 2,216 1,382 — —
Note receivable on asset sales............... — 18,700
Debt issued for purchase of fixed assets ...... — — 9,071

Note 21—Legal Matters

SEC Investigation: As previously disclosed, the Company reached a settlement with the SEC on
the proposed allegations related to matters that had been under investigation. Pursuant to the
settlement, on May 11, 2004, the SEC issued an administrative order requiring that the Company
cease and desist from committing or causing any violations and future violations of Sections 10(b),
13(a), 13(b)(2)(A) and 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act and Rules 10b-5, 12b-20, 13a-1 and 13a-13
thereunder. The cease-and-desist order, in which the Company neither admits nor denies the findings,
was pursuant to the Company’s offer of settlement. The Company paid no fine under the SEC
settlement. As part of the settlement, the Company agreed to certain undertakings, including retention
of an independent consultant to perform a review of the Company’s internal controls and policies
relating to its inventory systens, internal audit, financial reporting and other accounting functions. On
October 29, 2004, the independent consultant delivered its report to the Special Committee of the
Board of Directors, which report was thereafter delivered to the SEC. In January 2005, the Board,
upon recommendation of the Special Committee, adopted the recommendations contained in the
report. In addition, pursuant to the settlement, the Company agreed that for a period of two years its
Chief Administrative Officer (who previously served as General Counsel) shall not sign any
documents to be filed with the SEC by or on behalf of the Company and shall not participate in or be
responsible for the preparation or review of such filings except under limited circumstances. The
Company also agreed that for a period of two years its General Counsel shall continue to report
directly to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors on any matters relating to the Company’s
financial reporting obligations. The Company does not expect the settlement with the SEC to have a
material effect on its financial condition, results of operations or business.

Other: In addition to the above, from time to time, the Company is involved in arbitrations or
legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of its business. The Company cannot predict the
timing or outcome of these claims and proceedings. Currently, the Company is not involved in any
arbitration and/or legal proceeding that it expects to have a material effect on its financial condition,
results of operations or business.

Note 22—Supplemental Consolidating Condensed Financial Information

The following tables set forth supplemental consolidating condensed financial information as of
January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004 (as restated) and for Fiscal 2004, the period February 5, 2003 to
January 3, 2004 (as restated), the period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003 and Fiscal 2002 for (i)
The Warnaco Group, Inc., (ii) Warnaco Inc., (iii) the subsidiaries that guarantee the Seniors Notes
(the “Guarantor Subsidiaries”), (iv) the subsidiaries other than the Guarantor Subsidiaries (the
“Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries”) and (v) The Warnaco Group, Inc. on a consolidated basis. The Senior
Notes are guaranteed by substantially all of Warnaco Inc.’s domestic subsidiaries. See Note 15.
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January 1, 2005

The Warnaco Warnaco Guarantor Non-Guarantor Elimination

Group, Inc. Inc. Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Entries  Consolidated
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents. . . ........... $ — $ 44155 § 122 $ 21311 $ — $ 65588
Accounts receivable, net. .. ....... ... .. —_ — 160,030 59,775 — 219,805
Inventories . . ... ..t — 93,284 153,462 88,905 — 335,651
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . — 19252 9.961 16,198 — 45411
Assets of discontinued operations . . ... ... — —_ 39 2,579 — 2,618
Total current assets. .. .............. — 156,691 323,614 188,768 — 669,073
Property, plant and equipment, net. . ....... —_— 30,323 54373 22,241 —_ 106,937
Investment in subsidiaries . .............. 812,144 551,616 — — (1,363,760) —
Other assets . . ..o in e e — 47,830 312,255 17,809 — 377,894
Totalassets. .. ...........coiiueun.. $812,144  § 786,460  $690,242 $228.818 $(1,363,760) $1,153,904
LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Liabilities of discontinued operations. . . . .. $ — 3 — § 480 $ 970 $ — $ 145
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and
ACCTUEA tAXES v v v et e — 106,235 49,944 77,219 — 233,398
Total current liabilities ... ........... — 106,235 50,424 78,189 — 234,848
Intercompany accounts ................. 235,195 (270,597) 113,943 (78.541) —_ —
Long-termdebt. ......... ... .. ... ..... — 210,000 — 799 —_ 210,799
Other long-term liabilities . .. ............ —_— 109,118 10,891 11,299 — 131,308
Stackholders’ equity .. ...... ... . ..., 576,949 631,704 514,984 217,072 (1,363,760) 576,949
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . . . . $812,144  §$ 786,460  $690,242 $228,818 $(1,363,760) $1,153,904
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January 3, 2004
The Warnaco Warnaco Guarantor Non-Guarantor Elimination
Group, Inc. Inc. Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Entries  Consolidated
ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents. . ............ 3 — § 33872 § 501 $ 19,084 3 — § 53457

Accounts receivable,net. . ... ... . ... —_ — 159,309 50,182 —_ 209,491

Inventories . .. v v vt — 75,054 138,264 66,521 — 279,839

Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . — 15,844 9,140 34,462 — 59,446

Assets of discontinued operations . . . ... .. — — 20,792 6,333 — 27,125

Total current assets. . . .............. — 124,770 328,006 176,582 — 629,358

Property, plant and equipment, net. ........ — 73,329 12,068 21,136 — 106,533
Investment in subsidiaries .. ............. 765,656 553,537 — — (1,319,193) —
Other assets . . .o v vn et ii et e iieenn e — 192,554 145,619 16,946 — 355,119

Total @assets . . .. vvv i ie i $765,656  $ 944,190  $485,693 $214,664 $(1,319,193) $1,091,010

LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current labilities: .

Liabilities of discontinued operations. . ... . $ — 3 — $ 3,487 $ 3933 $ — $ 7440

Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and

accrued taxes . . ... — 112,552 42,592 72,492 — 227,636

Total current liabilities . , ... ........... — 112,552 46,079 76,445 — 235,076
Intercompany accounts .. ............... 245,044 (165,694)  (22,980) (56,370) — —
Longtermdebt. . ..................... — 210,000 — 1,132 — 211,132
Other long-term liabilities . .. ............ —_ 118,137 31 6,022 — 124,190
Stockholders’ equity . ...... ... ... 520,612 669,195 462,563 187,435 (1,319,193) 520,612

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity. ...  $765,656 $ 944,190  $485,693 $214,664 $(1,319,193) $1,091,010
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Fiscal 2004

The Warnaco Wamnaco Guarantor Non-Guarantor Elimination

Group, Inc. Inc. Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Entries  Consolidated

Net revenues . . v v vt v e e it ee e e $ —_— $437.249  $596,835 $390,097 3 — $1,424,181
Costofgoodssold. . ................ ... — 334,057 400,950 216,191 — 951,198
Grossprofit ........... ... ... ... ... — 103,192 195,885 173,906 — 472,983
Selling, general and administrative expenses. . . — 139,706 124,025 114,137 — 377868
Pensionincome. . .. ... — (6,150) — — — (6,150)
Restructuringitems . . .. ......... ... ... — 4,387 109 634 — 5,130
Operating income (Ioss). . . .~ ... ... ... — (34,751) 71,751 59,135 — 96,135
Equity in income of subsidiaries . . ... ... L (42,517) — — — 42,517 —
Intercompany . ........ ... ... ... . ... — 6,824 (18,032) 11,208 — —
Other (income) loss. . . . ....... . ovn. — (19,243) 18,961 (1,915) — (2,197)
Interest (income) expense, net . ........... — 43,895 (25,037) 963 — 19,821
Income (loss) from continuing operations

before provision for income taxes .. ...... 42,517 (66,227) 95,859 48,879 .. (42,517) 78,511
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ........ — (26,686) 38.626 19,696 — 31,636
Income (loss) from continuing operations . . . . 42,517 (39,541) 57,233 29,183 (42,517) ‘46,875
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,

net of income taxes . ............... .. — — (4,812) 454 — (4,358)
Netincome (loss) ... ... ... $42517 $(39,541) ¢ 52,421 $ 29,637 $(42,517) § 42517
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Netrevenues . ..........vnriennn. .
Costof goodssold. . . ....... ... ... ...

Grossprofit . ........... ... ... . .....
Selling, general and administrative expenses. . .
Pensionincome. ... ............. . ... ..
Amortization of sales order backlog . . ......
Restructuring items . . . ....... ... .. ...

Operating income (oss). ... .............
Equity in income of subsidiaries. ... .......
Intercompany . . ... ... v
Other (income) expense, net . .. ... .......
Interest (income) expense, net . . ..........
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before provision (benefit) for income taxes. .
Provision for income taxes...............

Income (loss) from continuing operations . . . .

Loss from discontinued operations, net of
inCOmMEe taxes . . ..o v v et

For the Period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004

The Warnaco Warnaco Guarantor Non-Guarantor Elimination

Group, Inc. Inc. Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Entries  Consolidated
$ — $397,490  $548,996 $317,815 $ — $1,264,301
— 292,208 393,098 186,864 — 872,170
— 105,282 155,898 130,951 — 392,131
— 135,156 105,698 78,726 — 319,580
— (6,488) — — —_ {6,488)
— 3,300 8,500 —_ — 11,800
— 10,311 4,160 4,630 — 19,101
— (36,997) 37,540 47,595 — 48,138
163 —_ —_ — (163) —_
— 7439 (12.887) 5,448 — —
—_ (10,754) 9,581 (1,644) —_ (2,817)
— 34,518 (15,881) 2,004 — 20,641
(163) (68,200) 56,727 41,787 163 30,314
— 2,467 632 8,983 — 12,084
(163) (70,667) 56,095 32,802 163 18,230
— — (8,809) (9,584) — (18,393)
$(163) $(70,667) § 47,286 § 23,218 $ 163 $ (163)
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For the Period January §, 2003 to February 4, 2003

The Warnaco, Warnaco  Guarantor Non-Guarantor Elimination

Group, Inc. Inc. Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Entries  Consolidated

Net revenues . ... ...ovvvenn e $ — § 25673 § 57,091 $27.356 $ — § 110,120
Costofgoodssold. .................... —_ 15,666 36,852 14,765 — 67,283
Grossprofit . ....... ..., — 10,007 20,239 12,591 — 42,837
Selling, general and administrative expenses... . — 13,873 9,034 9,249 — 32,156
Reorganization items. . ... ........ .. . ... — 29,922 — 117 — 29,805
Operating income (loss}. ... ..o vvvnv — (33,788) 11,205 3459 — (19,124)
Equity in income of subsidiaries . . ......... (2,358,537) — — — 2,358,537 —
Gain on cancellation of pre-petition

indebtedness . .. ........... ... ..., —  (1,567,721) (124,975) — —  (1,692,696)
Fresh start adjustments . ................ — (765,726) — — — (765,726)
Otherexpense ..............oovvn.nn. — 359 — — — 359
Interest (income) expense, net . ... ........ — 1,887 4 (132) — 1,751
Income from continuing operations before

provision for income taxes ............. 2,358,537 2,297,413 136,184 3,591 (2,358,537) 2,437,188
Provision for income taxes. . ............. — 77,603 — 547 — 78,150
Income from continuing operations. . . ...... 2,358,537 2,219,810 136,184 3,044 (2,358,537) 2,359,038
Loss from discontinued operations, net of

INCOME taXeS . . .. vt ne e — o (303) (198) — (501)
Netincome. . . ..o v vt ei i nennnn $2,358,537 §2219,810 $ 135,881 $ 2,846 $(2,358,537) $ 2,358,537
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

Fiscal 2002

The Warnaco Warnace Guarantor Non-Guarantor Elimination

Group, Inc. Inc. Subsidiaries _ Subsidiaries Entries  Consolidated
NetTevenues . ... ........oouueiiee .. $ —  $519,022 $ 578955 $310,265 $ —  $1,408242
Costofgoodssold. . ................ ... — 382,049 433,942 186,825 — 1,002,816
Grossprofit ........ .. ..o — 136,973 145,013 123,440 —_ 405,426
Selling, general and administrative expenses. . . — 160,920 102,938 106,100 — 369,958
Pension expense . . ... ... o — 5,399 — — —_ 5,399
Reorganization items. .. .. .............. — 100,437 2,735 11,323 —_ 114,495
Operating income (loss). . .. ............. — (129,783} 39,340 6,017 — (84,426)
Equity in loss of subsidiaries ............. 964,863 — — — {964,863) —
Other income, net. . ................... — (62) — — — (62)
Interest (income) expense, net .. .......... — 22,048 73) (2,003} — 19,972
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before provision for income taxes . .. ... .. (964,863)  (151,769) 39413 8.020 964,863 (104,336)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes . .. ... .. — (588) 38,739 11,497 — 49,648
Income from continuing operations. . . ... ... (964,863  (151,181) 674 (3.477) 964,863 (153,984)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of
INCOME tAXES . v e vv e e v e e e e — — (1,524) (7,733) — (9,257)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle, net of income taxes . .. ........ — (84,532) (651,663) (65,427) — (801,622)
Netloss . oo v v e e e e $(964,863) $(235,713) $(652,513) $(76,637) $ 964,863  § (964,863)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

Fiscal 2004
The Warnaco Guarantor Non-Guarantor Elimination
Group, Inc.  Warnaco Inc. Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Entries Consolidated

Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities from

continuing operations. . ... ..... $(2,967) $ 22,712 $.34,059 § 1,012 $— $ 54,816
Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities from

discontinued operations . . .. .. .. — — {5,179) 682 = (4,497)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities, . .. .. ...... (2,967) 22,712 28,880 1,694 — 50,319

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds on disposal of assets and

collection of notes receivable . . . . — 8,624 15,179 243 — 24,046
Purchase of property, plant and

equipment . ......... ... ... — (20,056) (2,941) (6647 — (29,644)
Business acquisitions. . ... ... .... — — (40,497) (288) __ (40,785)
Net cash used in investing activities :

from continuing operations. . . . .. — (11,432) (28,259) {6,692) — (46,383)
Net cash provided by investing

activities from discontinued

Operations. . . . .............. — — L - 1,137 — 1,137
Net cash used in investing activities . — (11,432) (28,259) (5,555) - (45,246)
Cash flows from financing activities: :
Payment of deferred financing costs . — (997) — — — (997)
Proceeds from issuance of stock, net. 2,967 — —_ — — 2,967
Repayments under other debt ‘

agreements. ... ... ... — — (1,000) (333) = (1,333
Net cash provided by (used in)

financing activities . . . ... ...... 2,967 (997) (1,000) (333) — 637
Translation adjustments. . ... ..... - — — 6,421 — 6,421
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents . . . .............. — 10,283 379) 2,227 — 12,131
Cash and cash equivalents, excluding

restricted cash, at beginning of

period .. ... ... ... ...l — 33,872 501 19,084 e 53,457
Cash and cash equivalents, excluding

restricted cash, at end of period . . $ — $ 44,155 $ 122 $21,311 $— $ 65,588
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE WARNACO GROUP, INC.

(Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

Net cash provided by operating
activities from continuing
OpPerations. . . ..ot
Net cash used in operating activities
from discontinued operations . . .. .

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities. . . ... .... ...
Cash flows from investing activities:
Disposal of fixed and other assets. . . .
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment. . .. ...l
Net cash used in investing activities
from continuing operations. . . . ...
Net cash used in investing activities
from discontinued operations . . . ..
Net cash used in investing activities. . .

Cash flows from financing activities:

Repayments under revolving credit
facility . .......... ... .. e

Issuance of Senior Notes . . ........
Repayment of Second Lien Notes. . . .

Repayment under term loan and other
debt agreements . .......... ...

Net cash used in financing activities . .

Translation adjustments. . .........
Increase in cash and cash equivalents .

Cash and cash equivalents, excluding
restricted cash, at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents, excluding
restricted cash, at end of period. . . .

For the Period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004

The Warnaco

Guarantor

Non-Guarantor Elimination

Group, Inc.  Warnaco Inc. Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Entries  Consolidated
$ 302 $ 82,249 $5.214 § 769 $— $ 88534
— — (713) (4,233) = (4,946)
302 82,249 4,501 (3,464) - 83,588
— 10,687 — — — 10,687
— (21,248) (3,878) (3,584) — (28,710)
— (10,561) (3,878) (3,584) — (18,023)
— — (461) (23) — (484)
— (10,561) (4,339) (3,607 — (18,507)

— (39,200) — — — (39,200)
— 210,000 — — — 210,000
— (200,942) — — — (200,942)
— (5.050) — (128) — (5,178)
(302) (9,233) — — - (5,535)
(302) (44,425) — (128) - (44,855)
- — — 12,525 — 12,525
— 27,263 162 5,326 — 32,751
— 6,610 339 13,757 — 20,706

$ — $ 33,873 $ 501 $19,083 $—
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THE WARNACO GROUP, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

For the Period January 5, 2003 to February 4, 2003

The Warnaco Guarantor  Non-Guarantor  Elimination
Group, Inc.  Warnaco Inc.  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidated

Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities from continuing
OPETAtiONS . « v v v v e v e ee e $— $(126,583) $(1,209) $ 103,521 $— $ (24,271)

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities from discontinued

operations. . . ......... ... = — 1,469 (2,124) . (655)
Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities . . . ........ ... — (126,583) 260 101,397 — (24,926)
Cash flows from investing activities: ‘
Purchase of property, plant and

eqUIpment . « . o v e — (468) (159) (16) — (643)
Net cash used in investing activities

from continuing operations . . ... ... —_ (468) “(159) (16) — (643)
Net cash used in investing activities

from discontinued operations. . .. ... = — (102) — — (102)
Net cash used in investing activities. . . . = (468) (261) (16) — (745)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Borrowings under revolving credit
facility. . ... ... — 39,200 — — — 39,200

Repayments under term loan and other

debt agreements. . .. ........ ..., — 785 — (1,500) — (715)
Repayments of prepetition debt . . .. .. — — — (106,112) = (106,112)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing

activities . . . ... ... .. e 39,985 — (107,612) — 67,627)
Translation adjustments .. .. ........ — — — (21) — 1)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents. . — (87,066) 1) (6,252) — (93,319)
Cash and cash equivalents, excluding

restricted cash, at beginning of period. -~ 93,676 340 20,009 — 114,025
Cash and cash equivalents, excluding

restricted cash, at end of period. .. .. $— $ 6,610 $ 339 $ 13,757 $— $ 20,706
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

Fiscal 2002

The Warnaco Guarantor Non-Guarantor Elimination
Group, Inc. Warnaco Ince.  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidated

Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities from continuing

operations. . ... ... ... $— $ 250,446 $(8,227) $(19,838) $— $ 222,381
Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities from

discontinued operations ......... = — 10,592 (6,725) P 3,867
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities. . . .......... — 250,446 2,365 (26,563) — 226,248

Cash flows from investing activities:
Disposal of assets and collection of

notes receivable, . ... ... ... ... — 6,814 — — — 6,814
Purchase of property, plant and

equipment. . .. ... ... ... — (4,001) (2,920) (4,051) — (10,972)
Proceeds from sale of business units '

net of cash balances. .. ......... — — 150 20,459 — 20,609

Net cash provided by (used in)

investing activities from continuing

operations. . ................. — 2,813 (2,770) 16,408 — 16,451
Net cash provided by (used in)

investing activities from

discontinued operations . . ....... — — (252) (14) = (266)
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities . . ........... — 2,813 (3,022) 16,394 — 16,185

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of Amended DIP

Facilities. . . ................. — (155,915) — — — (155,915)
Repayment under term loan and other
debt agreements . ............. — (20,311) (47) — — (20,358)

Net cash provided by (used in)

financing activities from continuing

operations. . . ............ ... — (176,226) 47) — — (176,273)
Net cash provided by (used in)

financing activities from

discontinued operations . .. ...... = — — (556) — (556)
Net cash provided by (used in)

financing activities . . . .......... — (176,226) 47 (556) = (176,829)
Translation adjustments . . ......... — — — 8,863 — 8,863
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents . . ... ......... ... — 77,033 (704) (1,862) — 74,467
Cash and cash equivalents, excluding

restricted cash, at beginning of

period ...................... _— 16,652 1,042 21,864 i 39,558
Cash and cash equivalents, excluding

restricted cash, at end of period. . . . $— $ 93,685 $ 338 $ 20,002 $— $ 114,025
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

Note 23—Restatement

On February 7, 2005, the Office of the Chief Accountant of the SEC issued a letter regarding
accounting for (i) the amortization of leasehold improvements by a lessee in an operating lease with
lease renewals, (ii) the pattern of recognition of rent expense when the lease term contains a period
where there are free or reduced rents and (iii) incentives related to leasehold improvements provided
by a lessor to a lessee in an operating lease. In light of the SEC’s recent statement regarding existing
generally accepted accounting principles for lease accounting as set forth in such letter and in the
course of finalizing its 2004 financial statements, the Company reviewed its accounting for operating
leases. The Company determined that its method of accounting for rent that was deferred during the
pre-occupancy renovation period (see clause (ii) of the prior sentence) and its netting of cash received
from the landlord against the cost of leasehold improvements (see clause (iii) of the prior sentence),
in both instances as it related to the lease for the Company’s New York headquarters (which
commenced in May 2003) did not conform to GAAP. As a result, the Company restated its
consolidated balance sheet at January 3, 2004 and its consolidated statements of operations and cash
flows for the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004.

As a result of the restatement, the Company has recognized rent expense on a straight line basis
from the commencement date of the lease (including the renovation period), recorded leasehold
improvements at the gross amount paid and recorded deferred rent equal to the amount of cash
reimbursement received from the landlord. The deferred rent is being amortized as a reduction in rent
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The Company recorded the adjustments related to the current year, which were nominal, in the
fourth quarter of Fiscal 2004 to correct its lease accounting. The effect of the adjustments on the first,
second and third quarters of Fiscal 2004 were nominal and, as a result, the Company did not restate
its financial statements for any quarterly period of Fiscal 2004. The resulting adjustments did not
affect the historical timing of payments under the lease or historical net cash flows.

A summary of the significant effects of the restatement on the consolidated balance sheet at
January 3, 2004 is presented below:

Balance Sheet at January 3, 2004

As Previously

Reported (As Restated)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (&) ................. 51,074 48,574
Total current assets (a) ......ovvuiiinre e 631,858 629,358
Property plant and equipment, net........................... 96,865 106,533
Total assets (A) . ... vvvenet e e 1,083,842 1,091,010
Other long-term liabilities (b) .......... ... . ... oL, 5,439 14,656
Retained €arnings. . . ... e 1,886 (163)
Total stockholders’ equity...........cooiviiiiiiiiieiiinin.. 522,661 520,612
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (a) ................... 1,083,842 1,091,010

(a) The previously reported amounts reflect certain reclassifications to conform to the current period
presentation. See Note 1.

(b) Reflects the reclassification of retirement obligations to conform to the current period
presentation.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

A summary of the significant effects of the restatement on the Company’s consolidated statement
of operations for the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 is presented below:

For the Period February 5, 2003
to January 3, 2004

Pre;?ciusly
_Reported _As Restated

Selling, general and administrative expenses(a) ................ $327,248 $319,580
Operating iNnCOME. ... ...ttt ettt 50,187 48,138
Income from continuing operations before provision for income

BB S + v ot e e et e e e e e 32,363 30,314
Netincome (JOSS) ... ovvet v e e § 1,886 $ (163)
Basic and diluted income (loss) per common share:

Income from continuing Operations ........................ § 045 $ 040

Net income (0SS} . ... vourr ittt e $ 0.04 $ (0.01)

(a) The previously reported amounts reflect certain reclassifications to conform to the current period
presentation. See Note 1.

The effect of the restatement on the Company’s consolidated statement of cash flows for the
period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004 is summarized below:

For the Period February §,
2003 to January 3, 2004

Prev:‘?gusly
_Reported As Restated
Net cash provided by operating activities from continuing
OPETALIONS . oo vttt ettt et e et e 85,348 88,534
Net cash provided by operating activities ..................... 80,402 83,588
Net cash (used in) investing activities from continuing
OPETAHIONS . o v\ttt sttt et et e e e e e (14,837) (18,023)
Net cash (used in) investing activities. ...............ccoue... (15,321) (18,507)

Note 24—Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following table contains selected financial data for each quarter of Fiscal 2004. The Company
believes that the following information reflects all normal recurring adjustments necessary for a fair
presentation of the information for each quarter of Fiscal 2004. The operating results for any period
are not necessarily indicative of results for any future periods.
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(Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

Successor
Fiscal 2004
Fourth
First Second Third Quarter
Quarter Quarter Quarter (a)
Net revenues. ................. [ $393,253 $332,077 $324,434 $374,417
Gross profit. . . .. e 141,497 103,432 102,673 125,381
Income from continuing operations............ 23,702 4,430 1,866 16,877
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of taxes. ... ..covreeiiiiiii i (3,478) 12 (262) (630)
Netincome . ..o vvvn it et e e 20,224 4,442 1,604 16,247
Basic income per common share: '
Income from continuing operations .......... $ 052 $ o010 $ 004 $ 037
Loss from discontinued operations........... (0.07) — (0.01) (0.01)
NetinCome . ...ovvin et iiieiinn e $ 045 $ 010 $ 003 $ 036
Diluted income per common share:
Income from continuing operations .......... $ 051 $ 0.10 $ 004 $ 036
Loss from discontinued operations........... (0.07) — (0.01) (0.01)
Netincome . ..ovvvvere et iiiee e iianns $ 044 $ 010 $ 0.03 $ 035

(a) During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2004, the Company recorded a cumulative adjustment, which
was nominal related to the restatement matter discussed in Note 23.

The Company restated its operating results for the second, third and fourth quarters of Fiscal
2003 to reflect an increase in rent and depreciation expenses associated with the correction of its
accounting for its New York headquarters.lease.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

The period and quarterly results are as follows:

Predecessor Successor
Three
For the period | For the period Three Months  Three Months
January §, 2003 February 5, Months Ended Ended
to February 4, | 2003 to April 5, Ended July 5, October 4,  January 3,
2003 2003 2003(a) 2003(a)(b) 2004(a)
Netrevenues.......ooveveevnvnnn.. $ 110,120 $313,349 $319,318  $293,671  $337,963
Grossprofit.............. ..., 42,837 111,203 90,327 86,623 103,978
Income (loss) from continuing
Operations ........ooevvenennnn.. 2,359,038 22,375 (8,041) (6,257) 10,153
Loss from discontinued operations,
netoftaxes ............ceuiunn., (501) (114) (1,297) (2,172)  (14,810)
Net income (10SS) . ......couvvuuunn. 2,358,537 22,261 (9,338) (8,429) (4,657)
Basic income (loss) per common
share:
Income (loss) from continuing
OPErations . .........coveeueennn. $§ 4452 $ 050 $§ (0.18) § (014) $ 022
Loss from discontinued operations . . . (0.01) (0.01) (0.03) (0.05) (0.33)
Net income (J08S).......ooivvnnnn.. $ 44.51 $ 049 $ (021) $ (019) $ (0.11)
Diluted income (loss) per common
share:
Income (loss) from continuing
OPerations .........oveeeeeennn.. $ 4452 $ 049 $ (018) $ (0.14) $ 022
Loss from discontinued operations . . . (0.01) — (0.03) (0.05) (0.32)
Net income (10sS) .................. $ 4451 $ 049 $ (021) $ (019) $ (0.10)

(a) Amounts presented give effect to the restatement disclosed in Note 23. For additional detail on
the restatement, see the following table.

(b) Reflects certain reclassifications to conform to the current period presentation.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, excluding per share amounts)

The following table summarizes the significant effects of the restatement on the quarterly
information related to the period February 5, 2003 to January 3, 2004.

Selling, general and
administrative expenses (a)

Operating income (loss) (a)

Income (loss) from continuing
operations before provision for
income taxes

Provision (benefit) for income
taxes

Income (loss) from continuing
aperations

Net loss

Basic income (loss) per common
share:

Income (loss) from continuing
operations

Net loss

Diluted income (loss) per
common share:

Income (loss) from continuing
operations

Net income loss

Successor
Three Months Three Months Three Months Three Months Three Months Three Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended
July 5, July §, October 4, October 4, January 3, January 3,
2003 2003 2003 2003 2004 2004
(As Reported) (As Restated) (As Reported) (As Restated) (As Reported) (As Restated)
$ 88,433 $ 88,932 $80,621 $81,628 $86,967 $84,464
(10,032) (10,531) (1,402) (2,409) 18,707 18,166
(14,126) (14,625) (6,394) (7,401) 14,327 13,785
(6,393) (6,584) (1,335) (1,144) 3,632 3,632
(7,733) (8,041) (5.059) (6,257) - 10,695 10,153
$ (9,030) $ (9,338) $(7,231) $(8.429) $(4,115) $(4,657)
$ (0.17) $ (0.18) $ (0.11) $ (0.14) $ 024 $ 022
$ (0.20) $ (021) $ (0.16) $ (0.19) $ (0.09) $ (0.11)
$ (017 $ (0.18) $ (0.11) $ (0.14) $ 023 $ 022
$ (©20) $ (0.21) § (0.16) $ (0.19) $ (0.09) $ (0.10)

(a) Reflects certain reclassifications to conform to the current period presentation, including the effect

of discontinued operations. See Notes 1 and 4.
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SCHEDULE 11

VALUATION & QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS & RESERVES(5)

(Dollars in thousands)

Additions
Charges to
Balance at Cost and Balance
Beginning of Expenses Other Additions / Deductions at End of
Description Period 1) Reclassification (2) Period
Fiscal 2002 .
Receivable allowances. .. .. $112,918 $188,771(3) $ — $(214,177)  $87,512
Period January 5, 2003 to
February 4, 2003
Receivable allowances. . . .. $ 87,512 $ 8,806(3) $ — $ (96,318)(5) § —
Period February 5, 2003 to
January 3, 2004
Receivable allowances. .. .. $ — $148,677(3) $(6,375)(4) $ (84,866)  $57,436
Fiscal 2004
Receivable allowances. . ... $ 57,436 $151,564 § — $(154,057)  $54,943

|

(1) Includes bad debts, cash discounts, allowances and sales returns.

(2) Credits issued and amounts written-off, net of recoveries.

(3) Amounts include reserve balances for discontinued operations.

(4) Reclassification of reserve amounts for discontinued operations, which assets were classified as
current assets of discontinued operations as of January 3, 2004.

(5) Reflects elimination of reserves upon the adoption of fresh start accounting and the resulting
valuation of accounts receivable at fair value.
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